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Tabreedat a Glance

Tabreed, established in 1998, is a 

leading international district cooling 

company operating across the GCC, as 

well as in Egypt and India. Known for its 

highly reliable, efficient, and 

environmentally friendly cooling 

solutions, Tabreed

delivers 1.325 million refrigeration tons 

of cooling across 92 plants. The 

company provides cooling to some of 

the most iconic projects in the UAE such 

as the Sheikh Zayed Grand Mosque,

Louvre Abu Dhabi, Burj Khalifa,

The Dubai Mall, Dubai Metro, Ferrari 

World, Warner Brothers, Sea World, 

amongst  many others.

The preferred partner for 
sustainable cooling

UAE, Saudi Arabia, Oman, Bahrain, Egypt and India
Further international expansiontargeted

Countries 
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m RT cooling delivered 
to clients

1.32
Operating plants

92
130

towers the size of Burj Khalifa

RT refers to refrigeration tons, a unit used to measure cooling capacity

Equivalent 
to cooling
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EXCLUSIVE PROVIDER OF DC SERVICES TO SEVERAL ICONIC PROJECTS
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Louvre 
Abu Dhabi

Cleveland Clinic 
Abu Dhabi

Sheikh Zayed 
Grand Mosque

Yas 
Marina Circuit

Yas Mall
Rosewood 
Abu Dhabi

Abu Dhabi 
Global

Market Square

Dubai
Metro

Ferrari
World

SeaWorld 
Abu Dhabi

Dubai Parks 
and Resorts

Yas
Waterworld

Etihad
Towers

Burj Khalifa
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WHAT WE DO
Tabreed aims to be the leader in sustainable cooling and associated services in 
the MENA region and beyond

Supports core chilled water business 
by providing manufactured products 
(pre-insulated pipes) and other 
services such as water treatment, 
customer billing & collection, energy 
efficiency consultancy etc.

To be the leading cooling provider by utilizing 
sustainable, reliable & cost-efficient energy 
solutions

Vision

Creating value by optimizing, innovating and 
striving for operational excellence to exceed 
stakeholder expectations, whilst protecting 
people, assets and environment.

Mission

Design, Build, Operate and Maintain 
district cooling systems and Distribution 
and Sales of chilled water for use in 
district cooling technologies

96% 4%
Of revenue Of revenue

Chilled Water Value Chain 

Business Segments
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WHERE WE OPERATE
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Diversified presence across GCC and beyond

© GeoNames, Microsoft, OpenStreetMap, TomTom
Powered by Bing

Oman
55k RT 
Muscat ˩ 8*

Saudi Arabia**
126k RT
Dharan ˩ 2*
Makkah ˩ 1*
Riyadh ˩ 1*
Jeddah ˩ 1*

Bahrain
37k RT
Manama ˩1*

UAE
1,099k RT

Abu Dhabi ˩48*
Dubai ˩ 22*
Northern Emirates ˩6*

Egypt
4.5k RT
East Cairo ˩1*

India
4k RT
Gurugram ˩1*

UAE

83.0%
Saudi Arabia

9.5%

Oman

4.1%

Bahrain

2.8%

Egypt

0.3%
India

0.3%

Connected Capacity Split

* Represents number of plants;  ** Represents 100% of capacity, where TabreedΩs share is 21.8%
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AWARDS & RECOGNITIONS

Executive summary

ÅExtel(formerly Institutional Investors) Survey: # 1 in Emerging EMEA Utilities

Å International Finance Award: Best Finance Team Award - Utilities; Best IR Team Award ˩
Utilities

ÅExtelEurope and Emerging EMEA IR Awards: Top 5 IR Program in Energy Sector

ÅOnConAwards: Top 10 Finance Team Award

Å International Business Magazine: Best CFO UAE; Best Finance Leader of the Year UAE 
and Best Use of Technology in Finance Awards

ÅMEIRA IR Awards: Best ESG Report in the Middle East M˩idcap sector, #2 in Most 
Improved IR Program in the GCC

Å IDEA Awards: Total Number of Buildings Added or Recommitted S˩ilver Award; Total 
Square Footage Added or Recommitted S˩ilver Award

ÅAsian Power Awards 2024: Renewable Projects (Geothermal DCP) G˩old Award; DC 
Initiative of the Year ˩UAE (Nano-particle additive in CW System) 

ÅGulf Sustainability Award: Best Employee Well-Being ˩ Silver Award

ÅGlobal ESG Awards: Health and Well-being Programs ˩Gold Award

ÅHRM Summit Awards B˩ahrain: People-Focused CEO of the Year˯
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OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS IN 2024
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Connected Capacity

1.325 million RT
+1.6% Grown at a 7%CAGR over 2019 

to 2024

Consumption Volumes 

2.66 billion RTH
+5.0% Grown at a 12%CAGR over 2019 to 

2024

New Connections 

UAE: 15.9k RT, Oman: 1.8k RT, India: 
3.0k RT, Saudi: 1.5k RT, Egypt: 1.5k RT

+23.8k RT
Added~380k RT over 2020 to 
2024 or 77k RTper year (incl. 
acquisitions)

Solidifying our market 
position in core 
market of UAE while 
diversifying 
international 
presence with further 
expansion of capacity 
in the GCC, India and 
Egypt.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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2,216 

2,415 

2,434 

2022

2023

2024

531 

603 

570 

2022

2023

2024

4.5

4.1

3.7

2022

2023

2024

Revenue EBITDA1

Normalized Net Profit2 Net Operating Cash Flows

Net Debt to EBITDA Net Debt to Capital

(AED million) (AED million)

(AED million) (AED million)

(x) (%)

Key Ratios 2024

51.4%
EBITDA Margin

23.4%
Normalized Net 
Profit Margin

9.0%
Return 

on Equity

11.4%
Free Cash Flow 

Yield

5.2%
Dividend Yield

Free Cash Flow yield and Dividend yield at a share price of AED 3.0 as on 31 
December 2024 and Board recommended dividend of 15.5 fils for 2024

1,232 

1,198 

1,252 

2022

2023

2024

1,355 

1,285 

1,189 

2022

2023

2024

38%

37%

37%

2022

2023

2024
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1) EBITDA is computed by the management as Operating income plus depreciation and amortization, including finance lease amortization; 2) Excluding one-offs
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SUSTAINABILITY HIGHLIGHTS
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Annual reduction 
in energy consumption 
(In Billions of kWh)

1.3 1.4 1.5
2.0 2.1 2.3 2.3 2.3

2.5 2.6

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

= ~150,000
Homes powered in the 
GCC every year (equivalent)

= ~343,000
Cars removed from roads annually

reduction in energy consumption in 2024

billion kWh2.64

preventionof CO2 emissions

million MT1.58
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SUSTAINABILITY HIGHLIGHTS - VERIFIED CARBON STANDARD
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About the Project

ÅStudy carried out by independent agency, 
Verra, which sets the worldˬs leading 
standards for sustainable development

ÅYear-long verification programme at the 
plant, which supplies sustainable cooling 
services that are vital to clientsˬ daily 
operations

What the Study Highlighted

ÅEvidence of significant environmental 
benefits through maximising energy 
efficiency

Å Through these efficiencies, the 28,000 RT 
plant prevents approximately 19,320 tons of 
CO2 emissions annually

What it Means for Tabreed

Å Tabreed is eligible to trade carbon credits 
(in the voluntary market) as an emissions 
preventer

ÅA major recognition, not only for the 
company but the entire district cooling 
industry

During August 2024, Tabreed made a major advancement in its efforts 
to decarbonise the cooling sector, achieving the ΨVerified Carbon 
StandardΩ at its SeaWorld Abu Dhabi plant, certifying carbon credits to 
offset emissions. This was a world-first for the district energy sector and 
provided further evidence of the companyΩs environmental credentials.
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YEAR IN REVIEW
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Å TabreedΩs consumption volumes grew by 8% year-on-year in H1 2024, reflecting a 
strong demand for district cooling

Å Tabreed paid 2023 dividends as approved during the Annual General Meeting held in 
March 2024, Tabreed's shareholders approved a record-high dividend payment of 
15.5 fils per share, representing a 15% year-on-year increase

Å Tabreed successfully concluded a tender offer for the repurchase of certain of its 
outstanding USD 500 million sukuk due in 2025.

Å Tabreed published its fourth annual ESG Report, covering the year 2023 and 
indicating remarkable progress towards decarbonization of cooling

Å TabreedΩs consumption volumes for Q1 2024 rose by 9% year-on-year, driven by new 
connections attributed to organic growth

Å Tabreed concludes an extensive retrofit programmeςincreases energy efficiency 
with Variable Frequency Drives (VFDs), taking a major step towards decarbonizing 
operations

Å MoodyΩs and Fitch published reports assigning Tabreed ratings of Baa3 and BBB, 
respectively, thereby reaffirming its status as an 'Investment Grade' entity.

Q1 2024 Q2 2024

Å Demand for TabreedΩs district cooling service remains robust as the company saw an 
increase in consumption volumes by 6% year-on-year in 9M 2024

Å Tabreed sponsors the third Asia Urban Energy Assembly in Bangkok, Thailand, 
seeking expansion across Southeast Asia

Å Tabreed achieves the ΨVerified Carbon StandardΩ at one of its Abu Dhabi plants, 
proving its environmental credentials

Å Tabreed completes sponsorship, exhibition, and participation at the third World 
Utilities Congress, held at the ADNEC

Å Tabreed witnesses robust demand for its district cooling services as evident in 5% 
rise in FY 2024 consumption volumes, driven by organic growth

Å Tabreed was awarded the ΨGeothermal Power Project of the YearτGoldΩ and ΨDistrict 
Cooling Initiative of the YearτUAEΩ at the 2024 Asian Power Awards in Singapore

Å Tabreed was awarded Best CFO UAE, Best Finance Leader of the Year UAE, Best Use 
of Technology in Finance by International Business Magazine during awards 
ceremony held in Dubai and  2nd Most Improved IR Program in the GCC, Best ESG 
Report Mid Cap category during Annual MEIRA IR Awards held in Abu Dhabi

Q3 2024 Q4 2024
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SHARE INFORMATION (DFM: TABREED)
Ownership Structure (as of 31 December 2024)
Strategic Shareholders own 81.9% of Tabreed while 18.1% is free float

Mubadala1

41.9%
Engie2

40.0%

Institutional Investors

12.0%
Retail Investors

6.1%

Investor Relations Contact
For queries related to share ownership, dividends or to know more about 
Tabreedˬs investment story 
contact us at:

mailto:ir@tabreed.ae

+971 2 202 0400

Tabreed IR 
Website

1 Owns shares through two different entities, of which General Investments FZE owns 38.21%; 2 Owns shares through entity GDF International

Tabreed proactively meets and handles queries from Shareholders, Investors and Analysts using various channels of communication such as conference calls, conferences, face to face 
and virtual meetings, press releases, emails, social media and Investor Relations section on its website.

15 Feb. 
FY 2023 Results Announced

19 Mar.
2023 Annual General Assembly

17 Apr.
2023 Dividend Payment

15 May
Q1 2024 Results Announced

8 Aug.
H1 2024 Results Announced

14 Nov.
9M 2024 Results Announced

2024 Financial Calendar
Earnings Conference Calls

Investor Roadshows/Fieldtrips

Broker Conferences

Capital Market Conferences

Shareholder and Investor Engagement

4
4
5
2
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TABREED SHAREHOLDER RETURNS

Share Price Performance 

Cash Dividend Per Share (AED) 

Tabreed 5-year Total Shareholder Return* : 96% 
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Tabreed

DFM General Index

MSCI EM Index

0.135

0.155

0.155

2022

2023

2024

Market Capitalization 

8.5 AED billion

Share Price

3.0 AED

Average Daily Traded Value

2.1 AED million

Share Price Data as of 31 December 2024 and Trading Data for the year 2024

Cash Dividend Per Share in 2024

0.155AED

CAGR in the last 5 years

+8.1%

Payout Ratio in 2024

77%
Dividend for the year 2024 to be paid in 2025 subject to shareholdersΩ approval

2024 Dividend as recommended by the Board and is subject to shareholders' approval during Annual General Assembly to be held on 25 March 2025

15

* Total Shareholder Return includes return from reinvestment of cash dividends  paid
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WHY TO INVEST IN TABREED
ÅResilient utility-like infrastructure model with robust tariff structure 

implemented across countries

ÅLong-term contracts with creditworthy customers underpin stability and 
high visibility of cashflows

ÅSolid track record of delivering growth with connected capacity increasing 
by ~40% in the last five years

ÅDiversified presence in attractive markets poised to witness rising district 
cooling penetration, thereby sustaining growth momentum

Å27 years of operational track record to provide safe, reliable and efficient 
cooling

ÅSustainable district cooling services enabling significant energy savings and 
contributing to achieve Net Zero emissions targets

ÅLeveraging partnership model to grow business and achieve operational 
excellence

Resilient Business 
Model

Strong 
Cash Flow 
Visibility

Sizeable 
Growth 

Opportunities
Strategic 

Partnerships

Operations & 
Maintenance 
Expertise

Sustainability 
Enabler

Sustainable 
Shareholder 

Returns
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Dr. Bakheet 
Al Katheeri
Chairman, Tabreed

It was an honourto be appointed as Chairman of Tabreed in 2024 ςit is an organisationinfused with the energy, dedication and 

commitment of its people and is one of the UAEΩs many remarkable and inspirational success stories. 

Since its beginnings back in 1998, Tabreed has steadily grown to become a trusted partner across the region and has stayed true to its 

roots while embracing change, innovation and cutting-edge technologies.

Over the next two years, the district cooling industry is expected to be worth almost $40 billion globally and Tabreed is right in the 

centre, a direct supporter of the UAEΩs ΨNet Zero by 2050Ω initiative. Our district cooling operations save energy equivalent to powering 

150,000 homes in the GCC annually, in turn preventing emissions equal to removing more than 340,000 cars from the roads.

As for economic positivity, TabreedΩs workforce now includes more than 1,100 people from 40 different nationalities, each one a 

treasured member and contributor to this nationΩs financial strength, sustainability and success. The future trajectory looks bright as the 

need for cooling in the GCC is expected to almost triple before the end of this decade, which creates multiple opportunities for Tabreed 

to grow and increase its environmental credentials. We are prepared for this future, having exercised wisdom and prudence with our 

finances so that expansion can be rapid as and when the time and conditions are right.

I wish to express my sincere thanks to TabreedΩs shareholders for their unwavering support, and to the people who make this company 

a national champion ςits success is built on the dedication of every one of these inspirational people, whose dedication and resilience 

fuel our onward journey.
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CEOˬS MESSAGE

Khalid Abdulla
Al Marzooqi
CEO, Tabreed

For the past four years it has been my inestimable privilege to serve as TabreedΩs Chief Executive Officer and I continue to be inspired by the drive 
and determination of everyone in the group to be the very best there is. The result of this tireless dedication is that, withevery passing year, the 
company goes from strength-to-strength and 2024 was no exception.

Headline numbers are immediately impressive. Revenue and EBITDA have both improved over 2023 and net profit of AED 570 million, which is an 
increase of AED 139 million over the preceding 12 months. 

At the time of writing, our portfolio stands at 92 district cooling plants in six countries and throughout 2024 consumption volumes rose by 5%. Our 
total connected capacity reached 1.325 million Refrigeration Tons (RT), with 23,756 RT of new customer connections added during the year in the 
UAE, Oman, Saudi Arabia, Egypt and India. Tabreed is a company with more than its fair share of unsung heroes, many of whom havebeen working 
round-the-clock to prepare the foundations for further growth, both domestically and internationally.

While the year-end figures obviously demonstrate positive progress for the company and its investors and stakeholders, thereΩs also a very real, 
tangible benefit to the environment that should never be underestimated. Because TabreedΩs operations in 2024 reduced energy consumption to 
the tune of 2.64 billion kWh, in turn preventing the release of 1.58 million tons of CO2. This is good news for everyone, everywhere.

These indisputable environmental benefits form the backbone of our communications and the messages we spread to the outside world. And 2024 
once again saw us play a central role in what has quickly become an unmissable fixture on the annual Abu Dhabi events calendar: World Utilities 
Congress. Returning as ΨCooling PartnerΩ we were able to extol the virtues of our industry to delegates from all over the world, through 
presentations, panel discussions and our stunning stand, which was a credit to this company and its people.

Further afield, we sponsored and participated in high level industry events in Egypt and Thailand and led the conversation onsustainable cooling at 
the RAK Energy Summit, during which we hosted our own high-level discussions with developers and government officials, promotingfurther uptake 
of our services in the Northern Emirates. We also sponsored the UNEP-led Cool CoalitionΩs pavilion at COP29 in Baku, Azerbaijan, cementing 
TabreedΩs reputation as a global leader in sustainability.

Increased uptake of district cooling is imperative in our drive towards net-zero ςa utility thatΩs essential for progress, for people, industries and 
communities alike. Tabreed has been the worldΩs leader in this remarkable industry for nearly three decades and its future is assured, brighter than 
ever. This annual report is further evidence of TabreedΩs stability and long-term sustainability, and I look forward to yet another successful year 
ahead.
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COOLING OVERVIEW - THE FUTURE OF COOLING
Å The demand for energy used in space cooling is growing at an unprecedented rate, outpacing all other end uses in 

buildings. Between 1990 and 2016, this demand more than tripled. Air conditioners and electric fans now account for 
about 20% of electricity consumption in buildings globally, equating to 10% of all global electricity use. In regions like the 
Middle East and parts of the United States, space cooling can contribute to over 70% of peak residential electricity 
demand during extreme heat waves. On average, space cooling represented approximately 14% of peak electricity 
demand worldwide in 2016.

Å Air conditioner (AC) sales are rapidly increasing in emerging economies, driven by rising incomes, population growth, and 
higher temperatures. It is projected that nearly two-thirds of global households may own an air conditioner in the future, 
with China, India, and Indonesia collectively accounting for half of this growth.

Å Without effective interventions, energy demand for cooling could triple by 2050, reaching 6,200 TWh. Nearly 70% of this 
increase will stem from the residential sector, concentrated in a few emerging economies. This surge in demand poses 
significant challenges to power grids and undermines efforts to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. Building, maintaining, 
and operating the electricity infrastructure to meet peak cooling demand is costly, as this capacity is utilized only during 
limited periods. Consequently, CO2 emissions from cooling have already tripled since 1990, reaching 1,130 million tonnes
(Mt), alongside an increase in local air pollutants. 

Å District Cooling (DC) offers a more sustainable and efficient alternative, being 40ς50% more energy-efficient than 
traditional cooling systems and having a lower levelized cost of cooling. DC systems also significantly reduce emissions by 
integrating various sustainable energy sources and utilizing thermal storage, which improves energy efficiency and 
alleviates peak power demand stress. This approach minimizes the need for additional power generation capacity, lowers 
both investment and operational costs and can potentially contribute to cutting space cooling emissions by up to 93%, 
achieving just 7% of baseline emissions.
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REGIONAL MACROECONOMICS OUTLOOK

Our presence across the UAE, Bahrain, Oman, Saudi Arabia, Egypt and India is a 

testament to our strategic approach to growth and value creation as a district cooling 

leader. Our strategic approach accounts for favorable macroeconomic conditions, 

cultural and business proximities, and the vast opportunities these markets present. 

These nations are undergoing significant economic transformations, offering robust 

growth across sectors, expanding infrastructure, progressive reforms to attract 

investments, and the opportunities to advance efficient cooling solutions. The UAEΩs

robust non-oil economic growthand regional integrationefforts position it as a solid 

hub for expansion. Omanand Bahrain are pursuing diversificationand fiscal reforms, 

creating a stable foundation for infrastructure investments. Saudi ArabiaΩsVision 2030

and non-oil sector growthpresent substantial potential for scaling operations. EgyptΩs

structural reformsand infrastructure modernizationalign with our expertise in 

sustainable solutions, while IndiaΩs dynamic economyand urbanizationtrends offer 

long-term growth opportunities. These markets enable us to remain at the forefront of

sustainable cooling technologieswhile contributing to the economic and 

environmental advancement of the regions we serve.

21

Business Review

Business Review

Strategy

Strategy

Market Review

Market Review

/9hΩǎ aŜǎǎŀƎŜ

CEOΩs Message

/ƘŀƛǊƳŀƴΩǎ aŜǎǎŀƎŜ

ChairmanΩs Message

 Business Model  Value Creation

Business Model & 
Value Creation

/ChΩǎ wŜǾƛŜǿ

CFOΩs Review

Financial Statements

Financial Statements
Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance
Sustainability Review

Sustainability Review
Strategic Review

Strategic Review
Overview

Overview



Annual Integrated Report 2024

REGIONAL MACROECONOMICS OUTLOOK

Country Macroeconomic Highlights
GDP

Growth1%
Population 
Growth1%

Urbanization 
Rate1

Value Added-
Construction1

(% of GDP)

Value Added-
Real Estate1 

(% of GDP)

UAE

The UAE's non-oil economy is set to maintain solid growth into 2025, driven by strong demand in 
tourism, trade, and finance. Oil production is expected to increase in 2025 due to an adjustment in 
ǘƘŜ ŎƻǳƴǘǊȅΩǎ ht9/ ǉǳƻǘŀΣ ŀƭǘƘƻǳƎƘ ƭƻǿŜǊ ƻƛƭ ǇǊƛŎŜǎ ŎƻǳƭŘ ǿŜŀƪŜƴ ŜȄǇƻǊǘ ŀƴŘ ƎƻǾŜǊƴƳŜƴǘ 
revenues. While the UAE continues to pursue regional economic integration, potential geopolitical 
risks pose challenges. Inflation remains subdued, with average rates expected below 2.0% in 2024 
and 2025, despite robust demand. Monetary policy easing is projected to slow in 2025, following a 
recent 25-basis-point cut by the US Federal Reserve.

3.91% 3.62% 88.0% 4.6% (8.0%) 5.5% (4.8%)

Oman

Oman's real GDP is projected to grow by 1.8% in 2024 and 2.1% in 2025, driven primarily by the 
nonhydrocarbon sector as oil and gas output declines. Inflation is expected to remain low, 
averaging 0.6% in 2024 and 1.0% in 2025, supported by subsidized energy, high interest rates, and 
lower commodity prices. The Central Bank of Oman, aligning its policy interest rate with the US 
due to the rial's dollar peg, recently reduced the rate to 5.0% and is expected to lower it further to 
пΦр҈ ōȅ ǘƘŜ ŜƴŘ ƻŦ нлнрΦ ²ƘƛƭŜ hƳŀƴΩǎ ŦƛǎŎŀƭ ōŀƭŀƴŎŜ ƛǎ ŦƻǊŜŎŀǎǘŜŘ ǘƻ Ƴŀƛƴǘŀƛƴ ŀ ǎƳŀƭƭ ǎǳǊǇƭǳǎ ƛƴ 
2024, it could shift to a deficit in 2025 amid a forecasted drop in oil prices. Government debt is 
expected to decline to 34% of GDP in 2024 before returning to 37% in 2025.

1.84% 4.60% 89.0% 2.8% (8.2%) 1.5% (1.9%)

Bahrain

.ŀƘǊŀƛƴΩǎ ǊŜŀƭ ŜŎƻƴƻƳȅ ƛǎ ŜȄǇŜŎǘŜŘ ǘƻ ŀŎƘƛŜǾŜ ƳƻŘŜǎǘ ƎǊƻǿǘƘ ƛƴ нлнпς25, driven by the continued 
expansion of the non-oil sector and a more supportive monetary policy environment. Real GDP is 
projected to grow by 2.7% in 2024 and 2.9% in 2025, with a slight recovery in the oil economy 
complementing non-oil sector gains. Inflation, which eased to 0.1% in 2023 due to moderating 
commodity prices and the dissipation of a VAT rate hike effect, is anticipated to average 1.3% over 
the forecast period. Satisfactory petrodollar inflows are bolstering external accounts and 
temporarily easing fiscal pressures. Authorities are encouraged to leverage this energy-derived 
liquidity to implement structural fiscal reforms, reducing reliance on oil revenues and ensuring 
sustainable public debt management.

2.75% 2.38% 89.6% 3.2% (8.4%) 4.6% (1.6%)

Source: S&P ; 1 2024 Forecasted Value

22

Business Review

Business Review

Strategy

Strategy

Market Review

Market Review

/9hΩǎ aŜǎǎŀƎŜ

CEOΩs Message

/ƘŀƛǊƳŀƴΩǎ aŜǎǎŀƎŜ

/ƘŀƛǊƳŀƴΩǎ aŜǎǎŀƎŜ

 Business Model  Value Creation

Business Model & 
Value Creation

/ChΩǎ wŜǾƛŜǿ

CFOΩs Review

Financial Statements

Financial Statements
Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance
Sustainability Review

Sustainability Review
Strategic Review

Strategic Review
Overview

Overview



Annual Integrated Report 2024

REGIONAL MACROECONOMICS OUTLOOK

Source: S&P ; 1 2024 Forecasted Value

Country Macroeconomic Highlights
GDP

Growth1%
Population 
Growth1%

Urbanization 
Rate1

Value Added-
Construction1

(% of GDP)

Value Added-
Real Estate1 

(% of GDP)

Saudi Arabia

Saudi Arabia's real GDP growth is projected to accelerate in 2025 as the impact of oil supply 
cuts diminishes, with robust non-oil sector performance supporting this growth. Consumer 
spending is expected to remain a key driver, while private fixed investment may see modest 
gains from monetary easing. However, public-sector investment could weaken due to 
government efforts to consolidate the budget amidst weaker oil revenues and a projected 
budget deficit for 2025 and 2026 following revised, lower medium-term oil price assumptions. 
Inflation is anticipated to remain stable at around 2.0%, with housing costs being the primary 
source of upward price pressure.

1.30% 2.10% 85.2% 4.7% (5.6%) 3.6% (6.3%)

Egypt

Real GDP growth in Egypt is expected to rebound to 4.0% in fiscal year 2024ς25, following a 
slowdown to 2.4% in 2023ς24 due to challenges such as the Israel-Hamas conflict, disruptions in 
Red Sea shipping, and foreign exchange shortages. This recovery projection considers gradual 
structural reforms under the IMF program, increased foreign investments, and favorable base 
effects. The central bank's policy rate, raised by 1,900 basis points since March 2022 to 27.25%, 
is anticipated to remain tight until early 2025 to manage inflation. Additionally, the IMF's 
expanded US$8 billion support package, coupled with Egypt's commitment to reforms, is 
expected to gradually address external and fiscal imbalances.

2.36% 1.75% 43.3% 6.2% (8.5%) 2.4% (3.3%)

India

India's economic growth is expected to moderate from 8.2% in FY 2023ς24 to 6.5% in FY 2024ς
25, influenced by the Reserve Bank of India's (RBI) earlier policy rate hikes and reduced 
government investments. Growth is forecasted to slow further to 6.4% in FY 2025ς26 due to 
global trade and financial uncertainties, compounding domestic challenges. Consumer price 
inflation, which returned to moderation in November, is anticipated to ease from 5.0% in 2024 
to 4.7% in 2025, supported by ample food supply and stable global commodity prices. However, 
pressures on the Indian rupee and efforts to achieve a sustainable 4% inflation target will 
restrict monetary policy easing, with the RBI likely to lower its repo rate only once in 2025.

6.52% 0.89% 36.9% 10.2% (8.9%) 8.7% (9.6%)
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DISTRICT COOLING INDUSTRY OUTLOOK

GCC:
Å Urbanization and Mega Projects:Increasing 

demand driven by large-scale urban 
developments (e.g., smart cities, mega-events 
like Expo).

Å Government Regulations:Well-developed in 
the UAE, with ongoing formulation in other 
GCC countries, which may push for broader 
adoption.

Å Sustainability Goals:Focus on reducing 
carbon emissions in line with national visions 
(e.g., UAE's Net Zero by 2050).

Å Public-Private Partnerships (PPPs):Growing 
trend of governments partnering with private 
operators to expand infrastructure.

India:
Å Rising Demand for Cooling: Rapid 

urbanization and increasing temperatures 
drive demand for efficient cooling systems in 
commercial and residential sectors.

Å Market Creation: District cooling is still 
emerging, with significant efforts required to 
establish the market.

Å CAAS Model Push: Push towards Cooling-as-a-
Service (CAAS) as an emerging model to 
enhance affordability and drive adoption in 
India, given the fragmented market structure.

Å Energy Efficiency Focus: Initiatives like the 
National Cooling Action Plan (NCAP) support 
district cooling as a sustainable alternative.

Egypt:
Å Infrastructure Expansion: Strong focus on new 

cities (e.g., Ras el-Hekma, New Administrative 
Capital, or New Mansoura) and large-scale 
developments requiring centralized cooling.

Å Sustainability Drive: Emphasis on reducing 
energy consumption in line with national 
energy efficiency targets.

Å Increasing Foreign Investment: Growing 
interest from international investors in 
infrastructure, boosting district cooling 
adoption.

Tabreed currently operates in six countries, each with unique district cooling dynamics and trends. These countries are expected to add 11-13 
million RT of district cooling capacity by 2030, with India, Egypt, and the UAE leading the growth. This represents significant market opportunities 
for Tabreed and expand its business operations.
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OUR STRATEGY
TabreedΩs Corporate Strategy comprises 5 building blocks

Local and International Growth
Conducting capacity-building and 

development to improve Tabreed's 
organization, activities at the local and 

international level. 

Business Excellence
Carrying continuous improvement to 
TabreedΩs approach and practices in 

achieving strategic goals and objectives 

People
Managing human resources and employee 
engagement efforts strategically to ensure 
good working conditions and retention. 

Governance and Control
Adhering to local & international laws and 
regulations to strengthen TabreedΩs position 
in the Global market 

Research, Development & Innovation
Creating unique value through innovative approaches to gain a competitive 
advantage 

Creating unique value through innovative approaches to gain a competitive advantage 
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OUR STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

Local and International Growth
Achieve sustainable growth by expanding our footprint in existing markets and establishing presence in new 
markets

1
Business Excellence
Integrate top-tier HSE standards into our corporate DNA and promote a culture of HSE excellence across our 
operations to set a benchmark for the industry

2
Maximize value creation by achieving efficient & reliable operations, streamlining internal processes, and leveraging 
digital transformation 3
Build and maintain a positive brand reputation by delivering exceptional customer care and relationship management while strengthening stakeholder 
relationships and capabilities in key target markets 4
Governance and Control
Achieve a top ESG rating in the region by implementing best practices in environmental sustainability, social responsibility,and ethical governance, while 
complying with regulators and governmental bodies

5

Research, Development and Innovation
Foster a culture of innovation and continuous improvement to drive R&D and advance innovation in the 
district cooling industry

7

People
Attract, develop, and retain top talent across all countries of our presence and become an employer of choice by fostering engagement and corporate 
culture, and delivering a superior employee experience

6
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STRATEGIC PROGRESS MEASUREMENT AND ACHIEVEMENTS

ObjectivesStrategic Pillar

1
Local and International growth Å Capacity Addition in existing and new markets (k RT)

Å Market Share in key markets (%)

Å EBITDA and Net Profit (AED)

Å 7% Capacity CAGR and ~ 77k RT added per year in the last 5 years

Å International expansion beyond GCC with 4k RT in India and 4.5k 
RT in Egypt over 2023-24

Å 10% EBITDA CAGR in the last 5 years

2
3
4

Business Excellence Å Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (LTIFR)

Å System Availability (%)

Å Efficiency & Margins

Å Customer Satisfaction Rate

Å 0.29 LTIFR

Å Average EBITDA Margin of 53% in the last 5 years

Å Overall Customer Satisfaction ςSatisfactory in 2024

Å 100% Customer Complaints Resolution Rate in 2024

6People Å Emiratization (%)

Å Employee Engagement Score

Å Employee Satisfaction Rate

Å 42% Emiratization Rate in 2024

Å 4.3/5.0 Employee Satisfaction Score in 2024

Å 4.2/5.0 Employee Engagement Score in 2024

7Research, Development and 
Innovation

Å Number of Innovative Programs Implemented

Å Investment in R&D Projects

Å $ 4.6m Investment in Sustainable Technology

ÅwŜƎƛƻƴΩǎ мǎǘ DŜƻǘƘŜǊƳŀƭ 9ƴŜǊƎȅ 5/ Ǉƭŀƴǘ ƻǇŜƴŜŘ

Å Use of nanoparticle fluid technology to enhance plant efficiency
by up to 12% 

AchievementsHow progress is measured (KPIs)

Governance and Control 5 Å Regulatory Compliance (%)

Å Ethics Incidents Resolution (%)

Å ESG Rating

Å Best ESG Report by MEIRA IR Awards 2024

Å Verified Carbon Standard Certification for 1 plant by Verra, 
recognizing efficient cooling produced by Tabreed
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OUR REVENUE MODEL

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Capacity Consumption

Capacity charge 
recovers capital 

investment, covers 
fixed operating and 
financing costs and 
provides investor 
returns while the 

consumption charge 
covers variable utility 

costs

Capacity Charges

Consumption Charges

Contracted Cooling Load (RT) FIXED

Cooling Consumed (RTh) VARIABLE

25-years
cooling 
contract

Capacity

Consumption

of our chilled water revenue comes from fully or majority owned public sectors entities and top four customers represents XX of our chilled water revenue, highlighting highly 

credit worthy profile of our customer base, which is mostly B2B in nature

Billing breakdown in a typical year
Capacity charge forms majority of annualbilling

Billing breakdown over the months
Capacity charge is fixed for the year while consumption 

chargevaries with usage

56%
44%
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OUR VALUE CREATION MODEL

Financial Capital
Equity: AED 7.0 bn

Debt: AED 5.6 bn

Total Assets: AED 14.1 bn

Manufactured Capital
# of Plants: 92

Capacity: 1.325 m RT

Countries of Presence: 6

Intellectual Capital
Investment in Tech.: AED 16.9 m

O&M Expertise: 27 years

Human Capital
Total Employees: 1,114

Emiratization: 42%

Social & Relationship Capital
~95% of revenue: B2B customers

Top 4 Customers:  53% of Revenue

Natural Capital
Electricity Consumed: 2,151 GWh

Water Consumed: 18,849,447 m3

Value Creation Over Time
Short term: Immediate financial returns, operational improvements, and customer satisfaction Medium term: Enhanced technological capabilities, stronger customer relationships, and improved environmental 
performance  Long term: Sustainable growth, industry leadership, and significant positive impact on society and the environment

Inputs Impact created

Customer Management

Deliver exceptional customer care and 
support to unlock incremental 
business potential

Operate & Maintain

Efficiently operate and maintain plants 
& network and embed HSE excellence

Design & Build

Construct district cooling 
plants and distribution 
network with highest quality, 
safety and reliability 
standards

Optimise & Innovate

Maximise value by enhancing plant 
efficiency, reducing resources 
consumption through new technologies, 
AI, digital tools and optimized 
maintenance/procurement strategy

Financial
Revenue: AED 2,434 m

Net Profit: AED 570 m

Free Cash Flows: AED 971 m

Manufactured
Cooling Produced: 2.66 bn RTH

Intellectual
RegionΩs first Geothermal sourced District Cooling Plant

Use of VFDs and Nano-fluids to enhance electrical efficiency

Use of Sea-water and TSE to conserve freshwater

Human
Employee Engagement Survey: 4.2 / 5.0

Total Employee Compensation: AED 296 m

Social & Relationship
Daily meals to 100 individuals for 30 days during Ramadan

School supplies to 260 students

Sustainable Farm project for People of Determination

Installed solar panels for cooling and lighting at four mosques 
in India

Customer Complaints Resolution: 100%

Natural
2.64 bn kWh saving in energy consumption

1.58 m tons prevention of CO2 emissions

Business Activities

Outputs

Employees
We create a positive work culture and conducive 
working conditions. We support the physical, 
emotional, and professional well-being of employees.

Business Partners
We work with clients and suppliers and foster strong 
relationships to deliver business value with integrity 
and transparency.

Shareholders
We continue to deliver stable and healthy returns to 
our shareholders through sustainable growth, 
consistent financial performance, and responsible 
business practices. 

Customers
We tailor to the need of our customers and provide 
quality cooling services. We continue to innovate our 
operations to supply cooling sustainably and reliably. 

Society
We take actions that minimize negative impacts on the 
environment and contribute to the social well-being of 
our society. 
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CFOˬS REVIEW
I am happy to share that our company has continued to grow and strengthen financially in 2024, maintaining our strong historical track record. 

Our total revenue was AED 2,434 million in 2024. This was mainly driven by the growth in consumption volumes, which increased by 5% to 2.66 
billion refrigeration ton hours (RTH). We also expanded our connected capacity by 23,756 refrigeration tons (RT), bringing our total connected 
capacity to 1.325 million RT. Growth in connected capacity was largely on account of growth in existing concessions. We commissioned a new 
greenfield plant in the UAE and expanded capacity in another plant to meet growing demand from our customers. 

We kept a tight control on operational expenses, driving improvement in EBITDA margin to 51% and growth in EBITDA by 5% to AED 1,252 million. 
Our normalized net profit before tax was AED 624 million, up 4% from last year. The reported net profit was AED 570 million compared to AED 431 
million last year. This increase was mainly due to the impacts of one-time non-recurring items on 2023 net profit. Normalized net profit after tax was 
slightly lower compared to year ago period due to the new corporate tax in the UAE, which was effective from the beginning of2024. 

We generated strong cash flows, with AED 1,189 million from operations and AED 971 million in free cash flows. We used our surplus cash to 
optimize balance sheet and reduce debt, saving 15% in net financial costs. Our balance sheet is stronger, with an improved net debt to EBITDA ratio 
of 3.7x compared to 4.1x at the end of 2023. 

Thanks to strong overall performance, the CompanyΩs board recommended a cash dividend of 15.5 fils (AED) per share for 2024. In the last 5 years, 
cash dividend per share paid by Tabreed has increased at a compounded annual growth rate of 8%. This shows the BoardΩs commitment to 
consistently grow and deliver attractive returns for our shareholders.

Looking ahead, we aim to grow our connected capacity by 3% to 5% annually over 2025 to 2027. This growth will come from ongoing projects and 
new ones expected in the next two years. We are exploring more opportunities, both organically and through acquisitions, to accelerate growth in 
our core market of UAE and internationally.

Our strategic plans position us well to meet the increasing demand for sustainable district cooling solutions. District cooling will be key to achieving 
Net Zero emissions targets in the region. New technologies like thermal energy storage and renewable energy will further makedistrict cooling a 
smart and sustainable choice.

The future looks bright with many new prospects in the pipeline. Our expertise and strong track record will help us capitalize on these opportunities, 
ensuring value accretion for our shareholders and contributing to a sustainable future.

Thank you for your continued support and trust in our company.
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Adel Salem 
Al Wahedi
CFO, Tabreed
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CONNECTED CAPACITY AND VOLUMES

UAE 724 928 1,025 1,060 1,053 1,066

Bahrain 28 32 33 34 37 37

Oman 32 32 33 52 53 55

India - - - - 1 4

Egypt - - - - 3 4.5

Total Consolidated 1,123 992 1,091 1,146 1,146 1,166

Equity Accounted

UAE 71 71 9 9 33 33

KSA 110 110 110 110 124 126

Total Equity Accounted1 181 181 119 119 157 159

Total Capacity (k RT) 965 1,174 1,210 1,264 1,303 1,325

Consolidated Consumption Volumes (billion RTh) 1.53 1.72 2.12 2.35 2.52 2.66

Consolidated 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

1 Represents 100% share of equity accounted capacity, where TabreedΩs share is 50% in UAE and 21.8% in KSA
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GROUP PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

Group Connected Capacity (k RT) Group Revenue (AEDm)

Å The GroupΩs connected capacity increased at an average growth rate of 7% p.a. over the 
past five years, strengthening the CompanyΩs local, regional and international presence.

Å In the last five years, Tabreed has added around 380k RTs (including acquisitions) or addition 
of ~77k RT per year.

Å During 2024, Tabreed continued to add capacity, delivering 23.8 k RTs of additional capacity 
(before disposals and load adjustments), mainly driven by organic growth in the UAE.

Å GCC & other countries in international markets have also contributed to the growth in 
connected capacity with addition of newprojects in India, Oman, Saudi Arabia and India.

Å Group Revenue increased at a robust CAGR of 10% over 2019-24, driven by organic growth 
as well as large acquisitions in 2020 and 2021.

Å 2024 Revenue increased by 1% compared to 2023, driven by new connections, increased 
consumption volumes and CPI increase. However, the growth was partly offset by 
deconsolidation of TabreedParks Investments and one-off CPI gains recorded in 2023.

Å TabreedΩsutility-like business model with long-term contracts and credit worthy customers 
allows highly stable and predictable returns and resilient profitability margins.

795 
999 1,034 1,069 1,086 1,099 

170 
175 176 196 218 226 965 

1,174 1,210 1,264 1,303 1,325 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

UAE Others (excl. Qatar)

1,456 1,687 1,882 2,141 2,333 2,346 
64 

54 73 
75 82 88 

1,520 
1,741 

1,955 
2,216 2,415 2,434 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Chilled Water Value Chain Business

32

Business Review

Business Review

Strategy

Strategy

Market Review

Market Review

/9hΩǎ aŜǎǎŀƎŜ

/9hΩǎ aŜǎǎŀƎŜ

/ƘŀƛǊƳŀƴΩǎ aŜǎǎŀƎŜ

ChairmanΩs Message

 Business Model  Value Creation

Business Model & 
Value Creation

/ChΩǎ wŜǾƛŜǿ

CFOΩs Review

Financial Statements

Financial Statements
Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance
Sustainability Review

Sustainability Review
Strategic Review

Strategic Review
Overview

Overview



Annual Integrated Report 2024

GROUP PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

Group Profits (AED m) Group Profit Margins

Å EBITDA has grown 10% annually since 2019. This is driven by a combination of growth 
through acquisitions, the addition of new customer connections to the portfolio and 
continued focus on operating efficiency and profitability.

Å EBITDA and Normalized Net Profit Before Tax (adjusted for one-offs) reported 5% and 4%   
y-o-y growth respectively in 2024 following resilient profit from operations and reduction in 
net finance cost due to proactive liability management

Å Normalized Net Profit After Tax (adjusted for one-offs) has grown 5% annually since 2019, 
with growth in 2024 impacted by the introduction of corporate tax in the UAE for the first 
time. 

Å Tabreed has delivered stable operating profit margins, demonstrating resilient business 
model that is protected against inflationary risks. 

Å Ability to effectively generate sustainable profits is evident in yearly average EBITDA margin 
of 53% and Profit Before Tax margin of 30% over 2020-24.

Å EBITDA margin remained robust at 51% in FY 2024, while Profit Before Tax margin was 27%, 
broadly coming in line with the historical trends. 

50.2%
55.7% 52.8% 55.6%

49.6% 51.4%

31.1% 31.6% 29.9% 27.1%

17.8%
23.4%29.3% 27.1% 23.3% 23.9%

24.9% 23.4%

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

EBITDA Margin Net Profit Margin Normalized Net Profit Margin

763 
970 1,033 

1,232 1,198 1,252

472 550 585 600 
431 570 

445 471 455 531 603 570 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

EBITDA Net Profit Normalized Net Profit
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GROUP PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

Cashflows (AED m) Return Ratios

Å Net Operating Cash Flows recorded annual growth of 9% while Free Cash Flows grew at 
annual growth of 10% over 2019-24.

Å Capital expenditure of AED 257 million was incurred in 2024 to fuel expansion as we 
completed one new plant in Saadiyatand continued to spend on construction of another 
plant that will be completed next year.

Å Tabreed generated robust free cash flows of AED 971 million in 2024. Consistently growing 
cash flows and sufficient balance sheet capacity provide a strong foundation to deliver 
attractive long-term returns for shareholders through combination of growth and 
sustainable dividend policy.

Å Return on Equity (RoE) improved to 9.0% in 2024, showing an improvement following a 
period of strong acquisition activity over 2020/2021 as incremental profits have been 
generated with minimal capital expenditure in acquired concession areas.

Å Return on Capital Employed also shows an improved trends reflecting ability to grow 
business, extract higher efficiency from its assets and optimize capital structure.

Å Tabreed has also prudently managed its capital allocation to reduce its debt while increasing 
cash returns to shareholders.

782 629 
1,316 1,355 1,285 1,189

595 

(1,967)

337 
1,116 1,186 971

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Net Cash Flows from Operations Free Cash Flows

9.0% 9.1%
7.9% 8.2%

9.5% 9.0%
8.1%

6.3% 6.3% 6.4%
7.8%

7.0%

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Normalized Return on Equity - RoE Return on Capital Employed - RoCE
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GROUP PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

Capital Structure Dividends (AED)

Å 2024 continued to witness improvement in net debt to LTM EBITDA while maintaining 
robust financial strength, indicating growing earnings and strong cash generation.

Å Gearing ratio (Net Debt to Capital) remains at optimal level, reflecting a well-balanced 
capital structure. 

Å Fixed assets dominate the balance sheet, highlighting TabreedΩs capital-intensive business to 
support infrastructure development.

Å Long-term contracts, healthy margins and cash flows visibility underpin ability to deleverage, 
capitalize on growth opportunities and improve shareholdersΩ returns.

Å Dividend has grown at annual rate of 8% over last five years, highlighting focus on delivering 
attractive returns to shareholders.

Å For 2024, the Board has recommended a dividend of 15.5 fils per share, implying a dividend 
payout ratio of 77% (versus average of 68% over 2019-2023).

Å The Board and Management are committed to adopt progressive dividend policy to align 
shareholder returns with the growth in earnings while retaining adequate cash to reinvest in 
expansion of the business and prudently maintain investment grade credit rating.
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3.82 
5.54 5.97 

4.49 4.11 3.70 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

36% 43% 45% 38% 37% 37%

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

0.105 0.115 0.120
0.135

0.155 0.155

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

0.058 0.06

0.058 0.06

Cash Bonus
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GROUP PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

Historical Capacity Guidance vs. Delivery (k RT) Medium-term Guidance1

65 75 

120 120 
100 

84 80 
95 

109 

77 

 2019 - 2020  2020 - 2021  2021 - 2022  2022 - 2023  2023 - 2024

 Guidance  Delivered

3-5% p.a.
2025 - 2027
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1) Basedonvisibilityof projectsalreadysecuredor in advancedstageof discussionwith the customers,materializationof additionalpipelineoffersupsiderisk

2018 Capacity
added

2023 New
Connections

Greenfield M&A Greenfield M&A Medium Term

UAE

Largely driven by the expansion of existing concessions plus new customer 
acquisitions, new plants, and M&A

0.97 Million 
Refrigeration 

Tons (RT)

0.36 Million 
Refrigeration 

Tons (RT)

1.325 Million 
Refrigeration 

Tons (RT)

0.3 Million 
Refrigeration 

Tons (RT)

+7% CAGR
International

The core market sets a clear vision for revenue and achieves
stable growth

New markets have strong positive growth 
potential

New customers and acquisitions in untapped markets such 
as KSA, India, and the MENA/Asia region

Mergers and 
Acquisitions (M&A)

Mergers and 
Acquisitions (M&A)

MediumTermAdded 
Capacity

New PlantsNew PlantsNew 
Connections 

2019 2024
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SEGMENTAL RESULTS

1 1ntercompany eliminations mostly relate to Value Chain Business and thus combined with results of Value Chain Business segmentfor analysis purpose

Chilled Water Business
In terms of chilled water capacity, UAE remains the largest and core market for Tabreed, 
accounting for 83% of connected capacity. Tabreed also has presence in Saudi Arabia, 
Oman, Bahrain, India, and Egypt, which together account for remaining 17% of the 
connected capacity.

Chilled water business accounts for 96% of the GroupΩs total revenue. Chilled water 
revenues consist of fixed capacity charges and variable consumption charges. Chilled water 
revenue reached AED 2,346 million, driven by growth in both fixed and consumption 
charges.

Consumption volumes increased to 2.66 billion RTH, rising by 5% year-over-year. This 
growth is driven by both higher connected capacity and rising demand for cooling.

Revenue 2,434 2,415 1%

Chilled Water 2,346 2,333 1%

Value Chain Business1 88 82 6%

Gross Profit 1,081 1,082 0%

Chilled Water 1.035 1,046 -1%

Value Chain Business1 46 36 30%

EBITDA 1,252 1,198 5%

Chilled Water 1,207 1,159 4%

Value Chain Business1 45 39 16%

Operating Profit 793 806 -2%

Chilled Water 755 773 -2%

Value Chain Business1 38 33 18%

Fixed capacity charges contributed 55% of revenue during 2024 and grew by 2% based on additions 
to connected capacity over last 12 months and CPI indexation.

Variable consumption charges, which made up the remaining 45% of the chilled water revenue, 
recorded an increase of 5% over previous year.

AED million 2024 2023 YoY %

Fixed
55%

Variable
45%

Chilled Water Revenue Breakdown
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SEGMENTAL RESULTS

1 1ntercompany eliminations mostly relate to Value Chain Business and thus combined with results of Value Chain Business segmentfor analysis purpose

Growth in fixed capacity charges and consumption charges was partially offset by increase in finance lease amortization and deconsolidation of one our assets in Q3 
2023 following 50% stake sale, leading to lower reported growth in chilled water revenue. 

Chilled water EBITDA increased by 4% compared to the last year. Driven by higher revenue and tight control on costs. Chilled water operating profit declined 
marginally due to impact of one-off CPI gain in the previous year.

Value chain business supports core Chilled Water business by providing manufactured products (pre-insulated pipes) and services (water treatment, customer billing, 
energy efficiency consultancy for customers).

Value chain revenue reached AED 88 million, reporting growth of 6% versus last year. 

This was driven by increase in revenue from Tabreed Energy Services and metering, billing and payment collection services undertaken through our subsidiary 
Tasleem.

EBITDA and operating profit of value chain business also showed strong growth to reflect higher revenue and proportionately lessincrease in operating costs. 

Value Chain Business
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SUSTAINABILITY FRAMEWORK

Tabreed reaffirms its commitment to 
sustainability and climate action by 
embedding Environmental, Social, 
and Governance (ESG) principles 
into its operations and long-term 
strategy. Moving forward, Tabreed 
continues to build on its successes, 
driving deeper integration of ESG 

frameworks into its operations while 
pursuing innovative initiatives that 

address climate challenges and 
foster a low-carbon future. 

TabreedΩs ESG initiatives remain 
aligned with the UAEΩs Net Zero by 

2050 strategy and international 
sustainability standards.

1.Environmental Stewardship
ÅContinuously reducing 

greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions 
and energy consumption 
through energy efficiency 
measures, technological 
advancements, innovation, and 
strategic partnerships.

ÅExpanding the use of Treated 
Sewage Effluent (TSE) in cooling 
operations to conserve 
freshwater resources.

Å Integration and scaling of 
renewable energy solutions such 
as geothermal cooling and solar 
technologies.

2.Social Responsibility
ÅStrengthening employee 

engagement, building on the 
current high engagement score, 
through targeted initiatives.

ÅStrengthening Corporate Social 
Responsibility programs to 
address local community needs 
while fostering climate resilience 
and sustainable development.

3.Governance Excellence
ÅMaintaining accountability and 

transparency by adhering to 
global ESG reporting standards, 
including the Global Reporting 
Initiative (GRI).

Å Leveraging green financing tools, 
ǎǳŎƘ ŀǎ ǘƘŜ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ DǊŜŜƴ 
Financing Framework to fund 
future low-carbon 
infrastructure.

ÅStrengthening oversight 
mechanisms to ensure 
alignment with ESG goals and 
ongoing progress monitoring.

¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ 9{D ŦǊŀƳŜǿƻǊƪ ƛǎ ōǳƛƭǘ ƻƴ ǘƘǊŜŜ ŎƻǊŜ ǇƛƭƭŀǊǎ
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MATERIALITY DRIVEN FOCUS AREAS

TabreedΩs materiality assessment continues to prioritize the following key areas: 

ÅHealth, Safety and Well-being: Fostering a culture of safety and implementing rigorous health and 
safety standards.

ÅWater Management: Scaling TSE usage and exploring advanced water recycling technologies to 
reduce reliance on freshwater resources.

ÅEnergy Efficiency & Optimisation: Expanding the deployment of low-carbon and innovative cooling 
technologies to reduce emissions and enhance operational efficiency.

ÅClimate Change Mitigation: Enhancing infrastructure resilience to mitigate the impacts of climate 
change, ensuring operational continuity during extreme weather events.

ÅEmployee Engagement & Development: Strengthening workforce training, inclusion initiatives, and 
employee satisfaction programs to maintain high engagement levels.

These priorities guide TabreedΩs evolving ESG strategy, ensuring relevance and alignment with 
stakeholder expectations and regulatory requirements.

A new materiality assessment is scheduled to commence, and the focus areas will be realigned based 
on the results to address the evolving interests, expectations, and perspectives of our stakeholders.

Materiality Matrix
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ÅAchieved 2.64 billion kWh in energy savings, 
equivalent to powering over 150,000 homes 
annually, with plans to scale these savings further.

Å!ǾƻƛŘŜŘ мΦру Ƴƛƭƭƛƻƴ ǘƻƴǎ ƻŦ /hі ŜƳƛǎǎƛƻƴǎΣ 
comparable to removing 343,000 cars from the 
roads, through district cooling.

ÅSecured Verified Carbon Standard (VCS) 
certification for one cooling plant, enabling the 
generation of carbon credits (currently underway), 
with additional certifications targeted for new 
district cooling plants.

Environmental Achievements

Å The AED 600 million Green Revolving Credit Facility 
is set to support substantial future investments in 
renewable energy projects and infrastructure 
enhancements

Å Improved ESG data transparency by aligning with 
Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) standards and 
other internationally recognized frameworks, with 
additional reporting enhancements underway

ÅActively participated in COP29 Azerbaijan 
discussions, emphasizing the critical role of district 
cooling as a long-term sustainable solution to 
ŎƭƛƳŀǘŜ ŎƘŀƴƎŜ ŀƴŘ ƘƛƎƘƭƛƎƘǘƛƴƎ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ 
leadership in promoting innovative, low-carbon 
technologies on the global stage.

Governance Milestones

Å Fostered employee engagement through 
sustainability initiatives such as Mangrove Planting 
& Kayaking and Beach Clean-up, contributing to 
marine conservation and climate change mitigation 
efforts.

ÅCreated meaningful social impact through targeted 
initiatives that foster community well-being, 
empower individuals, and drive sustainable 
development. These include hosting a Ramadan 
Iftar Tent, providing meals to 100 individuals daily 
for 30 days, and installing solar panels for cooling 
and lighting at four mosques in India, promoting 
renewable energy. The company supports 
education through its Back-to-School program, 
offering school supplies to 260 students, and 
fosters inclusion with its Sustainable Farm project 
for people of determination.

Social Impact

PROGRESS ON SUSTAINABILITY JOURNEY
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NET ZERO COMMITMENT AND DECARBONIZATION PRINCIPLES

These principles guide 
TabreedΩs ongoing 
journey toward 

decarbonization, 
ensuring sustained 

progress in reducing its 
carbon footprint and 
driving low-carbon 

solutions

Tabreed reaffirms its unwavering commitment to achieving Net Zero by 2050, leveraging the 
decarbonization initiatives launched in 2023. As a proud signatory of the Non-State Actor Supporters of 
the Global Cooling Pledge under the United Nations Environment Programme(UNEP), Tabreed actively 
contributes to global climate action.

In 2024, the company remained focused on advancing its six core decarbonization principles to drive 
meaningful progress toward its sustainability goals:

Å Energy Efficiency & Optimisation: Expanding optimisation efforts across district cooling systems to 
achieve further reductions in energy consumption and emissions.

Å Technology Upgrades:Upgrading the district cooling systems with the latest innovations to enhance 
operational efficiency and reduce environmental footprint.

Å Renewable Energy Integration: Scaling renewable energy projects in the long term, including solar PV 
and geothermal technologies.

Å Innovation & Strategic Partnerships: Strengthening partnerships with governments, industries, and 
communities to scale sustainable solutions and collectively address climate challenges.

Å Supply Chain Management & Decarbonization: Collaborating with suppliers to align procurement 
practices with our Net Zero targets, ensuring environmentally sustainable and socially responsible 
sourcing.

Å Compensating for Residual Emissions through Offsetting: Expanding the scope of VCS certifications to 
include new district cooling plants, enabling participation in carbon markets.
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ACCOLADES 

In 2024, Tabreed was recognized for its unwavering commitment to sustainability 
and operational excellence with several prestigious accolades:

Å Geothermal Power Project of the Year ςGold, Asian Power Awards 
Singapore

Å District Cooling Initiative of the Year ςUAE, Asian Power Awards Singapore

Å People-Focused CEO of the Year, HRM Summit 2024

Å Best ESG & Sustainability Report in the Middle East ςMid-cap, MEIRA

Å Silver: Best Employee Wellbeing, GSA

Å Bronze: Excellence in Talent Acquisition and Retention, SHRM 

Looking Ahead

Building on the successes of prior 
years, Tabreed will continue to lead 

in sustainable district cooling by 
scaling renewable energy projects, 
enhancing operational resilience 

against climate risks, and integrating 
ESG principles into every facet of its 
operations. The company remains 

steadfast in its commitment to 
driving innovation, reducing 

environmental impact, and creating 
long-term value for stakeholders
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SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE
This section entails TabreedˬsESG performance in 2024, covering operations in UAE. The information isin compliancewith DFM's updated ESG Reporting Guide, a set of 25 metrics and 89 indicators.Tabreed
will publish its full SustainabilityReport 2024 in accordance with the GRI Standards and in alignment with UN Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs)and GHG Protocol in Q2 of 2025.

45

Environmental
Metrics Indicators Sub-Indicators Unit Tabreed 2024 Data

Corresponding 
GRI Standards SDGs

E1. GHG Emissions

E1.1) Total amount in CO2

equivalents, for Scope 1

GHG Emissions Scope 1 tCO2e 45,194 GRI 305: Emissions 

2016

E1.2) Total amount in CO2

equivalents, for Scope 2

GHG Emissions Scope 2

(via National Utility)

tCO2e 588,120*

E1.3) Total amount of Scope 

3 emissions

GHG EmissionsScope 3 tCO2e Tabreed is in the process of identifying relevant Scope 3 categories. The identified scope 3 categories will be 

detailed in our 2024 ESG Report.

E1.4) Please describe 

investments, initiatives and 

projects to reduce CO2

emissions

Å Geothermal Energy:Geothermal wells provide hot water, which can be used for cooling. This process 
reduces the reliance on electricity and consequently lowers emissions.

Å Thin-Film Solar Technology: Flexible HyEtsilicon modules efficiently generate power on various 
surfaces, including curved ones like storage tanks. This adaptability makes them ideal for diverse 
applications.

Å Efficient VFD Motors:The deployment of Variable Frequency Drive (VFD) motors improves energy 
efficiency, contributing to emission reductions.

Å Thermal Energy Storage: Implementing thermal energy storage helps optimize energy usage and 
reduces peak demand, leading to lower emissions.

Å Solar Plants:Solar power generation, exemplified by a 1.2MW pilot project across two district cooling 
plants, provides clean energy and reduces reliance on fossil fuels.

Å Passive Radiative Cooling: SkycoolSystems panels utilize passive radiative cooling, a process that 
dissipates heat without consuming energy, thus contributing to emission reduction.

Å Transportation Initiatives: Promoting carpooling and increased metro use reduces the number of 
vehicles on the road, lessening traffic congestion and associated emissions.

E2. Emissions 
Intensity

E2. 1) GHG emissions 

intensity

Total GHG Emissions/
Refrigeration ton-hour 
production

Kg CO2e/Ton-Hr
Refrigeration
Produced

0.25

E2. 2) Non-GHG emissions 

intensity

Total non-GHG Emissions/
Production Units

-

*Calculated based on emission factors as per UAEΩs energy mix

GRI 305 -
Emissions 2016
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Environmental
Metrics Indicators Sub-Indicators Unit Tabreed 2024 Data

Corresponding 
GRI Standards SDGs

E3. Energy Usage

E3.1) Total amount of 

direct energy consumed

Petrol Litres 1,105,522 (38.48 TJ) GRI 302:

Energy2016

Diesel Litres 3,820 (0.15 TJ)

Natural Gas m3 2,616,143 (103.60 TJ)

E3.2) Total amount of 

indirect energy consumed

Electricity (via National 
Utility)

kWh 2,127,345,976

Internally generated 
electricity (via Natural 
Gas)

kWh 23,856,895 

E4. Energy Intensity

E4.1) Direct energy use 

intensity

Total direct energy 
consumption/
Refrigeration ton-hour 
production

MJ/Refrigeration 
ton-hour 
production

0.06

E4.2) Indirect energy 

useintensity

Total indirect energy 
consumption/
Refrigeration ton-hour 
production

MJ/Refrigeration 
ton-hour 
production

2.98

E4.3) Total energy 

intensity

Total energy 
consumption/
Refrigeration ton-hour 
production

MJ/Refrigeration 
ton-hour 
production

3.04
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Environmental
Metrics Indicators Unit Tabreed 2024 Data

Corresponding 
GRI Standards SDGs

E4. Energy Intensity

E4.4) Please describe investments, initiatives and 
projects to reduce energy consumption and to increase 
energy efficiency

Key initiatives include retrofitting chillers with MV drives and pumps with LV drives, utilizing 
thermal energy storage (including participation in a DOE demand response project), and 
operating a geothermal plant. Solar panels are also used to power plant auxiliaries.Efficiency 
improvements are being pursued through several initiatives.Maxwell Technology, which 
demonstrated an 8.4% efficiency increase in a pilot installation, is being deployed in three 
additional district cooling plants, with an expected 10% improvement. EndoCool, an organic 
heat transfer fluid additive, achieved a 15.8% energy savings in a pilot study at a Mumbai facility 
and is being considered for broader implementation.Finally, condenser pumps were 
retrofitted with VFDs in four plants, and chiller motors were retrofitted for VFD compatibility in 
one plant as part of an ongoing VFD retrofit project. 

GRI 302: Energy 
2016

E5. Energy Mix

E5.1) Renewable energy used GJ, MWh or % 15,413.23 GJ GRI 302: Energy 
2016

E5.2) Non-renewable energy used GJ, MWh or % Petrol ς0.493% 
Diesel ς0.002% 
Natural Gas ς1.328% 
Electricity (via National Utility) - 98.177% 

E6. Water and 
Effluents

E6.1) Total amountof water withdrawn m3 2,407,269 GRI 
303:Waterand 
Effluents 2018

E6.2) Total amountof water discharged m3 677,541
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Environmental
Metrics Indicators Unit Tabreed 2024 Data

Corresponding 
GRI Standards SDGs

E6. Water and 
Effluents

E6.3) Total amount of water consumed (if possible, a 

breakdown by source)

m3 18,849,447 GRI303:Water 
andEffluents2018

E6.4) Water intensity m3 water 
consumed/ 
Refrigeration ton 
hour production

0.0073

E6.5) Water recycled (if applicable) m3 1,212,561

E6.6) Please describe investments, initiatives and 

projects to reduce water consumption and to increase 

water recycling

Tabreed is investing in infrastructure and water systems to improve water efficiency by at least 

20%, including treated sewage effluent (TSE) and a seawater plant in Bahrain. Water recycling 

initiatives in Abu Dhabi include pursuing TSE connections for sixteen plants, with DOE feasibility 

studies planned for five.In Dubai, cooling tower blowdown is routed through a TSE polishing 

plant for reuse as cooling tower makeup. 
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Environmental
Metrics Indicators Unit Tabreed 2024 Data

Corresponding 
GRI Standards SDGs

E7. Waste

E7.1) Total amount of waste generated (if possible, 

broken down by hazardous and non-hazardous)
-

Non-hazardousς82.8 tonnes GRI306:Waste 
2020

E7.2) Total amount of waste diverted from disposal (if 

possible, broken down by hazardous and non-

hazardous)
-

Hazardous-
Empty chemical cans: 21,870 Pieces 

Waste oil: 41,387 litres

Used batteries: 1,140 Pieces

These hazardous wastes were recycled through approved contractors.

E7.3) Total amount of waste directed to disposal (if 

possible, broken down by hazardous and non-

hazardous)
-

Non-hazardous- 82.8 tonnes

E7.4) Total number and volume of oil spills (if 

applicable)

Number or 
Tonnes

Not applicable

E7.5) Please describe investments, initiatives and 

projects implemented in the year 2023 to reduce 

waste generation consumption and to increase waste 

recycling

-
All generated hazardous waste is recycled through municipality-approved contractors.
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Metrics Indicators Unit Tabreed 2024 Data

Corresponding 
GRI Standards SDGs

E8. Environmental 
Management

E8.1) Does your company follow a formal 

Environmental Policy?

Yes/No Yes, Tabreed has an Environmental Policy GRI2-23, 2-24

E8.2) Does your company follow specific waste, water, 

energy, and/or recycling policies?

Yes/No Yes, Tabreed's integrated management system (IMS) prioritizes and addresses all environment-
related areas, including waste, water, energy, and recycling.

E8.3) Does your company adopt a recognized 

environment and energy management systems such 

as ISO 14001 and ISO 50001?

Yes/No Yes, Tabreed is certified to both ISO 14001 and ISO 50001. 

E8.4) Does your company have targets in place with 

regards to environment, energy, water and waste?

Yes/No Yes, we have established Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) to optimize Power and Water 

consumption in every plant room. We remain committed to exploring and investing in 

innovative solutions to improve operational efficiency and drive sustainable advancements 

across our facilities

E8.5) Please indicate if any fines received for non-

compliance with laws and regulations regarding 

environmental management during the last reporting 

period

Yes/No No
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Corresponding 
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E9. Climate Risk 
Management and 
Oversight

E9.1) Does your Board/Management Team oversee 
and/or manage climate-related risks and 
opportunities? If yes, describe.

Yes/No ¸ŜǎΣ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ 9ȄŜŎǳǘƛǾŜ aŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ¢ŜŀƳΣ ŎƻƳǇǊƛǎƛƴƎ ǎŜƴƛƻǊ ƭŜŀŘŜǊǎƘƛǇ ƛƴŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ 
the CEO, CFO, COO, CDO, CAMO, and CLC, oversees climate-related risks and 
ƻǇǇƻǊǘǳƴƛǘƛŜǎ ŀǎ ǇŀǊǘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ōǊƻŀŘŜǊ 9{D ƎƻǾŜǊƴŀƴŎŜ ǎǘǊǳŎǘǳǊŜΦ ¢Ƙƛǎ ǘŜŀƳΣ 
alongside three additional leaders, also forms the core of the ESG Committee, chaired 
by the CEO, ensuring that sustainability and climate-related risks are embedded in 
corporate decision-making. 
The ESG Committee, includes specialized subcommittees dedicated to Environmental, 
Social, and Governance matters. Additionally, the Executive Management Team has 
been tasked with defining a company-wide ESG objective with clear milestones, which 
ƛǎ ƳŜŀǎǳǊŜŘ ǘƘǊƻǳƎƘ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ŎƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ ǎŎƻǊŜŎŀǊŘΦ ¢Ƙƛǎ ǎǘǊǳŎǘǳǊŜŘ ƎƻǾŜǊƴŀƴŎŜ 
ensures that climate-related risks and opportunities are systematically managed while 
ǊŜƛƴŦƻǊŎƛƴƎ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ ŎƻƳƳƛǘƳŜƴǘ ǘƻ ǎǳǎǘŀƛƴŀōƭŜ ŘƛǎǘǊƛŎǘ ŎƻƻƭƛƴƎ ǎƻƭǳǘƛƻƴǎΦ

GRI 2-12
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Metrics Indicators Unit Tabreed 2024 Data

Corresponding 
GRI Standards SDGs

E9. Climate Risk 
Management and 
Oversight

E9.2) Please describe the climate-related risks and 
opportunities the organization has identified over the 
short, medium and long term.

As climate change continues to reshape business and regulatory landscapes, Tabreed 
faces both physical and transition risks, along with growth opportunities. Physical risks 
stem from the increasing frequency and intensity of extreme weather events, such as 
storms and floods, which can damage infrastructure, disrupt operations, and escalate 
maintenance costs. Transition risks arise from regulatory changes, market shifts, and 
technological advancements that necessitate investment in lower-carbon solutions to 
remain competitive.
However, climate change also presents opportunities. Rising demand for energy-
efficient cooling in high-temperature regions positions district cooling as a preferred 
low-carbon alternative. Favorable regulations, and incentives for sustainable cooling 
infrastructure further support business growth. ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎinvestment in innovative 
technologies, operational resilience, and alignment with UAE Net Zero 2050 initiatives 
enhance its resilience and market position. 

GRI 2-12
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E9. Climate Risk 
Management and 
Oversight

E9.3) Please describe the organization´s processes for 
identifying and assessing climate-related risks

- Tabreed recognizes the importance of understanding and addressing climate-related risks to 
ensure long-term operational resilience and business continuity. To this end, we have 
undertaken an internal assessment based on the Task Force on Climate-related Financial 
Disclosures (TCFD) framework. This foundational step involved evaluating the potential impacts 
of both physical and transition climate-related risks on our operations, financial performance, 
and overall sustainability strategy.
Moving forward, Tabreed is committed to further enhancing the rigor of its climate risk 
assessment process by integrating climate-related risks into our enterprise-wide risk 
management framework, ensuring that these considerations are factored into strategic 
planning and investment decisions.

GRI2-23, 2-24

E9.4) Please describe the impact of climate-related 
Ǌƛǎƪǎ ŀƴŘ ƻǇǇƻǊǘǳƴƛǘƛŜǎ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ƻǊƎŀƴƛȊŀǘƛƻƴΩǎ 
businesses, strategy, and financial planning

- Climate-related risks significantly impact ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎoperations, given its role as a leading district 
cooling provider. Physical risks, such as extreme weather events, can disrupt operations, 
increase infrastructure vulnerabilities and increase maintenance costs. Additionally, market 
shifts toward energy-efficient and low-carbon cooling solutions present both challenges and 
opportunities, as growing customer demand for sustainable cooling drives the need for 
innovation and adaptation.
To address these risks, Tabreed has embedded climate considerations into its corporate 
ǎǘǊŀǘŜƎȅ ŀƴŘ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǇƭŀƴƴƛƴƎΦ ¢Ƙƛǎ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜǎ ŀƭƛƎƴƛƴƎ ǿƛǘƘ ¦!9Ωǎ bŜǘ ½ŜǊƻ нлрл ōȅ ŀŘƻǇǘƛƴƎ 
innovative cooling technologies, integrating renewable energy solutions like geothermal-
powered cooling, and deploying AI-driven efficiency measures to optimize operations. Strategic 
capital investments in infrastructure resilience and exploration of green financing instruments 
and participation in carbon credit markets to fund climate initiatives ensure long-term 
sustainability, enabling Tabreed to mitigate risks while strengthening its market position in the 
transition to a low-carbon economy.

E9.5)Total amount invested, periodically, in climate-
related infrastructure, resilience and product 
development

Monetary value. 
Reporting 
currency,
preferably in USD

USD 457,000
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E9. Climate Risk 
Management and 
Oversight

E9.6) Please describe the greenhouse gas emission targets (Scope1, 
Scope 2 and Scope3) and the related risks

- ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘ ƛǎ ŎƻƳƳƛǘǘŜŘ ǘƻ ǊŜŘǳŎƛƴƎ {ŎƻǇŜ мΣ {ŎƻǇŜ нΣ ŀƴŘ {ŎƻǇŜ о ŜƳƛǎǎƛƻƴǎ ƛƴ ŀƭƛƎƴƳŜƴǘ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ ¦!9Ωǎ bŜǘ ½ŜǊƻ ōȅ нлрл 
initiative. Scope 1 emissions arise from fuel combustion in district cooling plants, which Tabreed mitigates through 
operational efficiency and cleaner technologies. Scope 2 emissions result from purchased electricity, and the company is 
reducing these by enhancing energy efficiency and integrating renewable energy sources. Scope 3 emissions, covering 
indirect emissions across the value chain, are currently being assessed to establish reduction targets and address the 
broader environmental impact of operations.
Risks may include regulatory, reputational, and operational related to its GHG emissions. Stricter compliance requirements 
may increase costs, while stakeholder expectations for sustainability leadership drive the need for transparency and 
continuous improvement. Additionally, climate-related disruptions could impact infrastructure and service reliability. By 
proactively investing in low-carbon solutions and emissions reduction strategies, Tabreed is mitigating these risks while 
reinforcing its position as a leader in sustainable district cooling.

GRI2-23, 2-24

E9.7) Please share your actions to align with UAE's Net Zero 
Commitment by 2050. Do you have a net zero emissions target in 
place?

- ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘ ƛǎ ŀŎǘƛǾŜƭȅ ǎǳǇǇƻǊǘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ¦!9Ωǎ bŜǘ ½ŜǊƻ ōȅ нлрл ŎƻƳƳƛǘƳŜƴǘ ǘƘǊƻǳƎƘ ŀ ŎƻƳǇǊŜƘŜƴǎƛǾŜ ŘŜŎŀǊōƻƴƛǎŀǘƛƻƴ ǎǘǊŀǘŜƎȅ 
focused on energy efficiency, renewable integration, and technological innovation. In March 2023, Tabreed reinforced this 
commitment by signing the UAE Climate-Responsible Companies Pledge.
To further align with Net Zero goals, Tabreed has pioneered renewable energy solutions, including the G2COOL 
geothermal-powered district cooling plant in partnership with ADNOC. The company is also deploying AI-driven digital 
solutions to optimise cooling efficiency. Additionally, Tabreed participates in carbon credit markets and clean energy 
certificate programmes, reinforcing its commitment to sustainable cooling infrastructure and reducing its overall carbon 
footprint.
Through these strategic actions, Tabreed is contributing significantly to the UAE's goal of achieving net-zero emissions by 
2050, positioning itself as a leader in sustainable district cooling solutions.

E10. Biodiversity

E10.1) Please share number of operational sites owned, managed 
and/or leased in or adjacent to protected areas and areas of high 
biodiversity value.

- 19 plants GRI 304: 

Biodiversity 2016

E10.2) Please describe significant impacts of activities, products and 
services on biodiversity 

- ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ ŀŎǘƛǾƛǘƛŜǎ ƛƴǘŜǊŀŎǘ ǿƛǘƘ ōƛƻŘƛǾŜǊǎƛǘȅ ǇǊƛƳŀǊƛƭȅ ǘƘǊƻǳƎƘ ǿŀǘŜǊ ǳǎŀƎŜΣ ƛƴŦǊŀǎǘǊǳŎǘǳǊŜ ŘŜǾŜƭƻǇƳŜƴǘΣ ŜƴŜǊƎȅ 
consumption, and chemical management. District cooling systems require water for efficient operation, and while the 
company implements water conservation measures, resource use may still have localized effects on aquatic ecosystems. 
Infrastructure expansion is carefully planned to minimize habitat disturbance, and while district cooling is more energy-
efficient than conventional cooling, indirect emissions are continuously being reduced through efficiency improvements 
and renewable energy integration.
To further enhance environmental stewardship, Tabreed employs water recycling, AI-driven efficiency solutions, and strict 
environmental compliance measures to reduce potential impacts. Additionally, Tabreed actively contributes to ecosystem 
restoration efforts, including beach clean-up to reduce marine pollution and mangrove planting initiatives that support 
coastal biodiversity, enhance carbon sequestration, and protect shorelines from erosion.
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SocialMetrics Indicators Sub-Indicators Unit Tabreed 2024 Data
Corresponding 
GRI Standards SDGs

S1. CEO Pay Ratio

S1.1) Ratio: CEO total fixed compensation to median 

Full Time Equivalent (FTE) total fixed compensation

i.e. 1:1 or 1:1.8 or 

1:7.5

1:0.040 GRI 102: General 

Disclosures 2016

S1.2) Does your company report this metric in 

regulatory filings?

Yes/No Yes

S2. Breakdown with 
Staff

S2.1) Please share the 

total enterprise 

headcountheld by full-

time employees(broken 

down by,gender, age 

andseniority level)

Total Number 903 GRI 2-7, 405-1

Male Number & % 822 (92%) 

Female Number & % 81 (8%)

Employees aged under 30 
years

Number & % 55 (6%) 

Employees aged between 
30-50 years

Number & % 682 (76%) 

Employees aged above 50 
years

Number & % 166 (18%) 

Employees from Staff Number & % 771 (85%) 

Employees from Middle 
Management

Number & % 115 (13%) 

Employees from Senior 
Management & 
Executives

Number & % 17 (2%) 
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SocialMetrics Indicators Sub-Indicators Unit Tabreed 2024 Data
Corresponding 
GRI Standards SDGs

S2. Breakdown with 
Staff

S2.2)Please share the 

total enterprise 

headcount held by 

*temporary employees 

(broken down by, gender, 

age and senioritylevel)

*Tabreed has no separate 

category for part-time 

employees, but it has two 

broad categories of full 

time and temporary 

employees. Temporary 

employees are 

represented by 

contractors and/or 

consultants

Male Number and % 201 (95%) GRI 2-7, 405-1

Female Number and % 10 (5%) 

Employees aged under 30 

years
Number and % 42 (20%)

Employees aged between 

30-50 years
Number and % 163 (77%)

Employees aged above 50 

years
Number and % 6 (3%) 

Employees from Staff Number and % 211 (100%)

Employees from Middle 

Management
Number and % 0

Employees from Senior 

Management & 

Executives

Number and % 0

S2.3) Please share the total enterprise headcount held 
by contractors and/or consultants

Number 211 
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SocialMetrics Indicators Sub-Indicators Unit Tabreed 2024 Data
Corresponding 
GRI Standards SDGs

S2. Breakdown with 
Staff

S2.4) Please share the 
total of national 
employees (broken down 
by, gender, age and 
seniority level)

Male Number and % 49 (53%) GRI 2-7, 405-1

Female Number and % 44 (47%)

Employees aged under 30 

years
Number and % 28 (30%) 

Employees aged between 

30-50 years
Number and % 57 (61%) 

Employees aged above 50 

years
Number and % 8 (9%)

Employees from Staff Number and % 64 (69%)

Employees from Middle 

Management
Number and % 20 (21%)

Employees from Senior 

Management & 

Executives

Number and % 9 (10%)
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SocialMetrics Indicators Sub-Indicators Unit Tabreed 2024 Data
Corresponding 
GRI Standards SDGs

S3. Employee 
Turnover and New 
Hires

S3.1) Year-over-year 
change for full-time 
employees (broken down 
by gender, age, and 
seniority level)

Male Number and % 70 (82%) GRI 401-1

Female Number and % 15 (18%) 

Employees aged under 30 

years
Number and % 6 (7%) 

Employees aged between 

30-50 years
Number and % 70 (82%) 

Employees aged above 50 

years
Number and % 9 (11%) 

Employees from Staff Number and % 69 (81%)

Employees from Middle 

Management
Number and % 13 (15%)

Employees from Senior 

Management & 

Executives

Number and % 3 (4%)

S3.2) Year-over-yearchange for part-time employees Number and % Not applicable. Tabreed has no separate category for part-time employees. 
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SocialMetrics Indicators Sub-Indicators Unit Tabreed 2024 Data
Corresponding 
GRI Standards SDGs

S3. Employee 
Turnover and New 
Hires

S3.3) Year-over-year change for contractors and/or 
consultants

Number and % 79 (60%) GRI 2-8

S3.4)Year-over-year of 
new hires (broken down 
by age, gender and 
seniority level)

Total
Number

31 GRI 401-1

Male Number & % 26 (84%)

Female Number & % 5 (16%)

Employees aged under 30 

years
Number & % 13 (42%)

Employees aged between 

30-50 years
Number & % 16 (52%)

Employees aged above 50 
years

Number & % 2 (6%)

Employees from Staff Number & % 23 (74%)

Employees from Middle 
Management

Number & % 8 (26%)

Employees from Senior 
Management & 
Executives

Number & % 0 (0%)
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SocialMetrics Indicators Sub-Indicators Unit Tabreed 2024 Data
Corresponding 
GRI Standards SDGs

S4. Gender Diversity 
and Equality

S4.1) Total enterprise 
headcount held by men 
and women

Male Number and % 1023 (92%) 
GRI 2-9; 405-1

Female Number and % 91 (8%) 

S4.2) Total entry and mid-
level positions held by 
men and women

Entry Level: Male Number and % 569 (51.1%)

Entry Level: Female Number and % 7 (0.6%)

Mid-Level: Male Number and % 337 (30.2%)

Mid-Level: Female Number and % 69 (6.2%)

S4.3) Total senior and 
executive-level positions 
held by men and women

Senior Level: Male Number and % 103 (9.2%)

Senior Level: Female Number and % 12 (1.1%)

Executive Level: Male Number and % 14 (1.3%)

Executive Level: Female Number and % 3 (0.3%) 

S4.4) The ratio of median male employee 
compensation to median female employee 
compensation

Number 1:3.41
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SocialMetrics Indicators Unit Tabreed 2024 Data
Corresponding 
GRI Standards SDGs

S4. Gender Diversity 
and Equality

S4.5) Pleasedescribe your company's initiatives or 

programs to support the recruitment and retention of 

female employees, and to support female employees to 

advance to management positions.

Tabreed's female employees have actively participated in transformative training programs, such 
as the Coaching/ Strength Coach and HawkamahDirectors Development Program (for Board 
Members). These leadership-focused initiatives have empowered the female employees to 
enhance their skills and make meaningful contributions to the workplace. Through these 
programs, they gained valuable insights and strategies to excel in leadership roles. In celebration 
ƻŦ ²ƻƳŜƴΩǎ 5ŀȅΣ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘ ƻǊƎŀƴƛȊŜŘ ŀ ƘŀƭŦ-day workshop for all female employees, recognizing 
and honoringtheir achievements and contributions. The organization is analysing the results of the 
Culture and Engagement Survey to better understand the challenges faced by women employees 
in the workplace. Based on these insights, they will take focused actions to address and support 
their needs.

GRI2-23

S5. HumanRights

S5.1) Does your company follow a harassment and/or 
non-discrimination policy?

Yes/No

Yes, Tabreed has a Diversity Equity & Inclusion (DE&I) Policy which is committed to creating an 
inclusive workplace for all. The organization also has a Human Rights Policy which acts in 
accordance with Conventions no. 100 and 111 on non-discrimination. 

S5.2) Does your company have a formal grievance 
mechanism in place?

Yes/No

Yes, Tabreed has developed in its Code of Conduct a reporting process for any grievance or 

complaints, which is known as the Employee Assurance and Resolution System (EARS). Complaints 

can be made anonymously, by telephone or online as preferred. The Code is made available to all 

employees and employees undertake annual training to refresh their knowledge of the Code. 

S5.3) Does your company follow a child and/or forced 
labor policy?

Yes/No
¸ŜǎΣ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ IǳƳŀƴ ǊƛƎƘǘǎ ǇƻƭƛŎȅ ŜƴǎǳǊŜǎ ǘƘŀǘ ƴƻ ŦƻǊŎŜŘ labourhappens within their operations. 
Suppliers are required to read and acknowledge this policy during the onboarding process.

S5.4) Does your company follow a human rights policy?Yes/No Yes, Tabreed has a Human rights Policy. 

S5.5) Does your company provide training on human 
rights and related internal policies for your employees? Yes/No

Yes. Tabreed's employees, contractors and suppliersare made aware of various policies (like 
Sexual Harassment Policy) including the Human Rights policy and are expected to adhere to 
them. 

GRI 404-1
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SocialMetrics Indicators Unit Tabreed 2024 Data
Corresponding 
GRI Standards SDGs

S6. Health andSafety

S6.1) Does your company follow an occupational 

health and safety policy?

Yes/No Yes, Tabreed has in place integrated management system (IMS) which deals with the health and 
safety of the employees. All employees, contractors, and stakeholders are expected to align 
with this policy to achieve and maintain excellence in IMS performance.

GRI2-23

S6.2) Does your company adopt a recognized health 

and safety management systems such as ISO 45001?

Yes/No Yes, Tabreed has an Occupational Health & Safety Management System (ISO 45001:2018) in 
place.

S6.3) Please share the total employee and total 

contractors (if available) manhours

Hours Total man-hours: 3,376,713 
Total full-time employee manhours: 2,,304,473 
¢ƻǘŀƭ ŎƻƴǘǊŀŎǘƻǊǎΩ ƳŀƴƘƻǳǊǎΥ мΣлтнΣнпл

GRI 403-9

S6.4) Please share the total employee fatalities Number 0 GRI 403-9

S6.5) Please share the employee lost time injury (LTI)Number 1 (The incident causing the injury happened at the AD-012 plant) 

S6.6) Please share the lost time injury frequency (LTIF)Number 0.29 GRI 403-9

S6.7) Please share the total health and safety training 

provided to employees

Number
13,923 hours ςInclusive of all HSE trainings (Internal, external, SLOT and HSE E-Learning) 

GRI 403-9
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SocialMetrics Indicators Sub-Indicators Unit Tabreed 2024 Data
Corresponding 
GRI Standards SDGs

S7. Community 
Engagement

S7.1) Please share the 
total amount invested in 
the community, including 
philanthropy, donations 
and sponsorships

Amount invested /
Yearly revenue
in reporting currency

% (AED) Tabreed invested AED 300,000 in various CSR initiatives. These include sponsoring the Red 
Crescent Ramadan Iftar Tent, funding solar panels for cooling and lighting at four mosques in 
India, supporting school supplies for 260 students through the Back-to-School initiative, 
contributing to the Sustainable Farm project at the Dubai Club for People of Determination, and 
supporting environmental efforts such as mangrove planting and beach clean-up activities.

GRI 413

S7.2) Please share the total employee 
volunteeringcompleted during the reporting period

Number A total of 100 employees participated in  the above-mentioned CSR initiatives, demonstrating 

¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎcommitment to community engagement and development.
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Governance
Metrics Indicators Sub-Indicators Unit Tabreed 2024 Data

Corresponding 
GRI Standards SDGs

G1. Board Diversity

G1.1) Total board seats 
occupied by men & 
women

Men Number and %
7 (78%) GRI 405-1

Women Number and %
2 (22%) 

G1.2) Total committee 

chairs occupied by men & 

women

Men %
6 (86%)

Women %
1 (14%)

G2. Board 
Independence

G2.1) Does company prohibit the CEO from serving as 

board chair?
Yes/No

Yes GRI 405-1

G2.2) Please share the total board seats occupied by 

independents
%

100%

G3. Collective 
Bargaining

G3) Please share the total enterprise headcount 

covered by collective bargaining agreement(s)

%
Collective bargaining is not permitted within the UAE

GRI 2-30
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Governance 
Metrics Indicators Unit Tabreed 2024 Data

Corresponding 
GRI Standards SDGs

G4. Supply Chain 
Management

G4.1) Are your vendors or suppliers required to follow 

a Code of Conduct?

Yes/No ¸ŜǎΣ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜǎ ŀƭƭ ƛǘǎ ǎǳǇǇƭƛŜǊǎ ǘƻ ŀŘƘŜǊŜ ǘƻ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ {ǳǇǇƭƛŜǊ /ƻŘŜ ƻŦ /ƻƴŘǳŎǘΦ

https://www.tabreed.ae/wp-content/uploads/2024/03/Supplier_Code_of_Conduct_12024.pdf

G4.2) If yes, what percentage of your suppliers 

areformally certified and compliant with the Code?

% 100%. All suppliers are required to align with our Code of Conduct. GRI 308-1

G4.3) Please share the suppliers that underwent 
asupplier's environmental audit during the 
reportingperiod

Number/% 288 suppliers went through screening GRI 414-1

G4.4) Please share the suppliers that underwent 

asupplier's social audit during the reporting period

Number/% 100%. All suppliers go through a comprehensive process where they are assessed for social 

impacts.

GRI 308-1, 414-1

G4.5) Please share the new suppliers receiving warning 

due to the environmental/social screening

Number/% 0 GRI 2-19
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Governance
Metrics Indicators Unit Tabreed 2024 Data

Corresponding 
GRI Standards SDGs

G5. Ethics & Anti-
corruption

G5.1) Does your company follow an Ethics and/or Anti-

Corruption policy?

Yes/No ¸ŜǎΣ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ /ƻŘŜ ƻŦ /ƻƴŘǳŎǘ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜǎ ŦƻǊ !ƴǘƛ /ƻǊǊǳǇǘƛƻƴ behavior, understanding what is 

expected from employees and reporting channels. 

GRI 2-23

G5.2) Please share the workforce formally compliant 

with the Anti-Corruption Policy

% 100% GRI 205-2

G5.3) Please share the confirmed incidents of 

corruption during the reporting period

Number 0 GRI 205-3

G5.4) Please share the corrective measures taken 

corresponding to the confirmed incidents of corruption 

(in case of any)

Text Not applicable, as zero cases reported GRI 205-4

G6. Data Security

G6.1) Does your company follow a Data Privacy policy?Yes/No Tabreed is working on finalising this policy. GRI 418-1

G6.2) Has your company taken steps to comply with 

GDPR rules or similar standards? 

Yes/No Tabreed operates in the UAE, Bahrain, Oman, India and Egypt and has no operations Europe, so 

GDPR compliance is not particularly relevant to our operations. Having said, this we do take 

steps to protect company and customer data and will further enhance protections in months 

ahead in line with legal requirements. 

G6.3) Data security breaches during the reporting 

period (if any)

Number Not applicable, as Tabreed is not dealing with any entity in America or Europe GRI 418-1
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Governance
Metrics Indicators Unit Tabreed 2024 Data

Corresponding 
GRI Standards SDGs

G7. Sustainability 
Practices

G7.1) Does your company publish a sustainability 

report?

Yes/No Yes

G7.2) Does your company publish a GRI, WEF, SASB, 

IIRC, UNGC or CDP based reporting?

Yes/No Yes, Tabreed'sSustainability Report adheres to the SCA regulations. The report is prepared in 
accordance with GRI standards and is aligned with the SDGs most relevant to its business 
activities.

G7.3) Does your company provide training to its 
employees regarding regulatory topics related to 
sustainability (environment, human rights, ethics, etc)?

Yes/No
Yes GRI 404-1

G7.4) Please share the total sustainability related 

training provided to employees

Number/Text 848 hours training related to Sustainability, Environment and Energy. 

104 hours for governance and 194 hours for DE&I related. 

Tabreed's Compliance team maintains on an annual and regular basis, the online training for all 

its corporate staff on Anti- Bribery and Corruption.

GRI 404-2

G8. External 
Assurance

G8.1) Are your sustainability disclosures assured or 

validated by a third party?

Yes/No No GRI 2-5
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Thisreport coversthe ESGdatafor the year2024only to maintainconsistencywith the requirements.

Tabreed'sDFMcompliantESGrequirementsfor the year2021and2022werereported in its AnnualReport2022,

Åhttps://www .tabreed.ae/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/2022-Annual-Report-En.pdf

Tabreed'sDFMcompliantESGrequirementsfor the year2023werereported in its AnnualReport2023

Åhttps://www .tabreed.ae/wp-content/uploads/2024/03/2023_Integrated_Annual_Report_En.pdf

Tabreedalsopublishesits full ESGReport,in accordancewith globalreportinginitiative (GRI)Standards.

ÅESGReport2021, https://www .tabreed.ae/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/En-ESG-Report-Tabreed_vF.pdf

ÅESGReport2022, https://www .tabreed.ae/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/Tabreed_ESG_Report_2022.pdf

ÅESGReport2023, https://www .tabreed.ae/wp-content/uploads/2024/06/Tabreed-ESG-Report-2023.pdf
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Board of Directors

Board of Directors

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Dr. Bakheetƛǎ ǘƘŜ 9ȄŜŎǳǘƛǾŜ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ¦!9 LƴŘǳǎǘǊƛŜǎ ǳƴƛǘ ǿƛǘƘƛƴ aǳōŀŘŀƭŀΩǎ ¦!9 LƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘǎ ǇƭŀǘŦƻǊƳΦ ¢ƘŜ ǇƭŀǘŦƻǊƳ ŎƻƴǘǊƛōǳǘŜǎ ǘƻ the acceleration of the 
¦!9Ωǎ ŜŎƻƴƻƳƛŎ ǘǊŀƴǎŦƻǊƳŀǘƛƻƴΣ ŀƴŘ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƛƴƎ ƛƴ ƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ ǿƻǊƭŘ Ŏƭŀǎǎ ŎƘŀƳǇƛƻƴǎΣ ŦƻǎǘŜǊƛƴƎ ǾƛōǊŀƴǘ ƛƴŘǳǎǘǊƛŀƭ ŀƴŘ ŎƻƳƳŜǊŎƛŀƭ Ŏlusters, and partnering with world-
class global entities.

¦ƴǘƛƭ нлнл ƘŜ ǿŀǎ /9h ƻŦ aǳōŀŘŀƭŀ tŜǘǊƻƭŜǳƳ ǿƘŜǊŜ ƘŜ ǿŀǎ ǊŜǎǇƻƴǎƛōƭŜ ŦƻǊ ƳŀƛƴǘŀƛƴƛƴƎ ƻǾŜǊŀƭƭ ǊŜǎǇƻƴǎƛōƛƭƛǘȅ ŦƻǊ atΩǎ Ǝƭƻōŀƭ ƻperations, health & safety, strategy 
ϧ ƎǊƻǿǘƘΣ ŦƛƴŀƴŎŜ ŀǎ ǿŜƭƭ ŀǎ ƳŀƴŀƎƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ƘǳƳŀƴ ŎŀǇƛǘŀƭΦ

With over 20 years of diverse experience in the energy sector, Dr. Bakheetis a member of industry Boards and committees in the UAE including ADNOC Group, 
Cepsa, Oil Search, Mubadala Petroleum, and Emirates Global Aluminium.

Before joining Mubadala Dr. Bakheetheld positions at Abu Dhabi National Oil Company (ADNOC), leading production and facilities engineering for five of its 
operating companies, covering all offshore operators in Abu Dhabi.

Dr. Bakheetholds a BSc degree in Petroleum Engineering and applied Mathematics from the University of Tulsa (Oklahoma, USA) and MSc in Environmental Science 
from UAE University. He also holds an Executive MBA from HCT, UAE, and a Doctorate of Business Administration from the College of Business and Economics, UAE 
University

Paulo Almirante is currently Senior Executive Vice President in charge of the Global Business Unit Renewables, Global Energy Management and Nuclear Production 
ŀŎǘƛǾƛǘƛŜǎΣ ŀƴŘ ƛǎ ŀ ƳŜƳōŜǊ ƻŦ 9bDL9Ωǎ 9ȄŜŎǳǘƛǾŜ /ƻƳƳƛǘǘŜŜΦ

He is a board member of several ENGIE group companies. He holds a Master of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering Production aŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ŀƴŘ ŀ aŀǎǘŜǊΩǎ 
degree in Mechanical Engineering Thermodynamics from the Instituto Superior Técnico in Lisbon, Portugal.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Dr. Mansoor 
Al Hamed
Board Member, Non-Executive, 
Independent 

Dr. Mansoor Al Hamed was appointed Chief Executive Officer of Mubadala Energy in 2021 and Managing Director in 2024. Prior tosuch appointments, he held the 
position of Chief Growth Officer where he was responsible for all new business development and Mergers & Acquisitions activitiesat Mubadala Energy.

He brings with him more than 15 years of diverse experience in the oil and gas industry and across various disciplines of business leadership.

Before joining Mubadala Energy, he worked in a highly diversified private sector business based in the UAE, gaining experience across commercial and managerial 
roles held in various business sectors.

Dr. Mansoor Al Hamed holds a BSc degree in Business Administration from the American University in Dubai and two MSc degrees from Abu Dhabi University and 
National Defense College in Abu Dhabi.

Musabbeh 
Al Kaabi
Board Member, Non-Executive, 
Independent 

aǳǎŀōōŜƘ !ƭ Yŀŀōƛ ƭŜŀŘǎ !5bh/Ωǎ [ƻǿ /ŀǊōƻƴ {ƻƭǳǘƛƻƴǎ ϧ LƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ DǊƻǿǘƘ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊŀǘŜΦ IŜ ƛǎ ǊŜǎǇƻƴǎƛōƭŜ ŦƻǊ ŘǊƛǾƛƴƎ !5bh/Ωs investments in new energies 
and low carbon solutions, as well as its international growth, technology, and sustainability strategies. .

Al Kaabi currently serves as Chairman of the Board of Directors of Mubadala Energy and Yahsat. He is also a board member of Masdar, Tabreed, ADNOC Gas and 
Environment Agency ςAbu Dhabi. In the past, he has served on the boards of several leading organizations including First Abu Dhabi Bank, Dolphin Energy, 
Emirates Global Aluminium, Borealis, Cepsa, NOVA Chemicals and Cleveland Clinic Abu Dhabi.

Musabbeh holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Geophysical Engineering from Colorado School of Mines and a Master of Sciencesdegree in Geoscience from 
Imperial College, London.
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Pierre Cheyronis the Chief Development and Strategy Officer of ENGIE Energy Solutions and member of the operational executive committee of ENGIE.

Until 2020, Pierre was the CEO of ENGIE Southeast Asia, leading one of the fastest growing key business clusters in the Asia-Pacific organisationtowards Zero-
Carbon Transition by delivering integrated solutions to its customers.

Pierre joined ENGIE in 2011 as CEO of Cofely Southeast Asia, and then overseeing all Service activities of ENGIE in the Asia-Pacific region from 2015 to 2018. Prior to 
ENGIE, Pierre was with Alcatel-Lucent in various key management roles in Asia and Europe. He was appointed President of the Malaysian French Chamber of 
Commerce & Industry from 2011 to 2015 and is currently a member of the board with the French Chamber of Commerce in Singapore.

aŀǊƛƻƴ ƛǎ ǘƘŜ /ƘƛŜŦ {ǘǊŀǘŜƎȅ ŀƴŘ .ǳǎƛƴŜǎǎ 5ŜǾŜƭƻǇƳŜƴǘ hŦŦƛŎŜǊ ƻŦ 9bDL9Ωǎ 9ƴŜǊƎȅ {ƻƭǳǘƛƻƴǎ ŀŎǘƛǾƛǘƛŜǎΣ ōŀǎŜŘ ƛƴ tŀǊƛǎΣ ŀƴŘ ǊŜǇorting to Frank Lacroix, Executive VP of 
9bDL9 ƛƴ ŎƘŀǊƎŜ ƻŦ 9ƴŜǊƎȅ {ƻƭǳǘƛƻƴǎ όмм.ϵ wŜǾŜƴǳŜǎ ŀŎǊƻǎǎ ƳƻǊŜ ǘƘŀƴ нл ŎƻǳƴǘǊƛŜǎΣ пл ллл ŜƳǇƭƻȅŜŜǎύΦ 9ƴŜǊƎȅ {ƻƭǳǘƛƻƴǎ ƛǎ ǘƘŜ world leader in energy efficiency 
and distributed decarbonisationsolutions for companies (industrial and commercial) and communities (cities, campuses).

IŜǊ ǿƻǊƭŘǿƛŘŜ ǊŜǎǇƻƴǎƛōƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜ ǘƘŜ ŘŜŦƛƴƛǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ {ǘǊŀǘŜƎȅ ƻŦ 9bDL9Ωǎ ŀŎǘƛǾƛǘƛŜǎ ƛƴ ŘƛŦŦŜǊŜƴǘ ǊŜƎƛƻƴǎΣ ǘƘŜ ƻǾŜǊǾƛŜw of its commercial performance, the 
management of its portfolio of innovations, the definition of its offers, the piloting of its M&A files, marketing and communications.

tǊŜǾƛƻǳǎƭȅΣ aŀǊƛƻƴ ǿŀǎ /ƘƛŜŦ aŀǊƪŜǘƛƴƎΣ /ƻƳƳǳƴƛŎŀǘƛƻƴ ϧ 5ŀǘŀ hŦŦƛŎŜǊ ƻŦ 9bDL9Ωǎ .н/ ŀŎǘƛǾƛǘƛŜǎΦ !ǎ ǎǳŎƘ ǎƘŜ ƘŀŘ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǎǇƻƴǎƛōility of building the power and gas 
offers that were sold to 20 million customers, as well as home equipment offers such as heat pumps, boilers or solar panels. Marion holds a degree from HEC, one 
of the best ranked business schools in France.
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Independent 

Marion Deridder 
Blondel
Board Member, Non-Executive, 
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Geert Bunkensis the VP Regional Hub for AMEA and VP of Finance for AMEA at ENGIE. He is based in Dubai and brings to the table extensive experience in project 
financing, financial planning and analysis, profit-and-loss leadership, and mergers and acquisitions.

DŜŜǊǘ ƧƻƛƴŜŘ 9bDL9Ωǎ ǇǊƻƧŜŎǘ ŦƛƴŀƴŎŜ ǘŜŀƳ ƛƴ нллр ŀƴŘ ǉǳƛŎƪƭȅ ŀŘǾŀƴŎŜŘ Ƙƛǎ ŎŀǊŜŜǊΦ IŜ ƳŀƴŀƎŜŘ ŎƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛƴƎ ƛƴ .ŜƭƎƛǳƳ andAustralia, led regional 
ŎƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ ŦƛƴŀƴŎŜ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎΣ ŀƴŘ ǎŜǊǾŜŘ ŀǎ /Ch !ǎƛŀ tŀŎƛŦƛŎ ƛƴ {ƛƴƎŀǇƻǊŜ ŦǊƻƳ нлму ǘƻ нлнмΦ IŜ ƘƻƭŘǎ ŀ aŀǎǘŜǊΩǎ ŘŜƎǊŜŜ ƛƴ /ƻmmercial Engineering, majoring in 
CƛƴŀƴŎŜΣ ŀǎ ǿŜƭƭ ŀǎ ŀ aŀǎǘŜǊΩǎ ŘŜƎǊŜŜ ƛƴ ¢ŀȄŀǘƛƻƴ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ ¦ƴƛǾŜǊǎƛǘȅ ƻŦ [ŜǳǾŜƴ όY¦ [ŜǳǾŜƴύ ƛƴ .ŜƭƎƛǳƳ 

Saeed Al Dhaheriis an executive Board member of Ali & Sons Holding LLC, where he serves on both the audit and the executive committees. 

Moreover, Mr. Al Dhaheriis a Managing Director of Investments, overseeing investments in both Real Estate and public & private equities as well as Venture 
Capital. He is a non-executive director of National Central Cooling Company (Tabreed) and Peninsula Real Estate Management.

Iƛǎ Ǉŀǎǘ ŜȄǇŜǊƛŜƴŎŜ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜǎ ǿƻǊƪƛƴƎ ŀǎ ŀƴ ŀƴŀƭȅǎǘ ŦƻǊ !ōǳ 5Ƙŀōƛ LƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ !ǳǘƘƻǊƛǘȅ ŀƴŘ ŜŀǊƴƛƴƎ ŀ ōŀŎƘŜƭƻǊΩǎ ŘŜƎǊŜŜ ƛƴ Cƛƴŀncefrom the American University of 
Dubai.
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Dr. Alyazia Ali Al Kuwaiti is the Executive Director of the Energy portfolio in Mubadala, responsible for ensuring the effective management of its global energy 
operating companies, including oversight of their business plans, growth strategies and overall performance.

5ǊΦ !ƭȅŀȊƛŀΩǎ ŎƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ ōƻŀǊŘǎ ŜȄǇŜǊƛŜƴŎŜ ƛǎ ǇǊƛƳŀǊƛƭȅ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŜƴŜǊƎȅ ŀƴŘ ƛƴŘǳǎǘǊƛŀƭ ǎŜŎǘƻǊΣ ǿƛǘƘ ŀ ǎǘǊƻƴƎ ǊŜŎƻǊŘ ƛƴ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭand strategic value creation. In January 
нлнмΣ ǎƘŜ ǿŀǎ ƴƻƳƛƴŀǘŜŘ ŀǎ ŀ ƳŜƳōŜǊ ƻŦ aǳōŀŘŀƭŀΩǎ LƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ ŀƴŘ .ǳǎƛƴŜǎǎ tƭŀƴƴƛƴƎ /ƻƳƳƛǘǘŜŜΣ ǿƘƛŎƘ ŀǇǇǊƻǾŜǎ ƛƴŎƻƳƛƴƎ ǘǊŀƴǎŀŎtions across the entire group 
of sectors including technology, financial services, real estate, healthcare, consumer and others.

! ƭŜŀŘƛƴƎ ŦŜƳŀƭŜ ŦƛƎǳǊŜ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ¦!9Ωǎ ŜƴŜǊƎȅ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘǎ ǎŜŎǘƻǊΣ 5ǊΦ !ƭȅŀȊƛŀ Ǉƭŀȅǎ ŀƴ ŀŎǘƛǾŜ ǊƻƭŜ ƛƴ ŀŎŎŜƭŜǊŀǘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǇǊƻŦŜǎǎƛonal development of young Emiratis and 
is a strong advocate for the advancement of women in both the local workforce and, more broadly, in the international Energy scene.

{ƘŜ ƘƻƭŘǎ ŀ ōŀŎƘŜƭƻǊΩǎ ŘŜƎǊŜŜ ƛƴ !ŎŎƻǳƴǘƛƴƎ ŀƴŘ CƛƴŀƴŎŜ ŦǊƻƳ tƻǊǘƻōŜƭƭƻ /ƻƭƭŜƎŜ ƛƴ 5ǳōƭƛƴΣ LǊŜƭŀƴŘΤ ŀ aŀǎǘŜǊΩǎ ƛƴ LƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴal Business from the University of 
Wollongong in Dubai; and a PhD in Business Administration from UAE University on the topic of Corporate Governance in Publicly Listed Companies in UAE stock 
markets.
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All Board members confirm the information provided herein, true and accurate.

We also confirm that no delegations or authorizations to any Board member or member of executive management 

were granted by the Board in respect of duties and functions of the Board of Directors during the year 2024.

H.E. Dr. Alyazia Ali Al 
Kuwaiti
Board Member, Non-Executive, 
Independent 
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Corporate governance is the system of rules, practices and processes used to direct and manage a company.

¢ƘŜ ŦƻƭƭƻǿƛƴƎ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ ƛǎ ƎƻǾŜǊƴŜŘ ōȅ ǘƘŜ {ŜŎǳǊƛǘƛŜǎ ŀƴŘ /ƻƳƳƻŘƛǘƛŜǎ !ǳǘƘƻǊƛǘȅ όά{/!έύ /ƘŀƛǊƳŀƴΩǎ .ƻŀǊŘ ƻŦ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎΩ 5ŜŎƛǎƛƻƴ No.3 
ƻŦ нлнл ŀǎ ŀƳŜƴŘŜŘ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƛƳŜ ǘƻ ǘƛƳŜ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ Wƻƛƴǘ {ǘƻŎƪ /ƻƳǇŀƴƛŜǎ DƻǾŜǊƴŀƴŎŜ DǳƛŘŜ όά5ŜŎƛǎƛƻƴ оκнлнлέύ(as amended with 
Decision 2/2024) and the format of this report is prescribed by the SCA. This report outlines the compliance of National Central 
/ƻƻƭƛƴƎ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅ tW{/ όǘƘŜ ά/ƻƳǇŀƴȅά ƻǊ ά¢ŀōǊŜŜŘάύ ǿƛǘƘ 5ŜŎƛǎƛƻƴ оκнлнл and its amendments,ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ƻǾŜǊŀƭƭ ƛƴǘŜƎǊŀƭ 
governance structure in the period from 1 January 2024to 31 December 2024.

In addition to the above, to ensure compliance with the external rules, Tabreed has adopted, updated and implemented, to lista few 
without limitation, a number of internal policies and procedures to emphasize the enforcement and application of the corporate 
ƎƻǾŜǊƴŀƴŎŜ ōȅ ǘƘŜ .ƻŀǊŘ ŀƴŘ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ ŜƳǇƭƻȅŜŜǎΥ

Å Code of Conduct

Å Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy

Å Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee Charter

Å Delegation of Authority 

Å Related Party Transaction Policy

Å Tabreed Market Conduct and Securities Trading Policy

Å Internal Audit Charter;

Å Human Rights Policy 

Å Ethical Framework

Å Diversity, Equity & Inclusion Policy

Å Business Consultants Policy

Å Investor Relation Policy

Incorporated in 1998, 
Tabreed has 27years of 
industry leading experience 
in the district cooling sector, 
with offices across the GCC, 
Egypt and India, with the aim 
of exploring entry into other 
countries. Throughout its 
journey Tabreed has 
enhanced its commitment to 
implementing the highest 
standards of corporate 
governance within the 
Company to enhance value 
for its shareholders and 
stakeholders.
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¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎcorporategovernancesystemis well developed,adopts local and international best practiceand meetsall

relevant requirementsof UAElegislationon corporate governance,includingthe FederalDecreeby Lawconcerning

CommercialCompaniesNo. 32 of 2021 (as amended)and SCADecision3/2020 as amendedby virtue of Decision

2/2024appliesto ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎlisting on the DubaiFinancialMarketόά5Caέύ. TheSCAsupervises,controls and verifies

¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎcompliancewith Decision3/2020(asamended).
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Å TheGeneralAssemblyMeetingis the highestdecision-makingbodyin the Company

and is the forum in which shareholdersexercisetheir right to decide on the

/ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎdirection. The AnnualGeneralAssemblyMeetingόά!D!έύis convened

oncea year to carry out taskssuchasadoptingthe Boardof 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎΩreport and

the annualand consolidatedaccounts,dischargingthe membersof the Boardof

Directorsand the auditors from liability and decidinghow the profit of the past

financialyearis to be allocated.

Å Theshareholdersare the ultimate decision-makersin respectof the directionof the

Companyasthe shareholdersare responsiblefor appointingthe Boardof Directors

at the AGAof the Company,eachsuchappointmentbeingfor a term of three years.

Theshareholderspresentat the AGAalsoelect the auditorswho in turn report on

their scrutinyto the AGA.

Å Thefollowing sectionssummarizehow the Companyhasappliedthe principlesof

Decision3/2020andits compliancewith theseprinciples.
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3.1. Board of Directors
(Art. 6, Decision 3/2020)

3.2. Chairman of the Board
(Art. 7 and 15, Decision 3/2020) 

Å The appointment, roles and responsibilities of the Board of 
Directors of TabreedόǘƘŜ ά.ƻŀǊŘέ ƻǊ ά.ƻŀǊŘ ƻŦ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎέύ 
are outlined in Tabreed's!ǊǘƛŎƭŜǎ ƻŦ !ǎǎƻŎƛŀǘƛƻƴ όάAoAέύΦ

Å From implementation of the membership balance criteria set 
down by Decision 3/2020 in relation to executive, non-
executive and independent members of the Board, up to and 
including the last Board election in 2023, we confirm that 
compliance was maintained by Tabreedfor all criteria 
including those requirements for the independence of the 
Board members. The updated independence criteria for the 
Board members as prescribed by the SCA Res 3/2020 will be 
applied to TabreedBoard members at their next election 
cycle planned for March 2026. 

Å The Board has at all times maintained an appropriate level of 
skills, experience and capabilities across the membership. 

Å In 2024, both Khaled Abdulla Al Qubaisi (Jan-August) and Dr. 
BakheetAl Katheeri(Aug ςyear end) have presided as the 
/ƘŀƛǊƳŀƴ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ .ƻŀǊŘ όǘƘŜ ά/ƘŀƛǊƳŀƴέύΦ

Å Mr. Al Qubaisi, prior to leaving the Board after many years of 
service, was a non-executive director with extensive and 
prominent experience in the finance and energy sectors both 
regionally and internationally. 

Å Dr. Bakheetis a non-executive director with notable and in-
depth knowledge expertise in the energy and industrial 
sectors. 

Å Both Chairmen have ensured that the Board participated 
effectively at Board meetings and that each member of the 
Board acted in the best interests of Tabreed and its 
shareholders while maintaining the highest standard of 
regulatory governance and compliance requirements.
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3.3. Members of the Board
(Art. 9, 10, 11, 13, 14, 16 - 19, Decision 3/2020)

3.4. Remuneration of the Chairman and the Board 
Members (Art. 29, Decision 3/2020)

Å The members of the Board have a diverse set of skills and 
ŜȄǇŜǊƛŜƴŎŜΦ 9ŀŎƘ ƳŜƳōŜǊΩǎ Řǳǘȅ ƛǎ ǘƻ ŀŎǘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ōŜǎǘ ƛƴǘŜǊŜǎǘǎ ƻŦ 
Tabreed and its shareholders. Each member of the Board 
ŜƴǎǳǊŜǎ ǘƘŀǘ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ Ƴŀƛƴǘŀƛƴǎ ǎȅǎǘŜƳǎ ŀƴŘ 
processes to ensure adherence to laws, regulations and 
¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜƳŜƴǘǎΦ

Å ¢ƘŜ .ƻŀǊŘ ŜƴǎǳǊŜǎ ǘƘŀǘ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜǎ ǘƘŜƳ 
with sufficient information, in a timely manner, to make 
informed decisions that affect the direction of the Company. The 
Board members participate in Board meetings, giving 
independent opinions on strategic issues, policy, accounting, 
resources and principles of required behaviour. The Board tracks 
ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ ŀƎŀƛƴǎǘ ǎǘǊŀǘŜƎƛŎ ƻōƧŜŎǘƛǾŜǎΦ

Å Each year, all Board members disclose to Tabreed an assessment 
of their independence, potential conflicts of interest, 
confirmation of confidentiality, details of any share trading and 
details of their significant positions in public companies or other 
institutions.

Å The Chairman and the Board members are entitled to be 
remunerated by a percentage of up to a maximum of 10% of the 
net profits of the Company in respect of each fiscal year, subject 
ǘƻ ŀǇǇǊƻǾŀƭ ōȅ ǘƘŜ ǎƘŀǊŜƘƻƭŘŜǊǎ ŀǘ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ !D! ŀƴŘ 
subject to setting aside a statutory reserve of 10% of the net 
profits of the Company.
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3.5. Board Committees
(Art. 6, 53 Decision 3/2020)

3.6 Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee 
(Art. 60, 61, 61 bis, 62 and 63, Decision 3/2020)

Å The Board is empowered to establish Board committees and to delegate powers 
to such committees as necessary or appropriate. The Board delegates certain 
functions to well-structured committees but without abdicating its own 
responsibilities. 

Å Board committees are an effective way to distribute work between Board 
members and allow for more detailed consideration of specific matters. All the 
Board committees are functioning on behalf of the Board and the Board will be 
responsible for constituting, assigning, co-opting and fixing terms of service for 
Board committee members.

Å ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ .ƻŀǊŘ Ƙŀǎ ŎƻƴǎǘƛǘǳǘŜŘ ŦƻǳǊ ŎƻƳƳƛǘǘŜŜǎ ŀƴŘ ƛƳǇƭŜƳŜƴǘŜŘ ŎƘŀǊǘŜǊǎ ǘƘŀǘ 
define the obligations, duration and authority of each committee and these 
committees are regularly monitored by the Board regarding their performance 
and commitment. These committees are:

Å Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee;

Å Nomination and Remuneration Committee;

Å Finance Committee; and

Å Projects Committee

Å ¢ƘŜ !ǳŘƛǘΣ wƛǎƪ ŀƴŘ /ƻƳǇƭƛŀƴŎŜ /ƻƳƳƛǘǘŜŜ όά!w/ /ƻƳƳƛǘǘŜŜέύ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ 
bƻƳƛƴŀǘƛƻƴ ŀƴŘ wŜƳǳƴŜǊŀǘƛƻƴ /ƻƳƳƛǘǘŜŜ όάbw/έύ ŀǊŜ ƳŀƴŘŀǘŜŘ ōȅ 5ŜŎƛǎƛƻƴ 
3/2020. The Finance Committee and the Projects Committee have been 
established by the Board of Directors as additional committees to facilitate the 
business requirements of the Company.

Å The Board maintains an ARC Committee that monitors financial statements, 
reviews and recommends changes to ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎfinancial and control systems, 
ŀƴŘ ŀǇǇƻƛƴǘǎ ŀƴŘ Ƴŀƛƴǘŀƛƴǎ ŀƴ ŀǇǇǊƻǇǊƛŀǘŜ ǊŜƭŀǘƛƻƴǎƘƛǇ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ 
external auditors, it also oversees risk and compliance functions. The Audit 
Committee also oversees the Internal Audit function and is responsible for 
approving recommendations for internal audit improvements (see Section 7 for 
further detail on the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee).
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3.10. Internal Audit
(Art. 66, 67 and 68, Decision 3/2020)

3.7. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(Art. 59, Decision 3/2020)

The NRC assists the Board in discharging its responsibilities in relation to 
qualifications, compensation, appointment and succession of the Company's directors 
and key management personnel. The Committee oversees the Company's nomination 
process for the Board of Directors and continuously monitors the independence of 
the independent members of the Board (see Section 8 for further detail on the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee).

¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ LƴǘŜǊƴŀƭ !ǳŘƛǘ ŦǳƴŎǘƛƻƴ ƛǎ ƳŀƛƴǘŀƛƴŜŘ ōȅ ǘƘŜ .ƻŀǊŘ ǿƛǘƘ ŎŜǊǘŀƛƴ 
responsibilities delegated to the ARC Committee. Internal Audit provides 
independent, objective and authoritative advice as well as assurance over the Internal 
Audit environment to the Board, ARC Committee and management, to assist them in 
discharging their functions and duties conferred and imposed on them.

The Board ensures that the internal audit is effective by reviewing the work of the 
ARC Committee, effectively dealing with risk and control issues at Board meetings and 
requiring that risk and internal audit issues are discussed at each Board meeting. The 
Board also ensures that an internal audit review is conducted by the Internal Audit 
function each year (See Section 11 for further detail on the Internal Audit function).

3.8 Finance Committee

The role of the Finance Committee is to assist the Board in monitoring and reviewing: 
a) the economics and financial returns of investments and commitments, b) debt and 
equity financing transactions; and c) financial risk management programs of the 
Company (see Section 9.1. for further detail on the Finance Committee). 

3.9 Projects Committee

The role of the Projects Committee is to assist the Board and management in the 
successful tendering and execution of projects, management of project related 
contracts, procurement processes, health/safety and the environment, or any other 
matter that may be critical for the efficient, safe and reliable operation of the 
/ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ǇǊƻƧŜŎǘǎ ŀƴŘ ŜȄƛǎǘƛƴƎ ŀǎǎŜǘǎ (see Section 9.2. for further detail on the 
Projects Committee). 

3.11. External Auditor
(Art. 70-73, Decision 3/2020)

On the recommendation of the ARC Committee, the Board appointed Ernst & Young 
όέ9¸έύ ŀǎ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ ŜȄǘŜǊƴŀƭ ŀǳŘƛǘƻǊ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ȅŜŀǊ нлнп ŀǘ ǘƘŜ !D! ƘŜƭŘ ƻƴ мф 
March 2024. The Board ensures that the external auditor remains independent from 
the Company. The external auditor has broad powers to provide reports to the 
General Assembly Meeting and to regulatory bodies (see Section 6 for further detail 
on the External Auditor). 
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¢ƘŜ .ƻŀǊŘ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜǎ ƎǳƛŘŀƴŎŜ ŀƴŘ ŘƛǊŜŎǘƛƻƴ ǘƻ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ǘƻǿŀǊŘǎ 
achieving the strategic objectives of Tabreed.

The Board is responsible for the direction and oversight of the Company on behalf of 
the shareholders. The day to day activities of Tabreed are delegated to management 
through the Board approved Delegation of Authority as amended and approved by 
the Board on 5 June 2024. The Delegation of Authority will be reviewed at least every 
2 years. The Delegation of Authority delegates authority from the Board to executive 
management to execute certain: 

ÅContractual or other commitments; 

ÅExpenditure, purchases; and 

Å Investments,

in each case below a specified maximum limit amount (in AED), beyond which 
approval of the Board is required. To give effect to the Delegation of Authority, the 
Board has granted a general Power of Attorney to the Chief Executive Officer, subject 
to the abovementioned maximum limit amount and which shall remain in force for 
the same duration at the Delegation of Authority. Other than the above Delegation of 
Authority there are no other standing delegations of authority from the Board of 
Directors to the management of the Company. All other powers, authorities and 
responsibilities in respect of the management of the Company are vested in the Board 
in accordance with the AoA, subject to those matters reserved under such AoA
and/or applicable laws and regulations for the exclusive decision by the shareholders 
of the Company at the General Assembly of the Company.

The Board also provides guidance and direction to management through the following 
mandates that are regularly reviewed by the Board:

ÅThe five-year business plan;

Å¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ ǇƻƭƛŎƛŜǎΤ

ÅKey performance indicators; and

ÅRegular reporting against performance targets.

3.12. Delegation to Management
(Art.14, Decision 3/2020)
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3.13 Shareholdersˬ Rights
(Art. 48, 49, 50 and 51, Decision 3/2020)

3.14 Code of Conduct
(Art. 52, Decision 3/2020)

ÅThe Board is committed to maintaining the highest standards in relation to 
ǊŜŎƻƎƴƛǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǎƘŀǊŜƘƻƭŘŜǊǎΩ ǊƛƎƘǘǎΦ ¢Ƙƛǎ ŎƻƳƳƛǘƳŜƴǘ ƛǎ ƻǳǘƭƛƴŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ /ƘŀǊǘŜǊ ƻŦ 
the Board of Directors. To that end, Tabreed maintains an appropriately resourced 
investor relations function to communicate with shareholders and alsoengages the 
5Ca ŀƴŘ CƛǊǎǘ !ōǳ 5Ƙŀōƛ .ŀƴƪ όάC!.έύ ǘƻ ŀǎǎƛǎǘ ǿƛǘƘ ǎƘŀǊŜƘƻƭŘŜǊǎϥ ƳŀǘǘŜǊǎ ǊŜƭŀǘŜŘ 
to annual general assembly and dividend distribution.

ÅThe purpose of the investor relations function is to ensure that shareholders are 
kept informed of the Company's financial and operational performance and 
outlook and have access tofinancial disclosures and relevant information, that 
shareholders are notified of and attend General Assembly meetings, and that 
dividend payments, when approved, are distributed to each shareholder on a 
timely basis in coordination with the DFM and FAB.

ÅThe AoAǎŜǘǎ ƻǳǘ ǘƘŜ ǎƘŀǊŜƘƻƭŘŜǊǎΩ ǊƛƎƘǘǎ ǘƻ ƛƴŦƻǊƳŀǘƛƻƴΣ ǾƻǘƛƴƎΣ ǇŀǊǘƛŎƛǇŀǘƛƻƴ ŀǘ 
meetings and information on candidates for Board positions.

ÅThe manner in which the Company expects the Board, its employees, the auditors 
and the persons to whom specific duties are assigned to behave with respect to 
each other, the law, customers, suppliers, stakeholders and the community is 
articulated in the Tabreed Code of Conduct. 
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4. BOARD MEMBER TRANSACTIONS
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¢ƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ aŀǊƪŜǘ /ƻƴŘǳŎǘ ŀƴŘ ¢ǊŀŘƛƴƎ tƻƭƛŎȅ Ƙŀǎ ǊǳƭŜǎ ƎƻǾŜǊƴƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ŘŜŀƭƛƴƎǎ ōȅ ǘƘŜ .ƻŀǊŘ ƳŜƳōŜǊǎ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜƛǊ ŎƭƻǎŜ ŦŀƳƛƭȅ in ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ ǎŜŎǳǊƛǘƛŜǎΦ ! ŦǳƴŘŀƳŜƴǘŀƭ ǊŜǎǘǊƛŎǘƛƻƴ ƛƴ 
place is that no Board member or Tabreed employee is allowed to trade in Tabreed securities during a blackout period. Blackouts occur over the periods when sensitive information is 
ōŜƛƴƎ ŘŜǾŜƭƻǇŜŘ ƻǊ ŎƻƴǎƛŘŜǊŜŘΦ ¢ƘŜ ǘŀōƭŜ ōŜƭƻǿ ƻǳǘƭƛƴŜǎ ǘƘŜ .ƻŀǊŘ ƳŜƳōŜǊǎΩ όŀƴŘ ǘƘŜƛǊ ƛƳƳŜŘƛŀǘŜ ǊŜƭŀǘƛǾŜǎΩύ ǎƘŀǊŜƘƻƭŘƛƴƎǎ ŀƴŘshare transactions during 2024:

Name Position Total shares held as of 31/12/2024 / During Membership Total shares bought Total shares sold

Dr. BakheetAl Katheeri Chairman 0 0 0

Khaled Abdulla Al Qubaisi Chairman until Aug. 2024 0 0 0

Paulo Almirante Vice-Chairman 0 0 0

Saeed Ali Al Dhaheri Board Member 5,812,830 0 0

Ali Khalfan Al Dhaheri Family Member 20,391,240 0 0

Maryam Saeed Ali Shamsi Family Member 19,190,400 3,803,200 0

MusabbehAl Kaabi Board Member 0 0 0

Pierre Cheyron Board Member 0 0 0

Geert Bunkens Board Member 0 0 0

Dr. Mansoor Al Hamed Board Member 0 0 0

Dr. AlyaziaAl Kuwaiti Board Member 0 0 0

Marion Deridder Blondel Board Member 0 0 0

Claire Bechaux Board Member until Feb. 2024 0 0 0
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5. FORMATION OF THE BOARD
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5.1. Board Composition
The following table outlines details of each Board member holding office during 2024 in terms of independence, executive position and term of office.

Name Position Year of Appointment Executive Independent

Khaled AbdullaAl Qubaisi Chairman 2009 till August 2024

Dr. BakheetAl Katheeri* Chairman 2022 (Chairman from August 2024)

Paulo Almirante* Vice Chairman 2017

Dr. AlyaziaAli Al Kuwaiti* Member 2023

MusabbehAl Kaabi* Member 2021

Pierre Cheyron* Member 2021

Marion Deridder Blondel* Member From February 2024

Claire Bechaux* Member 2022 till February 2024

Geert Bunkens* Member 2023

Dr. Mansoor Al Hamed* Member From August 2024

Saeed Ali Al Dhaheri Member 2017

During 2024, the Tabreed Board of Directors had two female members duly appointed by the shareholders, Dr. AlyaziaAli Al Kuwaiti and Marion Deridder Blondel. 

*During last Board election in 2023, before issuance of SCA Resolution amendment 2/2024 to SCA Res 3/2020, all Board members were qualified as independent for their term, except for Khaled Al Qubaisi. The independence 
criteria to the Board members as prescribed by the SCA Res 3/2020 will be applied to Tabreed Board members at their next election cycle planned for March 2026.

xx

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x
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5.2. ELECTIONS AND TERMS OF OFFICE

Å The General Assembly has the competence to elect and remove the members of the Board. In 
accordance with the AoA, the term of each Board member is three years. The Board members 
are elected by secret ballot. The Board of Directors elects the members of each of the Board 
committees and designates its Chairman.

Å On 8 August 2024, Khaled Al Qubaisiresigned from the Board as the Chairman and as a Board 
member and subsequently was replaced by Dr. Mansoor Al Hamed as a Board member to 
complete the term of his predecessor. Dr. BakheetAl Katheeriwas designated as the new 
Chairman of the Board.

Å As per the Commercial Companies Law and Decision 3/2020 when a Board member resigns from 
his/her position, the Board of Directors appoints a member for the vacant position and such 
appointment shall be presented to the next General Assembly to approve such appointment or 
appoint another person. Accordingly, the appointment of Dr. Mansoor Al Hamed will be formally 
ratified at the next General Assembly to be held in March 2025. 

The next Board 
Election is scheduled 
for 2026, where 
shareholders will 
appoint a new Board.
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The AGA may after setting aside 10% for the statutory reserve from the net profit of the Company, and the shareholder dividend of a maximum of 10% of the capital, approve a percentage of up to 10% 
of the net profits to remunerate the Board of Directors.
Remuneration paid to the Board members, in aggregate, in 2024 and recommended to be paid in 2025, are as follows:

Sitting Fees and Remuneration AED

Remuneration for 2023 paid in 2024 after approval at last AGA 8,550,000

Board and Committees sitting fees for 2024 recommended for payment in 2025 0

Remuneration recommended for 2024 to be paid in 2025 after approval at next AGA 8,550,000

5.3. Board Remuneration

5.4. Board Meetings in 2024 
The Board held 5 meetings in 2024 on the dates set out below:
Å 14 February;
Å 14 May;

Å 9 September;
Å 19 November;

Å 5 December

Meeting Date Number of Attendees out of 9 Absence or proxy attendance

14 February 9 None

14 May 9 None

9 September 9 None

19 November 9 None

5 December 9 None 

The Tabreed Board held three meetings through circular resolutions during 2024 on:
Å 9 February appointing Marion Deridder Blondel as a new member of the Board in replacement of Claire Béchaux; 
Å 8 August (i) approving the unaudited financial report for the period ended 30 June 2024; (ii) appointing Dr. Mansoor Al Hamed as a new member of the Board in replacement of Khaled Al Qubaisi the Chairman of the board; and (iii) 

designation of BakheetAl Katheerias the new Chairman; and
Å 14 November approving the unaudited financial report for the period ended 30 September 2024
In December 2024 the Board of Directors completed a board self-assessment questionnaire conducted by the Chairman with the support of the Company Secretary, with results presented back to the Board in the first quarter of 2025. 
The Board also attended a Board briefing session delivered by Hawkamahin line with regulatory requirements to refresh knowledge and gain additional insights on best practices and recent developments as they relate to Board activity and their 
duties to act in the best interests of the company and its stakeholders. 

Other than the remuneration recommended to be paid in 2025 and referred to above, no other allowances, salaries or additionalfees are to be paid to any Board member by Tabreedfor 2024. 
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5.5. Board Terms of Reference 5.6. Executive Management

In line with good practice and governance, the Board provides strategic direction to 
the management team. The Board provides this direction by working with 
management to establish:

1. The appointment of the Chief Executive Officer and key executives;

2. Board approved Delegation of Authority setting out the levels of approvals 
required by the Board;

3. Board approved strategic plans ςwith the growth, revenue and profit targets 
required by the Board and a reporting mechanism to feedback results;

4. A strong risk management and internal audit environment;

5. The integrity of financial reporting;

6. Proper disclosure and communication with shareholders; and

7. A highly qualified and experienced senior management team.

Each element noted above contributes towards a balanced and effective internal 
control mechanism over ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎactivities which are, in turn, capable of being 
effectively monitored by the Board. 

ÅThe Tabreed Corporate Governance Procedures Manual and the Board approved 
Delegation of Authority clearly outline the role that the Board requires from 
¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘΦ aŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘΩǎ ǇǊƛƳŀǊȅ ǊŜǎǇƻƴǎƛōƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ ŎƻǾŜǊ ǘƘŜ 
oversight of the day-to-Řŀȅ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎ ƻŦ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ ōǳǎƛƴŜǎǎΣ ǎǘǊŀǘŜƎƛŎ ǇƭŀƴƴƛƴƎΣ 
budgeting, financial reporting and risk management.

ÅExecutive management consists of six Chief Officers. These positions together with 
other management positions, the incumbents, dates of appointment and 
remuneration received (or accrued) in 2024 (in AED) are outlined below, followed 
by an Organization Chart in section 5.8.
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Position Fulfilled By Appointment Salary & Allowances 
(AED)

Bonus (AED)
Long-term 

Incentive Plan 
(AED)

Chief Executive Officer Khalid Al Marzooqi 2021 3,238,535 2,353,400 311,446 

Chief Financial Officer Adel Salem Al Wahedi 2020 2,711,405 1,467,700 152,027 

Chief Legal Counsel Nadia Bardawil 2023 1,460,088 487,400  -

Chief Operating Officer Antonio Di Cecca 2022 1,450,604 876,000 113,400 

Chief Development Officer Philippe Coquelle 2023 1,340,218 431,000 -

Chief Asset Management Officer Dr. Yousif Al Hammadi 2022 2,403,260 1,107,000 162,042

Vice President - Human Capital Sarah Mohamed Ahmed Al Bakeri 2020 till April 2024 232,365 419,200 58,539

Vice President - Human Capital Dalal Salem Al Yafei From April 2024 964,847 136,300 -

Vice President - Internal Audit* Mousa Sajwani 2020 1,557,756 318,600 57,751

Vice President - Strategic Communications MahaSallam 2022 1,325,995 243,300 -

Vice President - Strategy and PMO Mohammed AlSele 2021 1,046,046 243,000 44,491

5.7. Related party transactions
Tabreed was not a party to any related party transactions during 2024ōŀǎŜŘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ŘŜŦƛƴƛǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ άwŜƭŀǘŜŘ tŀǊǘƛŜǎέ ǎŜǘ ƻǳǘ ƛƴ 5ŜŎƛǎƛƻƴ оκнлнлΦ
Tabreed did not enter into any related party  transactions in 2024 which exceeded the value of 5% of the capital of the Company. 
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6. EXTERNAL AUDITOR

9Ǌƴǎǘ ϧ ¸ƻǳƴƎ όά9¸έύ ǿŜǊŜ ŀǇǇƻƛƴǘŜŘ ŀǎ 9ȄǘŜǊƴŀƭ !ǳŘƛǘƻǊǎ ŦƻǊ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘ at the Annual General Assembly on 19 March 2024 for a one-year term. Tabreed 
selected EY as the successful applicant pursuant to a competitive tender process issued by Tabreed in 2021 in respect of the auditing services mandate. 
Three major audit firms participated in the competitive process. 

The E&Y Abu Dhabi office was opened in 1966 and has over 280 professionals, including six resident partners. E&Y are a leading practice offering a wide 
range of services, including Audit, Business Advisory Services, Business Community Training, International Taxation, BusinessRisk Services/Internal Audit 
and Technology & Security Risk Services to a client base including conventional and Islamic banks and financial institutions,oil and gas majors, utilities 
and manufacturing firms from both the government and private sector.

The scope of the audit for the 2024 financial year, as outlined in their engagement plan, was to:

Å Provide an audit opinion on the annual consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial ReportingStandards;

Å Provide an audit opinion on the financial statements of all subsidiaries and associates of Tabreed in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards; and

Å Provide a review of quarterly interim condensed consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Accounting Standard (IAS) 34.

The following table outlines the audit annual and quarterly related fees for Tabreed group companies for 2024:

¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ ŜȄǘŜǊƴŀƭ 
auditors did not make 
any qualified opinion 
for the interim and 

annual financial 
statements 

for 2024 

External Auditor EY

Number of Years as External Auditor 3

Total audit fees for 2024 AED 1,222,600

Number of years the Partner of the External Auditor audited the Company 3

Fees for additional work in 2024 AED 435,000

Nature of additional work Regulatory compliance

Audit fees for additional work done in 2024 by auditors other than those appointed by TabreedNil

Name of partner auditor
Raed Ahmed (registered auditor number 
811)
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The role of the Audit Committee is outlined in the Board approved Charter of the Audit Risk & 
Compliance (ARC)  Committee and includes:
Å Providing advice to the Board on the contracting of an External Auditor and ensuring that the 

External Auditor fulfils its contractual and professional obligations
Å Reviewing and endorsing the quarterly and annual accounts after consideration of accounting 

policies and standards, assumptions and judgements, compliance with laws and any significant or 
unusual matters;

Å Continually assessing the systems for internal audit and risk management;
Å Considering the findings of the external Auditor and making recommendations on those findings;
Å Developing procedures which allow employees to raise matters of concern regarding internal audit 

or financial reports; and
Å Reporting to the Board on activities of the ARC Committee.

¢ƘŜ !w/ /ƻƳƳƛǘǘŜŜ ŀƭǎƻ ƻǾŜǊǎŜŜǎ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ Ǌƛǎƪ ŀƴŘ ŎƻƳǇƭƛŀƴŎŜ ŀǎǇŜŎǘǎ ŀǎ ŦƻƭƭƻǿǎΥ
Risk:
Å Evaluates the effectiveness of the company's risk management system and the mechanisms for 

identifying and monitoring potential risks, highlighting areas of both strength and potential 
improvement

Å Reviews quarterly reports on the implementation of risk management controls, strategic risks, 
mitigation strategies, and action plans to ensure their adequacy, and, where necessary, provides 
recommendations for Board consideration.

Å Advises management on enhancing risk management practices, assists in addressing specific risks, 
and ensures the availability of qualified personnel, adequate resources, and robust systems for 
effective risk management.

Compliance:
Å Review the effectiveness of the system for monitoring compliance with applicable laws, regulation 

and agreements and the results of management's investigation and follow-up (including disciplinary 
action) of any instances of non-compliance; and

Å Ensure the compliance of the Company with listing and disclosure rules and other legal requirements 
related to financial reporting;

The following table outlines the membership of the ARC Committee during 2024:

Member Role Term Status

Geert Bunkens Chairman From Jan to Dec 
Independent, Non-

Executive 

Dr. AlyaziaAl Kuwaiti Member From Jan to Dec 
Independent, Non-

Executive

Saeed Ali Al Dhaheri Member From Jan to Dec 
Independent, Non-

Executive 

Geert Bunkensin his capacity as Chairman of the ARC Committee during 2024, acknowledged his 
responsibility for the ARC Committee system in Tabreed, review of its working mechanisms and 
ensuring its effectiveness.
The ARC Committee met 6 times, on the following dates, during 2024:

Å 13February;

Å 6 May;

Å 13May;

Å 5 August;

Å 3 September; and

Å 13November.

The following table shows the attendance of each member for 2024:

Member Meetings invited to Attendance in person Proxy attendance

Geert Bunkens 6 6

Dr. AlyaziaAl Kuwaiti 6 5 Apology

Saeed Ali Al Dhaheri 6 6 -

Note:Committeemembersdidnot receiveanyfeesforattendingthe meetingsthat servethe committeeofwhichtheyaremembers.
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Dear Shareholders,

I am pleased to present our Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee (the "ARCC") Report for 2024.

I would like to thank Saeed Ali Khalfan Al Dhaheriand Dr AlyaziaAl Kuwaiti for their contribution as a committee member since 2023.

The ARCC assists the Board in fulfilling its independent oversight responsibilities in areas outlined in the Board approved Charter, such as the integrity of financial reporting, the 
effectiveness of risk management and internal controls, as well as the consideration of ethics and compliance matters. We areresponsible for assessing the quality of the audit 
performed by, and the independence and objectivity of, the External Auditor. The ARCC also makes a recommendation to the Board regarding the appointment or re-
appointment of the External Auditor. In addition, we oversee the work and quality of the internal audit function. During the year, the ARCC's core duties remained largely 
unchanged, and our usual cadence of activities remained in place. However, in recognition of the ARCC's increased focus on risk management and to formalize our role in assisting 
the Board in this area, our Terms of Reference/Charter were refreshed by incorporating amendments to Corporate Governance guidelines announced by Securities and 
Commodities Authority in early 2024 and ratified in Board meeting held in February 2025. 

Our work program over the course of a year focuses on a variety of matters that involve a high degree of judgement and/or aresignificant to Tabreed's consolidated financial 
statements. We review with management the sources of estimation uncertainty and other key assumptions against the backdrop ofeconomic and market uncertainty and 
volatility and evolving stakeholder expectations. In addition, we consider the robustness of the risk and internal control framework, results of internal control testing throughout 
the year, and remediation activities.

In 2024, the Board and ARCC laid special emphasis on developing, defining and approving the appropriate internal control and risƪ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ŦǊŀƳŜǿƻǊƪ ŦƻǊ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ ǿƻǊƪ ƛƴ 
line with global practices (COSO Framework) and ensuring its implementation. In this regard, we received briefings from the Internal Audit on the effectiveness of Tabreed's 
internal control system and on the outcomes of significant audits and notable control matters. Furthermore, the ARCC also held discussions with the external auditor on the 
effectiveness of the established internal control and risk management systems.

The ARCC has also taken an increasingly comprehensive approach to risk, integrating as much as possible the discussion on risk management, regulatory compliance and internal 
audit.

As part of its oversight of compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements, including monitoring ethics and compliance risks, ARCC discussed with the Chief Legal 
Counsel Officer activities undertaken in the ethics and compliance program related to compliance with laws and regulations, and steps taken to manage those risks.

The external audit tender process for re-appointment also commenced in 2024 and will be completed in Q1 2025 as set out later inthis report. 

[ƻƻƪƛƴƎ ŀƘŜŀŘ ǘƻ нлнрΣ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳƳƛǘǘŜŜΩǎ ƪŜȅ ǇǊƛƻǊƛǘƛŜǎ ǿƛƭƭ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜ ƳŀƛƴǘŀƛƴƛƴƎ ƻǾŜǊǎƛƎƘǘ ƻŦ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ Ǌƛǎƪ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ŀƴŘ ƛƴǘernal control processes, sustaining a strong culture 
of corporate governance and risk management across the entity, continuing to monitor the impact of economic changes on CompanȅΩǎassumptions, as well as sustainable 
finance.

Geert 
Bunkens
Chair of the Audit, Risk and 
Compliance Committee 
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In line with Article 60, 61 and 62 of Corporate Governance Guide Decision 3/2020 of Securities and 

Commodities Authority (SCA), the composition of the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee (ARCC) is 

as follows:

!w//Ωǎ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ȅŜŀǊ ŜƴŘŜŘ ом 5ŜŎŜƳōŜǊ нлнп ŀƴŘ ǿŀǎ ǎŀǘƛǎŦƛŜŘ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜ !w// 

and its members have performed their functions, duties and responsibilities in accordance with the 

!w//Ωǎ /ƘŀǊǘŜǊΦ

Å Providing advice to the Board on the contracting of an External Auditor, ensuring that the External 

Auditor fulfils its independence, contractual, and professional obligations; and considering the 

findings of the external Auditor and making recommendations on those findings.

Å Reviewing and endorsing the quarterly and annual accounts after consideration of accounting 

policies and standards, assumptions and judgements, compliance with laws and any significant or 

unusual matters.

Å Continually assessing the systems for internal audit and risk management and implementing 

procedures which allow employees to raise matters of concern regarding internal audit or financial 

reports, and reporting to the Board on activities of the ARC Committee.

Å Evaluates effectiveness of company's risk management system and internal control mechanisms for 

identifying and monitoring risks, highlighting areas of both strength and improvement while 

reviewing quarterly reports on the implementation of risk management controls, strategic risks, 

mitigation strategies, and corrective action plans to ensure their adequacy, and, where necessary, 

provides recommendations for Board consideration. 

Å Review the effectiveness of the system for monitoring compliance with applicable laws, regulation 

and agreements and the results of management's investigation and follow-up (including disciplinary 

action) of any instances of non-compliance; and ensure the compliance of the Company with listing 

and disclosure rules and other legal requirements related to financial reporting and related-ǇŀǊǘƛŜǎΩ 

transactions.

Composition and Terms of Reference

Chair

Geert Bunkens
Independent Non-Executive Director

Members

Saeed Ali Khalfan Al Dhaheri
Independent Non-Executive Director

Dr. Alyazia Al Kuwaiti
Independent Non-Executive Director

No alternate Directors were appointed as members of the ARCC.

Geert Bunkenshas, inter alia, extensive experience in financial planning, mergers and acquisitions and 

leadership roles. All ARCC members are financially literate, independent Non-executive Directors. 

The ARCC, therefore, meets the requirement of Article 60 of SCA Governance rules, which requires at 

least one (1) member of the ARCC to have prior work experience in accounting or financial affairs and 

all members must have knowledge and expertise in financial and accounting matters. The Company's 

website contains more detailed information on the members of the Committee and their biographies 

are set out in the Board of Directors section of this Integrated Annual Report.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, Geert Bunkenswas appointed as Chair of the 

ARCC effective from October 2023 in place of Pierre Cheyronwho relinquished his Chair.

The Board of Directors (the Board) annually reviews the performance of the ARCC and its members 

through an effective evaluation exercise. In early 2025, the Board assessed the

The role of the Audit Committee is outlined in the Board approved Charter of the 
Audit Committee (Feb2025) and includes:
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Financial StatementsCorporate GovernanceStrategic Review

TheARCCommitteemet 6 times,on the followingdates,during2024:

Å 13February;

Å 6 May;

Å 13May;

Å 5 August;

Å 3 September; and

Å 13November.

Thefollowing table showsthe attendanceof eachmemberfor 2024:

Member Member since Meetings invited to Attendance in person Proxy attendance

Geert Bunkens 2023 6 6

Dr Alyazia Al Kuwaiti 2023 6 5 Apology

Saeed Ali Al Dhaheri 2017 6 6 -

The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Legal Counsel, VP Internal Audit, Chief Operating Officer, 

Chief Development Officer, VP Finance, VP SPMO and Board/Committee Secretary attended ARCC meetings by 

invitation to provide their input, advice and clarification to relevant items on the agenda. The attendance of other 

Management team members was by invitation as well, depending on the matters that were discussed. The 

external auditors were also invited to the ARCC meetings to present their annual audit plan and discuss the 

quarterly unaudited financial results and annual audited financial statements, as well as other matters deemed 

relevant. 

All deliberations during the ARCC meetings, including the issues tabled and rationale adopted for decisions were 

properly recorded. Minutes of the ARCC meetings were tabled for confirmation at the following meeting and 

subsequently presented to the Board for notation. The Chair of the ARCC reported to the Board on the activities 

and significant matters discussed at each ARCC meeting.

SUMMARY OF KEY ACTIVITIES OF THE ARCC

During the year under review, the ARCC carried out the following activities:

Å Discussed overall approach to enterprise risk management and internal control, including compliance, tax, 

information risks, and disclosure controls.

Å Monitored and reviewed ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎtop 10 risks quarterly, including emerging risks arising from global events.

Å Endorsing updates to ERM Policy, Framework, & Risk Appetite thresholds; and Fraud Risk Management process, 

including assigning roles and timelines for Fraud Risk Management activities.

Å Reviewed Cybersecurity risk assessments amid global risks and evolving regulations.

Å Evaluated effectiveness of YR-2024 internal controls based on audit findings, management discussions, and the 

adequacy of risk management systems, aligned with Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 

Commission (COSO) Internal Control ςIntegrated Framework 2013 and SCA/ADAA guidelines ςthrough independent 

continuous control assessments conducted by Internal Audit Department. 

Å Monitored the 2024 Compliance Plan and approved the 2025 Plan. The Chief Legal Counsel (CLC) regularly updated 

ARCC on activities reinforcing Tabreed's commitment to Ethics and Compliance. Monitored internal misconduct 

cases, reviewed ongoing investigations, and directed Management to enhance controls to prevent recurrence.

Å Reviewed regulatory updates on SCA and Abu Dhabi Accountability Authority (ADAA) compliance, and progress on 

ARCC Charter revisions to align with new SCA guidelines.

Å tǊƻǾƛŘŜŘ ƻǾŜǊǎƛƎƘǘ ǘƻ ŀ tǊƻƧŜŎǘ 9ȄŎŜƭƭŜƴŎŜ ƛƴƛǘƛŀǘƛǾŜΣ ŀƛƳƛƴƎ ǘƻ Ŏƻƴǘƛƴǳƻǳǎƭȅ ŘŜǾŜƭƻǇ ŀƴŘ ǳǇŘŀǘŜ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ ǇƻƭƛŎƛŜǎΣ 

further strengthening Tabreed's regulatory framework compliance, aligning policies with best practices, and 

ensuring robust governance and operational excellence, while fostering a culture of improvement and 

accountability.

Å The Board Secretary facilitated ARCC's annual performance evaluation, which concluded on a positive note, 

affirming that the ARCC operates with exceptional standards and professionalism.
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In Year 2024, ARCC reviewed, endorsed and proposed to the Board in line with applicable SCA and ADAA standards 

and regulations:

Å CŜŜǎ ŦƻǊ 9¸Ωǎ ŀǳŘƛǘ ŀƴŘ ƴƻƴ-audit services for the year ending 31 December 2024.

Å !ǎǎŜǎǎŜŘ 9¸Ωǎ ŜŦŦŜŎǘƛǾŜƴŜǎǎ ŀƴŘ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ ōŀǎŜŘ ƻƴ ŀǇǇƭƛŎŀōƭŜ {/! ϧ !5!! ƎǳƛŘŜƭƛƴŜǎΣ ŜǎǇŜŎƛŀƭƭȅ !5!! 

Resolution 88 of 2021.

Å wŜǾƛŜǿŜŘ 9¸Ωǎ нлнп ŀǳŘƛǘ Ǉƭŀƴ ŀƴŘ ǿǊƛǘǘŜƴ ŎƻƴŦƛǊƳŀǘƛƻƴ ƻƴ ǘƘŜƛǊ ƛƴŘŜǇŜƴŘŜƴŎŜΦ

Å Oversight of 2024 tendering process for external audit services and directed mandatory rotation of engagement 

partner after 3 consecutive years, with a recommendation to Board to re-appoint EY for a three-year term 

commencing from 2025 (subject to shareholder approval in AGA), in line with applicable regulatory guidelines.

Å wŜǾƛŜǿŜŘ 9¸Ωǎ ǇǊƻŎŜŘǳǊŜǎΣ ǇǊŜƭƛƳƛƴŀǊȅ ŦƛƴŘƛƴƎǎΣ ŀƴŘ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘΩǎ ǊŜǎǇƻƴǎŜǎ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ aŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ [ŜǘǘŜǊΣ 

ensuring appropriate actions were taken.

Å Monitored quarterly non-ŀǳŘƛǘ ǎŜǊǾƛŎŜǎ ŀƴŘ ŦŜŜǎΣ ŜƴǎǳǊƛƴƎ 9¸Ωǎ ƛƴŘŜǇŜƴŘŜƴŎŜΣ ǿƛǘƘ ŘƛǎŎƭƻǎǳǊŜǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ 

statements.

Lƴ ƭƛŜǳ ƻŦ ŀōƻǾŜΣ !w// ƛǎ ǎŀǘƛǎŦƛŜŘ ǿƛǘƘ 9¸Ωǎ ǉǳŀƭƛǘȅΣ ƻōƧŜŎǘƛǾƛǘȅΣ ŀƴŘ ŜŦŦŜŎǘƛǾŜƴŜǎǎ ƛƴ ƛǘǎ ǘƘƛǊŘ ȅŜŀǊ ŀǎ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅ 

auditor.

¢ƘŜ LƴǘŜǊƴŀƭ !ǳŘƛǘ όάL!έύ ŦǳƴŎǘƛƻƴ ƛǎ ƎǳƛŘŜŘ ōȅ ƛǘǎ /ƘŀǊǘŜǊΣ {ǘǊŀǘŜƎȅΣ ŀƴŘ aŀƴǳŀƭΣ ŀƭƛƎƴƛƴƎ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ LƴǎǘƛǘǳǘŜ ƻŦ 

Internal Auditors Standards and undergoing regular internal and external quality assessments. The department, 

led by VP - Mousa Sajwani (Syed Aley serving as Acting VP since Oct-2024), consists of five (5) members and 

reports functionally to the ARCC for objectivity and independence. 

Å Approved the annual IA risk assessment report, used as a basis for developing the audit universe and 3-year 

audit plan. Provided inputs and endorsed the risk-based 2025-27 Internal Audit Plan for Board approval, 

ensuring appropriate coverage of Tabreed Group. 14 internal audit assignment activities are scheduled for 

2025.

Å Monitored progress of the 2024 Internal Audit Plan on a quarterly basis, approved adjustments due to changes 

in business and/or risk environment, and obtained assurance on the soundness of internal controls through 

discussions with VP-IA. 

Å Reviewed audit reports, discussed significant issues (high- & medium-risk) and management responses to 

ensure timely remediation of potential risks/process improvements identified, while monitoring the 

implementation of corrective actions for outstanding audit findings, guiding management to prioritize 

closures.

Å !ƴƴǳŀƭƭȅ ŜǾŀƭǳŀǘŜ L! ŦǳƴŎǘƛƻƴΩǎ YtLǎΣ ŜŦŦŜŎǘƛǾŜƴŜǎǎΣ ǊŜǎƻǳǊŎŜǎΣ ŀƴŘ ŎƻǎǘǎΦ

Å Reviewed and approved the Internal Audit Strategy and Manual, ensuring alignment with applicable 

regulatory standards.

In 2024, the IA department executed a total of 13 assurance & advisory reviews. The reviews covered business 

priority and key risk areas, focusing on the efficiency and effectiveness of governance and controls across business 

functions, operations and corporate processes inclusive-of subsidiaries and regulatory internal audit reporting. 

Å The 2022 Annual General Assembly (AGA) had appointed Ernst & Young (EY) as External Auditors for 2022-

2024, with their re-appointment and fees approved by shareholders in March 2024.

wŜǾƛŜǿŜŘ ŀƴŘ ŜƴŘƻǊǎŜŘ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ ǳƴŀǳŘƛǘŜŘ ǉǳŀǊǘŜǊƭȅ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǊŜǎǳƭǘǎΣ ŀǳŘƛǘŜŘ ŀƴƴǳŀƭ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎΣ 

and related announcements before recommending them for Board approval. Key activities included:

Å Assurance from External Auditor report that the annual / interim financial statements are prepared in 

accordance with International Accounting Standards (IAS). 

Å 5ŜƭƛōŜǊŀǘŜŘ ƻƴ ǎƛƎƴƛŦƛŎŀƴǘ ŀǳŘƛǘ ŀƴŘ ŀŎŎƻǳƴǘƛƴƎ ƳŀǘǘŜǊǎ ǎǳŎƘ ŀǎ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘΩǎ ŜǎǘƛƳŀǘŜǎ ŀƴŘ ƧǳŘƎƳŜƴǘǎΣ 

going concern assessment, materiality thresholds, and disclosure sufficiency, as disclosed in notes of the 

Annual Financial Statements.

Å Reviewed compliance with internal accounting policies and IFRS, with focus on significant financial matters 

such as UAE Corporate Income Tax, loan reclassification, net current liabilities, revenue recognition, 

provisions, contingent balances, and Sukuk buyback.

Financial Reporting

External Audit

LƴǘŜǊƴŀƭ !ǳŘƛǘ όάL!έύ

Corporate GovernanceReport

Corporate Governance
Report

Board of Directors

Board of Directors

Financial Statements

Financial Statements
Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance
Sustainability Review

Sustainability Review
Strategic Review

Strategic Review
Overview

Overview



Annual Integrated Report 2024

7.1 AUDIT, RISK AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE REPORT
Conclusion:

Å ARC Committee confirms its full compliance with its Charter. 

Å At its meeting on 12 February 2025, the ARC Committee reviewed the draft Annual Report & Accounts 
2024 and advised the Board that it was fair, balanced, and understandable, providing the necessary 
information for shareholders to assess the Group's position, performance, business model, and 
strategy. 

Å As Chair, I will remain available to engage with shareholders on the external audit scope and other 
key Audit Committee matters and will be present at the 2025 AGA to answer questions. 

The Audit Risk and Compliance Committee of Tabreed i.e., National Central Cooling Company PJSC (the 
ˮCompany˯) has prepared this report, in full accordance with the applicable laws and regulations 
including the information required by Securities and Commodities Authority (SCA) Decision 3/RM/2020 
regarding Governance Guide of Public Joint Stock Companies. The report include, in particular, the 
matters stated in Article 61(bis) of SCA Regulations, as amended by Decision 2/RM/2024, effective from 
January 2024.

This report has been issued in accordance with the endorsement by ARC Committee, as mandated by 
the Board and will be part of Integrated Annual Report 2024 and available to shareholders, investors and 
other interested parties on the Company website (www.tabreed.ae) as from the call of the next ordinary 
Annual General Shareholdersˬ Meeting.

Å Endorsed Income statement, Financials position and Cash flow impact presented by Finance team 
and ˫external auditors report on annual/interim financial statementsˬ in quarterly meetings.

Å Discussed assessments of corporate objectives, forecasts, and any deviations.

Å Reviewed legal and tax matters impacting financial statements preparation.

Å Reviewed the external auditorˬs report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting (ICFR) for 2022-
2023.

Å Assessed significant accounting and reporting areas for 2024 consolidated financial statements, with 
input from management, internal, and external auditors and their redressal plan..

Related Party Transactions

Å Reviewed the annual mandate for related party transactions, including disclosures in notes of the 
financial statements and compliance section. 

Å Reviewed update by Legal/Compliance team confirming no related party transactions in financial 
year 2024 that exceeded 5% of the companyˬs capital in 2024, per SCA requirements.

Å Mr. Geert Bunkens, Chair of the ARC Committee, will report to the AGA meeting in March 2025 on the 
Committee's activities in 2024 and up-to the AGA date.

Other Activities
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8. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The role of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC)  is to assist the Board in the efficient 
management of compensation and general human capital management. The key responsibilities of the 
NRC are outlined in the Board-approved Charter of the NRC and include:
Å Verifying the ongoing independence of the independent members of the Board;
Å Regulating and overseeing nomination to the membership of the Board;
Å Setting and reviewing ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎhuman capitals policies and procedures;
Å Formulating and reviewing, on an annual basis, the framework and broad policy for granting 

remuneration, terms of employment and any changes, benefits, bonuses, pensions, allowances, 
gratuities, early retirement and redundancy made to or given to ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎemployees, senior 
management, as well as compensation for ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎChairman and Board of Directors;

Å Ensuring that suitable succession plans are in place at senior executive levels; and
Å Reviewing and approving the hiring and termination of senior management staff.

The following table outlines the membership of the NRC during 2024:

Member Role Term Term Status

Dr. BakheetAl Katheeri Chairman From Jan to Aug Independent, Non-Executive

Dr. AlyaziaAl Kuwaiti Chairwoman From Aug to Dec Independent, Non-Executive

Dr. AlyaziaAl Kuwaiti Member From Jan to Aug Independent, Non-Executive

Pierre Cheyron Member From Jan to Dec Independent, Non-Executive

Mansoor Al Hamed Member From Aug to Dec Independent, Non-Executive

Saeed Al Dhaheri Member From Aug to Dec Independent, Non-Executive

Dr. BakheetAl Katheerisucceeded by Dr. AlyaziaAl Kuwaiti, each in their capacity as Chair of the NRC, 
acknowledged their responsibility for the NRC system in Tabreed, review of its working mechanisms and 
ensuring its effectiveness.

The NRC met 4 times, on the following dates during 2024:

Å 18 January; 

Å 06 February;

Å 12 July; and

Å 7 November.

The following table shows the attendance of each member for the period in which they were elected to the 
NRC:

Member
Meetings invited 
to

Attendance in person Proxy attendance

Dr. BakheetAl Katheeri 3 2 1

Dr. Alyazia Al Kuwaiti 4 4 -

Pierre Cheyron 4 3 1

MansoorAl Hamed 1 1 -

Saeed Al Dhaheri 1 1 -

Note: Committee members did not receive any fees for attending the meetings that serve the 
committee of which they are members
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9. OTHER COMMITTEES APPROVED BY THE BOARD 

9.1 Finance Committee

The duties of the Finance Committee are outlined below: 

Å ǊŜǾƛŜǿ ŀƴŘ ŜƴŘƻǊǎŜ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ŦƛǾŜ-year business plans, annual budgets and capital plans, including 
providing input into performance targets for management;

Å review and endorse all investments and commitments in excess of the authority delegated to the Chief 
Executive Officer;

Å track and monitor company financial performance and financial health including providing input into 
performance reviews for the Company; 

Å review the financial funding plan of the Company to ensure its adequacy and soundness in providing for the 
/ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ ŀƴŘ ŎŀǇƛǘŀƭ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜƳŜƴǘǎΣ ŀƴŘ ǊŜŎƻƳƳŜƴŘ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ .ƻŀǊŘΣ ŎƘŀƴƎŜǎ ƛƴ ŎŀǇƛǘŀƭ ǎǘǊǳŎǘǳǊŜ 
ŀǎ ƴŜŜŘ ōŜΣ ƛƴŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ ǊŜǾƛŜǿ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ŘŜōǘ ŀƴŘ Ŝǉǳƛǘȅ ǎǘǊǳŎǘǳǊŜΤ

Å ǊŜǾƛŜǿ ŀƴŘ ƳŀƪŜ ǊŜŎƻƳƳŜƴŘŀǘƛƻƴǎ ŎƻƴŎŜǊƴƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ŘƛǾƛŘŜƴŘ ǇƻƭƛŎȅΤ

Å review proposed major financing activities;

Å ǊŜǾƛŜǿ ǘƘŜ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ ǎǘǊŀǘŜƎƛŜǎ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ŎŀǎƘ ōŀƭŀƴŎŜǎΤ ŀƴŘ

Å review, monitor and recommend action on financial risk management including hedging of currency, 
commodity price and interest rate risk.

The following table outlines the membership of the Finance Committee during 2024:

Member Role Term Status

Dr. BakheetAl Katheeri Chairman From Jan to Aug Independent, Non-Executive

Dr. Mansoor Al Hamed Chairman From Aug to Dec Independent, Non-Executive

Pierre Cheyron Member From Jan to Dec Independent, Non-Executive

Saeed Ali Al Dhaheri Member From Jan to Dec Independent, Non-Executive

Dr. BakheetAl Katheerisucceeded by Mansoor Al Hamed in his capacity as Chairman of the Finance Committee, 
acknowledged their responsibility for the Finance Committee system in Tabreed, review of its working mechanisms and 
ensuring its effectiveness. 

TheFinanceCommitteemet6 times,onthe followingdates,during2024:

Å 12February;

Å 9 May;

Å 2September;

Å 14November;

Å 4December;and

Å 23December.

Member Meetings invited to Attendance in person Proxy attendance

Dr. BakheetAl Katheeri 2 1 1

Dr. Mansoor Al Hamed 4 4 -

Pierre Cheyron 6 6 -

Saeed Ali Al Dhaheri 6 6 -

The following table shows the attendance of each member for the period in which they were elected to the Finance 
Committee:

Note: Committee members did not receive any fees for attending the 
meetings that serve the committee of which they are members.
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Thedutiesof the ProjectsCommitteeareoutlinedbelow:

Å review¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎHSEperformanceandmakerecommendationsasappropriate;

Å reviewpoliciesandproceduresrelatedto projectsandprocurement;

Å reviewproject ideasandconceptualstudies;

Å review new cooling technologies and related feasibility studies scope, conclusion and
recommendations; and

Å review the major delivery aspects of all new projects, including scope of work, execution strategies, 
selection of bidders, key project management items, material contractual activities, changes in 
regulations or new regulations, policies, guidelines and other developments legal framework which 
ŎƻǳƭŘ ƘŀǾŜ ŀ ƳŀǘŜǊƛŀƭ ƛƳǇŀŎǘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜΦ 

Member Role Term Status

Pierre Cheyron Chairman From Jan to Dec Independent, Non-Executive

Dr. Alyazia  Al Kuwaiti Member From Jan to Aug Independent, Non-Executive

Christophe Dedet Member From Jan to Dec Independent, Non-Executive

Emad Goher Member From Aug to Dec Independent, Non-Executive

Pierre Cheyronin his capacity as Chairman of the Projects Committee, acknowledged his responsibility for 
the Projects Committee system in Tabreed, review of its working mechanisms and ensuring its 
effectiveness.

The Projects Committee met 4 times on thefollowing dates, during 2024:

Å 12 February;

Å 9 May;

Å 2 September; and

Å 12 December

Member Meetings invited to
Attendance in 
person

Proxy 
attendance

Pierre Cheyron 4 4 -

Dr. AlyaziaAl Kuwaiti 2 2 -

Christophe Dedet 4 4 -

Emad Goher 2 2 -

Note: Committee members did not receive any fees for attending the meetings 
that serve the committee of which they are members.

The following table shows the attendance of each member for the period in which they were elected to 
the Finance Committee:

The following table outlines the membership of the Projects Committee during 2024:

9.2 The Projects Committee:
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9.3 Board of Directors and Committees Evaluation

¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ .ƻŀǊŘ ƻŦ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎ ǳƴŘŜǊǘƻƻƪ ŀ ōƻŀǊŘ ǎŜƭŦ-assessment evaluation on Board performance and skillsets conducted in compliance with regulatory requirements.

ÅEvaluation Overview: The self-evaluation questionnaire and Board skills audit were issued to Board Members in November 2024 to evaluate performance and skills, aiming to 
identify areas for improvement. The results were discussed with board at the February 2025 Board meeting.

ÅKey Findings: The evaluation results showed strong and consistent board performance, with effective operations, robust composition, and well-chaired meetings.

ÅAudit Skill Matrix Findings: The skills audit revealed strong technical proficiency in core business areas (finance, energy, and human resources). The Board is open to ongoing 
professional development particular in the areas of regulatory knowledge, ESG, and cybersecurity and regular reviews of boardcomposition. 

ÅCommittee Performance: The Board is satisfied with the performance of its committees, in particular the Finance Committee.

ÅAreas for Improvement: The Board self assessed that in the year ahead they would further develop its know how by a scheduling a refresher board briefing on board 
governance principles.
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10. INSIDER INFORMATION AND DEALINGS COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the requirements laid down in Decision 3/2020, Tabreed formed the Insider Information and Dealings Committee thatregulates transactions and holdings of Tabreed 

shares by Board members and employees of Tabreed. The Insider Information and Dealings Policy was approved by the Board on 22February 2017. Following approval by the 

Board of the policy, the Insider Information and Dealings Committee operated in accordance with the approved policy as revised from time to time. 

Member Date of appointment Role

Nadia Bardawil May 2023 Chairwoman

Mousa Sajwani February 2020 till October 2024 Member

Syed Aley* October 2024 Member

SalikMalik April 2022 Member

During 2024 the committee maintained insider lists for various price sensitive matters and operated in accordance with the Market Conduct and Securities Trading Policy and the 

Insider Information and Dealings Policy.

Nadia Bardawilin the capacity as Chair of the Insider Information and Dealings Committee acknowledged responsibility for the Insider Information and Dealings Committee 

system in Tabreed, review of its working mechanisms and ensuring its effectiveness for the year 2024. 

Note: Committee members did not receive any fees for attending the meetings that serve the committee of which they are members.

Thefollowingtableshowsthe Committeemembersduring2024:
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11. INTERNAL AUDIT SYSTEM 
Pursuant to Articles 14 & 67 of Decision 3/2020, Tabreedˬs Internal Audit Department has been established by the Board to provide independent, objective and authoritative advice as well as assurance over the internal audit 
environment to the Board, ARC Committee and management, to assist them in discharging their functions and duties. The Board of Directors acknowledges responsibility for regularly reviewing the effectiveness of the 
Internal Audit Department of the Company. The Internal Audit Department reports to the Board and operates under the stewardship of the ARC Committee. This enables the Internal Audit Department to operate in an 
independent and objective manner while evaluating and contributing to the improvement of the organizationˬs governance, risk management, and control processes using a systematic, disciplined, and risk-based approach.

The scope of internal audit activities are well defined and implemented through approved IA Charter, IA Strategy & IA Manual in line with IIA Standards and include evaluation to ensure - Risks relating to the achievement of 
(Tabreed)ˬs strategic objectives are appropriately identified and managed; Compliance with companyˬs policies, procedures, and applicable laws, regulations, and governance standards; Operations or programs are being 
carried out effectively and efficiently; Information and the means used to identify, measure, analyze, classify, and report such information are reliable and have integrity; and Resources and assets are acquired economically, 
used efficiently, and protected adequately.

The designated Internal Audit Officer for 2024 was Mousa Sajwani who was appointed on 23 February 2020 reporting directly to the ARC Committee. Mousa is currently on a military service from October 7, 2024, till end of 
2025 (during this while Syed Aley S˩enior Manager will be acting as Vice President I˩nternal Audit on his behalf reporting to ARC Committee). Mousa has over 15 years of experience with an industry journey spanning across 
multiple industries such as Oil & Gas, Regulatory and Utilities with experience in all parts of the Finance division in additionto Asset Management experience. Syed is a seasoned MENA-region GRC professional with over 25 
years of experience in various MNCs and Private / Listed Entities across multiple industries (O&G, Utilities, Defense, Shipping,Logistics & Agriculture sectors).

In line with SCA Articles 67 & 68, an annual internal audit was completed by the Internal Audit Department and reported to the ARC Committee and to the Board for 2024. In addition, the Internal Audit Department finalized 
and issued 12 audit reports to the ARC Committee/ Board including DFM Listing & SCA Regulatory Rules Audit; SCA-ARCC-Compliance Review; HSEQ Audit; Procure to Pay Audit; Cyber-Security Assessment (ITAR Activity); 
Finance (Fixed Assets) Audit; Oman Finance Audit; Bahrain Finance Audit; India Commercial Audit; and UAE, Bahrain & Oman Internal Controls (COSO) Reviews. 

Furthermore, internal audit department completed the annual audit risk assessment which was reported to the ARC Committee andformed the basis for 2025-27 Internal Audit Plan (approved by ARC Committee). The 
Internal Audit Department also spearheaded a "Project Excellence" initiative to assist management in reviewing 17 policies across various departments..

The Board met its internal audit responsibilities in 2024 by reviewing presentations on risk management, discussing internal audit / control issues at Board meetings, and reviewing periodic reports from Board ARC 
Committee; and found that the internal audit environment was satisfactory for 2024. During 2024, the Company did not face anymajor internal audit issue requiring disclosure in any report or to the market.
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12. IRREGULARITIES IN 2024

Except as otherwise specifically stated elsewhere in this report, Tabreed confirms that it is 

compliant with Decision 3/2020 on Corporate Discipline and Governance Standards and 

that no irregularity occurred during the course of 2024.
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¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ ŀǇǇǊƻŀŎƘ ǘƻ ŎƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ ǎƻŎƛŀƭ ǊŜǎǇƻƴǎƛōƛƭƛǘȅ ƛƴǾƻƭǾŜǎ ŀŘƻǇǘƛƴƎ ōǳǎƛƴŜǎǎ ǇǊŀŎǘƛŎŜǎ ǘƘŀǘΣ ƛƴ 
addition to being compliant with applicable legal and regulatory requirements, are based on ethical 
values and respect for the immediate community and stakeholders of the Company (being 
employees, customers, partners, investors, suppliers, vendors, government and the environment). 

Tabreed is also conscious about its overall social impact and understands the increasing 
expectations of its stakeholders in relation to how Tabreed conducts its business. Consequently, 
Tabreed chooses to be socially responsible and to contribute as a sustainable business to positively 
impact the wider community.

In light of the above, Tabreed has in place a Code of Conduct which is regularly revised and 
updated that sets out internal rules and requirements for:

Å Improper payments;

Å Market misconduct;

Å Prevention of fraud, and money laundering;

Å Entertainment and gifts;

Å Working with stakeholders, suppliers and government;

Å Sponsorship and CSR Policy;

Å Serving the community; and

Å Sustainability and corporate social responsibility.

¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ /ƻŘŜ ƻŦ /ƻƴŘǳŎǘ ǎŜǘǎ ƻǳǘ ǘƘŜ ŦǊŀƳŜǿƻǊƪΣ ǾŀƭǳŜǎΣ ǇǊƛƴŎƛǇƭŜǎ ŀƴŘ ǎǘŀƴŘŀǊŘǎ ōȅ ǿƘƛŎƘ ǿŜ 
expect all our employees to abide when dealing with vendors, customers, contractors and other 
external stakeholders, as well as when dealing with colleagues, affiliates, subsidiaries and internal 
departments. 

In 2024, all Tabreed employees and Board members were required to complete an annual 
declaration confirming compliance with the Code of Conduct, disclosing any matters of potential 
non-compliance to the Tabreed compliance team for its review and consideration. This is a 
practice undertaken annually in addition to quarterly updates requested from Board members 
through the year and requests for ongoing reporting from employees to be made throughout the 
year. 

Tabreed maintained in 2024 a dedicated, anonymous whistleblowing hotline which is available to 
Tabreed staff to make declarations on possible breaches of code of conduct or other unacceptable 
behaviourwithin the company. Communications to staff have emphasisedthat the hotline is run 
by an independent operator and disclosures can be made anonymously and disclosures will be 
passed to the Compliance team for its review. 

The Tabreed Compliance team maintains on an annual and regular 
basis the online training for all Tabreed corporate staff on the subjects 
of Anti Bribery and Corruption, Anti Money Laundering and Delegation 
of Authority. Participation of 100% of corporate staff was recorded via 
our Elearningprovider. 

13. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: CODE OF CONDUCT AND LOCAL COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 
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As part of our commitment to excellence, Tabreed continues to foster a culture of mindful decision making and 
financial prudence through WIZe, the cost-optimization initiative launched in 2023. 

By embracing this initiative, Tabreed reinforced its position as a forward-thinking company that values the 
importance of strategic decision-ƳŀƪƛƴƎ ŘŜƳƻƴǎǘǊŀǘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘΩǎ ǇǊǳŘŜƴŎŜ ƛƴ ƛŘŜƴǘƛŦȅƛƴƎ ŀƴŘ ŎŀǇƛǘŀƭƛȊƛƴƎ ƻƴ 
cost-saving opportunities to streamline the processes, eliminate unnecessary expenditures and fortify the overall 
operational efficiency.

WIZehas not only proven successful but has also underscored the collective impact of our employees in driving cost-
savings and advancing our journey towards financial resilience and sustainable growth

¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ LƴǘŜǊƴǎƘƛǇ tǊƻƎǊŀƳ ό¢Ltύ ƛǎ ŀ ŎƻƳǇǊŜƘŜƴǎƛǾŜ ƻǇǇƻǊǘǳƴƛǘȅΣ ǿŜƭŎƻƳƛƴƎ ŀǇǇƭƛŎŀƴǘǎ ƻŦ ŀƭƭ ƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭƛǘƛŜǎΣ 
including individuals who have graduated. This program is crafted to offer valuable career-related experiences, 
extending beyond the traditional confines of student internships. Tabreed recognizes the significance of internships in 
shaping the professional journey and believes in providing a platform for individuals, irrespective of their academic 
status, to gain practical insights and enhance their career development.

Tabreed invests in the aspiring youth of the Country as a service to the local community and part of its Corporate 
{ƻŎƛŀƭ wŜǎǇƻƴǎƛōƛƭƛǘȅ ƳŀƴŘŀǘŜΦ ¢ƘǊƻǳƎƘ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ {ǇƻƴǎƻǊǎƘƛǇ tǊƻƎǊŀƳΣ ǘŀƭŜƴǘ Ǉƻƻƭǎ ǿƛƭƭ ōŜ ƛŘŜƴǘƛŦƛŜŘ ŀǎ ǘƘŜ 
potential future workforce of the Company.

The Company attracts UAE national Students to work with Tabreed by providing a sponsorship with one of the 
granted local (UAE) based Accredited Universities and Technical Colleges.

Tabreed has implemented a development programme to further develop the skills of UAE national employees to 
ŀŎŎŜƭŜǊŀǘŜ ǘƘŜƛǊ ŎƻƴǘǊƛōǳǘƛƻƴ ǘƻ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ-driven culture by creating alignment between the company 
goals and employee performance, which includes a development program with specific and measurable milestones to 
monitor professional development to ensure employees are being effectively developed and trained to take on 
increasingly senior roles within the organization.

Tabreed has established a succession plan framework to provide continuity in leadership and avoid extended and 
costly vacancies in key positions. Succession planning is a process for identifying and developing internal people with 
the potential to fill key business leadership positions in the Company. Succession planning in senior roles is 
considered an essential job requirement. Critical Role Job incumbents are accountable for identifying and developing 
ǘƘŜƛǊ ǇƻǘŜƴǘƛŀƭ ǎǳŎŎŜǎǎƻǊǎ ǘƻ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜ ǿƛǘƘ ŀ Ŏƻƴǘƛƴǳƻǳǎ Ŧƭƻǿ ƻŦ ǘŀƭŜƴǘŜŘ ǇŜƻǇƭŜ ǘƻ ƳŜŜǘ ǘƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ƴŜŜŘǎ

In September 2024, Tabreed launched its first Compliance Month campaign, highlighting the critical role of 
compliance principles in the business. The initiative was well received by staff and featured several engaging 
activities, including: (1) Infographic briefings: Simplified key topics such as Anti-Bribery & Corruption, Share Trading 
Rules, and the EARS facility; (2) Staff webinar: Christian Hunt presented "Why We Are All Wired to Make Mistakes," 
using live and practical examples to underscore the importance of compliance; (3) Plant visit: Demonstrated the 
significance of workplace compliance at Tabreed facilities; and (4) Compliance Quiz: A "Spin the Wheel" quiz held in 
the office to reinforce learning in a fun and interactive way.

13.1. WIZe Initiative

13.2. Plant visits

13.4. Al ReyadahProgram 

13.7. Compliance Month Campaign

13.5. Sponsorship

13.6. Succession Planning 

New joiner employees are invited to tour our plants during their joining month as part of their orientation. Plant visits 
will give insights on the operations of district cooling plants. 

13.3. Student Internships
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The Company complies with all applicable UAE environmental laws and regulations and has received specific 

permits from the UAE Environment Agencies in each applicable Emirate. 

Å Tabreed achieves Verified Carbon Standard for carbon credits generation from one of its district cooling 

projects 

Å In relation to effluent water release:

Å Obtaining permits for plant effluent water release from Environmental Agency Abu Dhabi (EAD) after 

undertaking to control certain parameter requirements such as acidity, turbidity and conductivity of the 

effluent. 

Å In relation to emissions into the air:

Å Air quality is monitored at all plants on regular basis, Including for the presence of formaldehyde.

14.1.1 Environmental Management

14.1.3 Waste Management

Tabreed continued to comply with relevant UAE federal / local authorities by enforcing its Waste Management 
Reduction Plan that applies to all its plants, project sites and offices, with the key objectives to protect the 
environment and minimize / reduce waste materials through prudent waste management program..

14.1.4 United Nations Sustainable Development

In addition, we are working to align our business strategy with the United Nations (UN) Sustainable Development Goals 
όά{5DǎέύΦ !ǎ ŀ ƳŜƳōŜǊ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ά/ƻƻƭ /ƻŀƭƛǘƛƻƴέ ǎǘŜŜǊƛƴƎ ŎƻƳƳƛǘǘŜŜ - a United Nations initiative -we have supported the UN 
SDGs since their inception. So far, we have set aggressive goals that align to the objectives and targets of several SDGs.

{ǳǎǘŀƛƴŀōƛƭƛǘȅ ƛǎ ŀǘ ǘƘŜ ŎƻǊŜ ƻŦ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎΦ Lǘ ǊŜŦƭŜŎǘǎ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ŎƻƳƳƛǘƳŜƴǘ ǘƻ ŜƴŜǊƎȅ ŜŦŦƛŎƛŜƴŎȅ ŀƴŘ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ 
environment, to its customers and to the sustainable socio-economic development of the region. They guide our day-to-day 
work, environmental and governance practices as well as our social

14.1.2 Go Green Initiative

Dƻ DǊŜŜƴ ƛǎ ŀƴ ƛƴƛǘƛŀǘƛǾŜ ǘƻ ǎǳǇǇƻǊǘ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ ŜŦŦƻǊǘǎ ƻƴ ǎǳǎǘŀƛƴŀōƛƭƛǘȅ ǿƛǘƘ ŀ ƪŜŜƴ ŦƻŎǳǎ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ǊŜŘǳŎǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ƛǘǎ 
environmental impact. A core element of this initiative is reduction in the amounts of resources consumed which 
will consequently reduce waste generated by the Company. In the primary phase, this initiative focused on 
Tabreed Head Office with requirements, such as energy efficiency and reduction in generated waste (e.g., reducing 
paper and plastic usage). The following are a few accomplishments:

Å Secure printing initiative: decrease in the number of printers (group and

standalones) with the implementation of secure card operated printers for increased security and usage 

efficiency.

Å Digital signature initiative: adopted paper-free, fast and secure processes to send, sign, and approve 

documents. 

Å Solar panels installed in TM 12 and AD 16 with a generation capacity of 1.2 MW to feed into the LV network. 

Å tŀǇŜǊƭŜǎǎ ǇǊƻƧŜŎǘ ǎƛǘŜ ƛƴƛǘƛŀǘƛǾŜΥ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ tǊƻƧŜŎǘǎ ŘŜǇŀǊǘƳŜƴǘ ƛŘŜƴǘƛŦƛŜǎ ǎƛǘŜǎ ŦƻǊ ǇŀǇŜǊƭŜǎǎ 
transactions; an action plan is set and achieved to reduce paper usage by a certain percentage at 
these sites.

Å Plastic bottles initiative: usage of plastic water bottles has been stopped, dispensers along with 
biodegradable paper cups placed, and refillable, sanitized metal water bottles were provided.

14.1 Sustainability

14. SUSTAINABILITY, OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH & SAFETY, AND QUALITY 
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14.2 Focus on Occupational Health and Safety

14. SUSTAINABILITY, OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH & SAFETY, AND QUALITY 

14.2.1 Leadership & Commitment:

Å Top management is fully committed to HSE with direct reporting line to the COO

Å HSE performance reporting is done to the Board of Directors on monthly basis

Å HSE steering committee comprises HSEQ, Operations, Projects, and Supply Management departments

Å Multiple plant and site visits performed each year by Chiefs, VPs, and senior management

Å Management Review is done on regular basis to ensure continual improvement

Å Compliance to regulatory authorities (DOE/OSHAD, NCEMA, DM, HAAD, TADWEER, and EAD etc.) 

Å !ǎǎƛƎƴŜŘ 5{{Ҍ ǘƻ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳ ŀ ŎƻƴǎǳƭǘŀƴŎȅ ǿƻǊƪ άwƛǎƪ-Based Assessment & Improvement Roadmap"

14.2.2 IMS Policy:

Key aspects of the IMS policy are as follows:

Å Integrate Quality, Energy Management and Business Continuity with OH&S and Environment

Å Conduct business in socially responsible manner

Å HSEQ is a key consideration in business planning and decisions

Å Comply with all regulations and industry best practices

Å Ensure all employees are trained and motivated to adopt and develop HSE culture

Å Seek continuous improvement in HSE and quality performance

14.2.3 Certifications and Awards:

Recipient of the latest revisions of the ISO certifications:

Å ISO9001:2015 for Quality Management Systems

Å ISO14001:2015 for Environment Management Systems

Å ISO45001 2018 for Occupational Health and Safety Management Systems

Å ISO50001:2018 for Energy Management Systems ςthe first DC company in the region to have done so 

Additionally, Tabreed was honored and recognized on several fronts and received the following awards: 
Å Institutional Investors Survey: # 1 in Emerging EMEA Utilities
Å International Finance Award: Best Finance Team Award - Utilities; Best IR Team Award ςUtilities
Å Europe and Emerging EMEA IR Awards: Top 5 IR Program in Energy Sector
Å OnConAwards: Top 10 Finance Team Award
Å International Business Magazine: Best CFO UAE; Best Finance Leader of the Year UAE and Best Use of Technology in 

Finance Awards
Å MEIRA IR Awards: Best ESG Report in the Middle East ςMidcap sector, #2 in Most Improved IR Program in the GCC
Å IDEA Awards: Total Number of Buildings Added or Recommitted ςSilver Award; Total Square Footage Added or 

Recommitted ςSilver Award
Å Asian Power Awards 2024: Renewable Projects (Geothermal DCP) ςGold Award; DC Initiative of the Year ςUAE 

(Nano-particle additive in CW System) 
Å Gulf Sustainability Award: Best Employee Well-Being ςSilver Award
Å Global ESG Awards: Health and Well-being Programs ςGold Award
Å HRM Summit Awards ςBahrain: People-CƻŎǳǎŜŘ /9h ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ¸ŜŀǊέ

14.2.4 Implementation and Performance:

Å HSE aspects integrated at project conceptual / design stages

Å 5ŜǾŜƭƻǇƳŜƴǘ ƻŦ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ I{9v ŀƴŘ 9ƴŜǊƎȅ aŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ Ƴŀƴǳŀƭ

Å Frequent Regular internal and external HSEQ audits to ensure compliance to ISO standards, UAE regulations 
(OSHAD, DM, etc.) and international standards 

Health, safety, and environment or HSE is the cornerstone of our operations and an integral 
part of business planning and strategic goal setting
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Tabreed is certified under ISO9001:2015 and integrates its quality management system with other management systems, such as 
ISO45001 (OH&S), making it ever more essential to ensure sound integration while documenting and implementing the quality 
management program across the organization.

To ascertain sustained Business Excellence Tabreed has endeavouredon EQM, an organization-wide Total Quality Management 
program with the following core objectives:

Å Providing insight on quality management functions by Tabreed HSEQ and other departments and mapping them against the 
essential clauses from ISO9001, 9004 and the SKEA (Sheikh Khalifa Excellence Award) model.

Å Finding discrepancies in existing quality management efforts.

Å Continue to improve to overcome such discrepancies.

Å Integration on a unified platform all the quality efforts.

14.2.4 Implementation and Performance:

Å Regular HSE trainings and awareness programs to enhance HSE readiness

Å Robust Permit to Work (PTW) system

Å Action tracking system for effective monitoring of HSE performance, objectives and KPIs

Å 2.6 million man-hours without any major injuries, until the end of Q3, 2024

Å Robust behavioural-based safety (BBS) program to ensure compliance with HSE culture

Å Innovative ideas to strengthen HSE culture, such as HSE Walls, Electronic Display Screens, and Black-White Points System to enhance contractor management

14.2.5 Automation and AI to ensure HSE Compliance:

Key endeavoursinclude:

Å Integrating AI with CCTV at the plants

Å Lone worker application to monitor safety and wellbeing of those working in remote areas or alone at a plant

Å Digitalization of Tabreed PTW and LOTO processes

Å Headcount system for the head office

14.3 Focus on Occupational Health and Safety
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15.1 Share Price 

15. GENERAL INFORMATION

The following table presents the highest and lowest share price of Tabreed during each month of 2024 
and shows the closing price of Tabreed, Market Indexand Sector Indexat the end of each month 
during 2024:

TabreedSharePrice (AED) Market
Index

Sector Index
Share Performance

vs.Market vs.sectorHighest Lowest Closing

January 3.62 3.07 3.21 4169.08 953.28 -12.7% -11.3%

February 3.49 3.17 3.49 4308.77 925.25 5.2% 12.0%

March 3.59 3.19 3.23 4246.27 925.72 -6.1% -7.5%

April 3.26 2.88 3.04 4155.77 889.13 -3.8% -2.0%

May 3.44 2.99 3.10 3977.93 869.03 6.5% 4.3%

June 3.32 3.00 3.00 4030.00 834.82 -4.5% 0.7%

July 3.20 3.00 3.06 4268.05 903.58 -3.7% -5.8%

August 3.13 2.93 2.95 4325.45 909.12 -4.9% -4.2%

September 3.07 2.95 3.02 4503.48 956.62 -1.7% -2.7%

October 3.24 2.95 3.24 4591.05 948.66 5.2% 8.2%

November 3.29 2.74 2.90 4847.34 986.74 -15.2% -13.9%

December 3.05 2.83 3.00 5158.67 1044.73 -2.8% -2.3%
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Shareholder Ownership (%) as at 31 December 2024 is as follows:

Source: Dubai Financial Market 

Total Individual Company (incl. Institutions & Banks) Government

Local (UAE) 51.81 % 5.17 % 46.64 % 0.00 %

GCC 2.19 % 0.24 % 1.95 % 0.00 %

Arab 0.43 % 0.38 % 0.05 % 0.00 %

Others 45.58 % 0.37 % 45.21 % 0.00 %

Shareholderswho own 5% or more of the sharecapital as at 31 December2024
are:
Name Number of shares owned (million) % Ownership

GDF International 1,138.108 40.00 %

General Investments FZE 1,087.217 38.21 %

Source: Dubai Financial Market 

Shares owned
No. of 

Shareholders
No. of shares held

% of the shares 
owned

1 Less than 50,000 17,052 32,040,898 1.13 %

2
From 50,000 to less than 

500,000
287 43,782,420 1.54 %

3
From 500,00 to less than 

5,000,000
77 110,351,426 3.88 %

4 More than 5,000,000 22 2,659,096,326 93.46 %

Total 17,438 2,845,271,070 100.00 %
Source: Dubai Financial Market 

For the purposes of Article 51 of Decision 3/2020, the officer in charge of Investor Relations (IR) and 
Shareholder Communications for the Company is YugeshSuneja, Head of Investor Relations. Contact 
details of IR Department are:

Å Emailaddress: ir@tabreed.ae;

Å Telephone: +9712 2020400

CǳǊǘƘŜǊ ƛƴŦƻǊƳŀǘƛƻƴ ƛƴ ǊŜƭŀǘƛƻƴ ǘƻ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƻǊ ǊŜƭŀǘƛƻƴǎ ƛǎ ŀǾŀƛƭŀōƭŜ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ άLƴǾŜǎǘƻǊ wŜƭŀǘƛƻƴǎέ ǎŜŎǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ 
¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎwebsite: www.tabreed.ae.

15.4 Shareholders Ownership Distribution

15.3 Ownership - 5% or More

15.2 Shareholder Ownership 

15.5 Investor Relations
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15.6 General Assemblies; Special Resolutions

15.6.1) 19 March 2024 AGA Special Resolutions:

ÅAuthorisethe Board of Directors of the Company, for a period of 12 months, to issue non-convertible (into shares) bonds and/or sukuk (whether directly or through a special 
purpose vehicle) in accordance with this special resolution, in one or more tranches, to be offered to qualified investors, with a total value of up to USD 1 billion (or equivalent) 
in aggregate and at a profit rate not exceeding the prevailing market rate available to companies with the same credit ratingasthe Company, in each case as the Board of 
Directors of the Company sees fit.

Tabreedconductedone generalassemblyin 2024, namely its AnnualGeneralAssemblyon 19 March 2024, where the following specialresolutionswere passedto during the
Assembly:

Sean James Magee is the Company Secretary of Tabreed and was appointed on 11 May 2022. Sean James Magee is an experienced UK qualified lawyer with experience across 
infrastructure projects and operations, corporate and commercial matters, with experience in the UK and the UAE. The primary responsibilities of the Company Secretary are to 
promote corporate governance excellence within the Boardroom and to ensure that a healthy relationship exists between the Board and the management of the Company. The 
Company Secretary ensures compliance with applicable corporate governance requirements and regulations at all times. The CompanySecretary also coordinates meetings of the 
Board of Directors, circulates the agenda and supporting information in advance of the meetings and then prepares and finalizes the minutes of those meetings. Currently the 
Company Secretary acts independently from management and reports directly to the Board in his capacity as the Company Secretary, however Sean Magee is an employee of the 
Company, in a separate capacity as the General Counsel. Sean re-qualified as a DFM approved Company Secretary in May 2022. 

15.7 Board Secretary
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15.8 Significant Events ς2024

Date Events

2 February ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΣ Ƙŀǎ ŎƻƴŎƭǳŘŜŘ ǘƘŜ ǘƘƛǊŘ ǇƘŀǎŜ ƻŦ ƛǘǎ ΨTasheelΩ ǇǊƻƎǊŀƳƳŜ ςan ambitious and extensive retrofit of Variable Frequency Drives (VFDs) to increase energy efficiency 
and assist in the decarbonisationƻŦ ƛǘǎ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎΦ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘ ŎŜƭŜōǊŀǘŜŘ ƛǘǎ ǎƛƭǾŜǊ ƧǳōƛƭŜŜ ƛƴ нлно ŀƴŘ ƛǎ ǘƘŜ aƛŘŘƭŜ 9ŀǎǘΩǎ ƻǊƛƎƛƴŀƭ ŘƛǎǘǊƛŎǘ ŎƻƻƭƛƴƎ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜǊΦ

9 February ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΣ ƘŀŘ ƛǘǎ ΨLƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ DǊŀŘŜΩ ǎǘŀǘǳǎ ǊŜŀŦŦƛǊƳŜŘ ōȅ aƻƻŘȅΩǎ ŀƴŘ CƛǘŎƘΣ ōŜƛƴƎ ǊŀǘŜŘ .ŀŀо ŀƴŘ ... ǊŜǎǇŜŎǘƛǾŜƭȅΦ aƻƻŘȅΩǎ ǊŜport was published on 21 December 2023, 
with Fitch releasing its findings more recently, on 29 January 2024.

15 February Tabreed, released its consolidated financial results for the year 2023, reporting a revenue of AED 2.4 billion ςa 9% increase over 2022 ςand a net profit attributable to 
parent, before deferred tax, of AED 751 million.

15March Tabreed shareholders approved a record high dividend payment of 15.5 filsǇŜǊ ǎƘŀǊŜΣ ǇŀƛŘ Ŧǳƭƭȅ ƛƴ ŎŀǎƘΦ !ǎ ŘƛǎŎƭƻǎŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ǊŜŎŜƴǘ Ŧǳƭƭ-year results for 2023, 
ǘƘƛǎ ǊŜǇǊŜǎŜƴǘŜŘ ŀƴ ƛƴŎǊŜŀǎŜ ƻŦ мр҈ ƻǾŜǊ ǘƘŜ ǇǊŜǾƛƻǳǎ ȅŜŀǊ ŀƴŘ ǊŜŎƻƎƴƛǎŜŘ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ ǎǘǊƻƴƎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜΦ 5ǳǊƛƴƎ нлно, Tabreed reported a growth of 9% in 
revenue and an increase of 25% in net profit before tax to parent.

15May Tabreed, released its consolidated financial results for the first three months of 2024, recording consumption volume increases year-on-year of 9%, driven by new 
connections attributing to organic growth recorded during the past year. The company reported a net profit before tax of AED 122million, representing an increase of 4% 
compared to AED 117 million (adjusted for one-off gains and losses) reported during the same period last year.

28May ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΣ ǘǊŀƴǎŦƻǊƳŜŘ ƻƴŜ ƻŦ ƛǘǎ ƳŀƧƻǊ ¦!9 ŦŀŎƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ ƛƴǘƻ ŀ ƳŀǎǘŜǊǇƛŜŎŜ ƻŦ ǎǘǊŜŜǘ ŀǊǘΦ ¢ƘŜ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ !ƭ aŀǊȅŀƘ LǎƭŀƴŘ Ǉƭŀƴǘ ǎupplies an impressive roster of clients, such as 
Cleveland Clinic, Rosewood Abu Dhabi, Four Seasons, Galleria Mall and Abu Dhabi Global Market, with essential district cooling services.

6 June Tabreed Publishes its latest ESG Report, covering the year 2023 and demonstrating impressive strides towards decarbonisation of cooling as the Company made significant 
ǎǘǊƛŘŜǎ ƛƴ ŘŜŎŀǊōƻƴƛǎŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ŎƻƻƭƛƴƎ ǘƘǊƻǳƎƘƻǳǘ нлно ŀƴŘ ŜƴǊƻƭƭŜŘ ƛƴ 5CaΩǎ /ŀǊōƻƴ /ǊŜŘƛǘǎ tƛƭƻǘ ŀƴŘ ǇǳǊŎƘŀǎŜŘ /ƭŜŀƴ 9ƴŜǊƎȅ /ertificates

1 July ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΣ Ƙŀǎ ŎƻƳǇƭŜǘŜŘ ƛǘǎ ǇŀǊǘƛŎƛǇŀǘƛƻƴ ŀǘ ǘƘƛǎ ȅŜŀǊΩǎ .ƛƎ р /ƻƴǎǘǊǳŎǘ 9ƎȅǇǘΣ ǿƘŜǊŜ ƳŜƳōŜǊǎ ƻŦ ƛǘǎ ŜȄŜŎǳǘƛǾŜ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ǘŜŀƳled the discussion on the vital topics of 
decarbonisation through planning efficiency and the role of district cooling in sustainable cities.
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15.8 Significant Events ς2024 (Cont.) 

Date Events

9 July Tabreed, wrapped its sponsorship and participation at the third edition of Asia Urban Energy Assembly in Bangkok, Thailand. Strategically an extremely promising market 
for sustainable cooling, Tabreed is seeking new opportunities across Southeast Asia, where the effects of global temperature rises are posing ever greater risks to society.

9 August Tabreed, has released its consolidated financial results for the first six months of 2024 and announced changes to its Board of Directors. Tabreedexperienced an 8% year-
on-year surge in consumption volumes, reflecting rising cooling demand during the summer and continued strategic expansion over the past 12 months. The Company 
delivered a net profit before tax of AED 291 million ςan increase of 4% compared to the same period last year. Tabreedwas pleased to announce the appointment of Dr. 
BakheetAl Katheerias the new Chairman of its Board of Directors, succeeding Khaled Al Qubaisi, who has served as ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎChairman since 2017.

29August ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΣ ƳŀŘŜ ŀ ƳŀƧƻǊ ŀŘǾŀƴŎŜƳŜƴǘ ƛƴ ƛǘǎ ŜŦŦƻǊǘǎ ǘƻ ŘŜŎŀǊōƻƴƛǎŜ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƻƭƛƴƎ ǎŜŎǘƻǊΣ ŀŎƘƛŜǾƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ Ψ±ŜǊƛŦƛŜŘ /ŀǊōƻƴ {ǘŀƴŘŀǊŘΩ at one of its Abu Dhabi plants, certifying 
carbon credits to offset emissions..

19September Tabreed, completed its sponsorship, exhibition and participation at the third World Utilities Congress, held at the Abu DhabiNational Exhibition Centre (ADNEC). Since the 
first edition in May 2022, the event has become a firm fixture on the calendar for regional and global utilities companies and Tabreed has played a central role as sponsor 
and exhibitor from the start. 

25October Tabreed, has been honouredat the prestigious 2024 Asian Power Awards, held in Singapore recognisingTabreed as a long-established champion of sustainable cooling. 
WǳŘƎŜǎ ŀǿŀǊŘŜŘ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅ ǿƛǘƘ ǘǿƻ ǎƛƎƴƛŦƛŎŀƴǘ ŀǿŀǊŘǎΥ ΨDŜƻǘƘŜǊƳŀƭ tƻǿŜǊ tǊƻƧŜŎǘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ¸ŜŀǊ ςDƻƭŘΩ ŀƴŘ Ψ5ƛǎǘǊƛŎǘ /ƻƻƭƛƴƎ Lƴƛǘiative of the Year ς¦!9ΩΦ

15November Tabreed, released its consolidated financial results for the first nine months of 2024. Tabreed has experienced a 6% year-on-year rise in consumption volumes during 9M 
2024. During the first nine months period, the company delivered consistent growth, maintained resilient profitability margins and further strengthened its financial 
position. 

25November Tabreed, completed its week-long activities at COP29 in Baku, Azerbaijan. During this vitally important global event, the companȅΩǎ ǊŜǇǊŜǎŜƴǘŀǘƛǾŜǎ ŘŜƭƛǾŜǊŜŘ ƪŜȅƴƻǘŜ 
addresses, participated as panellistsŀƴŘ ŘŜƭƛǾŜǊŜŘ ǇǊŜǎŜƴǘŀǘƛƻƴǎ ǘƘŀǘ ǇƻǎƛǘƛƻƴŜŘ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘ ŀǎΣ ƴƻǘ ƻƴƭȅ ǘƘŜ Ǝƭƻōŀƭ ƭŜŀŘŜǊ ƛƴ ǘƘƛǎ Ǿƛǘŀƭ ƛƴŘǳǎǘǊȅ ōǳǘ ŀƭǎƻ ƻƴŜ ǘƘŀǘΩǎready, willing 
and able to export its unmatched international expertise to new territories, such as Southeast Asia, where it is needed more than ever before.
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2024 42%Emiratization

2023 40% Emiratization

2022 42% Emiratization

2021 43% Emiratization 

2020 41% Emiratization

2019 41% Emiratization

2018 39% Emiratization

During 2024, Tabreed further enhanced its efforts to foster a culture of innovation 
within the organization. The Innovation Committee meetings were conducted 
quarterly to discuss and provide updates on the various technologies that had been 
explored. Through participation in various energy summits, Tabreed gained 
significant knowledge about emerging technologies and decarbonization measures. 
Tabreed signed NDAs with multiple technology providers and companies to explore 
& test emerging technologies that might impact its district cooling business.

The innovation road map focuses on multiple technological areas, with a prime focus 
on technologies that will contribute to increasing energy efficiency, contribute to 
reduce green-house emissions etc. 

Lƴ ǊŜǎǇŜŎǘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǘƻǘŀƭ ƘŜŀŘŎƻǳƴǘ ƻŦ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ ŎƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎΣ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘ ƘŜƭŘ 
the following Emiratization levels in respect of the periods stated below:

Planned projects include:

Nano 
Technology

Aims at drastically improving plant life and efficiency using advances in 
nanotechnology. 
ÅTabreed partnered with HT Material Science (HTMS) for implementation of a 

pilot project to use nano particles in a chilled water circuit. The purpose of the 
Pilot is to certify the increased thermal capacity and/or energy efficiency. The 
results shows 9% improvement in overall plant efficiency i.e. is broadly 
equivalent to avoided energy costs and the consequent reduced carbon 
footprint for the facility.This is currently beingtested in Dubai Metro Air Cooled 
Plants.

ÅIn partnership with ENGIE Lab, Sky cooling pilot project is completed in one of 
the plant in Abu Dhabi . The technology isbased on spontaneous radiative 
emission of thermal energy as infrared radiations Theinitial results shows 
efficiency improvement.

Geothermal 
Energy 
Utilisation

ÅTabreed has signed an MOU with ADNOC to explore the utilizationof 
geothermal energy primarily for cooling application. The partnership aims at 
ŎƻƳōƛƴƛƴƎ !5bh/Ωǎ ŜȄǇŜǊƛŜƴŎŜ ƛƴ ŘŜŜǇ ǿŜƭƭ ŘǊƛƭƭƛƴƎ ŀƴŘ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎ ŀƴŘ 
¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ ŜȄǇŜǊǘƛǎŜ ƛƴ ŎƻƻƭƛƴƎ ŀƴŘ ǘƻ ŜȄǇƭƻǊŜ utilisationof the energy from the 
geothermal wells which Tabreed owns at Masdar City.

ÅThe project (G2COOL) was successfully commissioned ahead of COP28. The load 
is being served to existing Masdar City district cooling network.

Solar Panels ÅTabreed have tied up with Masdar to explore and collaborate on opportunities 
in distributed solar generation. Construction is in progress for two plants of 
1MW each.

Condenser water 
treatment 
system

ÅElectrolytic filtration system is being used to remove scales from condenser 
water & can reduce the use of chemicals in the condenser water loop.

ÅAuto tube cleaning system recycles sponge balls (typically 1mm bigger than the 
tube inner diameter) along with the water flow and squeezes the deposits out of 
the tubes without causing disturbance to the water pressure gain.Tabreed Innovation projects won 2 awards for Innovative and Trailblazing 

LƴƛǘƛŀǘƛǾŜǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ tƻǿŜǊ {ŜŎǘƻǊ ŦƻǊ ǇŜǊƛƻŘ нлнп ŦǊƻƳ ά!ǎƛŀƴ tƻǿŜǊ !ǿŀǊŘǎ

15.9 Emiratization Percentage 

15.10 Innovative Projects
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Previous projects implemented for electrical efficiency improvements have delivered significant savings in electrical consumption and thereby a reduction in CO2 emissions. Tabreed continues to focus on using 
historical data for its plants to enhance its operational efficiency and develop energy models for predicting energy efficiency of future plants. Tabreed continues to develop models to provide more process insights 
and enhancements to the design and operation of its assets. 

¢ŀōǊŜŜŘ ŘŜǾŜƭƻǇŜŘ ŀƴ ŀƳōƛǘƛƻǳǎ Ǉƭŀƴ ǘƻ ǊŜŘǳŎŜ ǿŀǘŜǊ ŎƻƴǎǳƳǇǘƛƻƴ ōȅ ƛƴŎǊŜŀǎƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǳǎŜ ƻŦ ǘǊŜŀǘŜŘ ǎŜǿŀƎŜ ŜŦŦƭǳŜƴǘ όά¢{9έύ ƛƴ Ŏooling towers. Tabreed already utilizes TSE as a cooling tower make-up source in a 
few plants in Dubai. Consultation is in progress with various regulatory agencies and utility providers to explore implementation of similar projects in other plants as well, in particular in Abu Dhabi.

Tabreed is actively pursuing integration of ǊŜƴŜǿŀōƭŜǎ ǎǳŎƘ ŀǎ ƎŜƻǘƘŜǊƳŀƭ ŀƴŘ ǎƻƭŀǊ ŜƴŜǊƎȅ ǘƻ ǇƻǿŜǊ ƛǘΩǎ 5/ tƭŀƴǘǎ ŀǎ ǿŜƭƭ ŀǎ ƭƻƻƪƛƴƎ ŀǘ ƛƴƴƻǾŀǘƛǾŜ ǳǎŜ ƻŦ ǘŜŎƘƴƻƭƻƎƛŜǎ ǘo reduce its energy consumption:

Å Two solar PV plants with capacity of 1 MW each are under construction with expected operations starting in early 2025. Tabreed engaged with Masdar to explore and collaborate on opportunities in distributed 
solar PV generation for district cooling, The idea is to offset the electricity consumption from the grid by utilizing renewable energy. As well as the potential electricity peak shaving by combining solar PV & 
Thermal Energy Storage.

Å Tabreed constructed the first geothermal cooling project in the Gulf region, G2Cool, in collaboration with ADNOC and Masdar City to harness geothermal energy in district cooling. The plant of 700RT was 
commissionedduring the CoP28 and interconnected to the existing Masdar City district cooling system to satisfy around 10% of the total cooling demand. This plant needsthree times less electricity consumption 
compared to a traditional standalone air-cooled system i.e. 1,000 tons of CO2 emissions avoided.

Å A pilot project in solar PV is under development. The proposed technology is a flexible and light weight thin film silicon basedphotovoltaic modules .The modules produce energy in a more efficient way than 
conventional glass solar panels.

Å Nanoparticlesimplementation in different plants showed an initial improvement between 9% and 12% inelectrical efficiency .

Tabreed is actively pursuing skycooling, nanotechnologies, condenser water treatment, fresh air improvements in the secondary side etc. 

to enhance the operation efficiency.

Overall, Tabreedˬs R&D initiatives in 2024 have developed a strong pipeline of ideas and projects that will be 
explored for testing & adaptation in the near future. 

117

Corporate GovernanceReport

Corporate Governance
Report

Board of Directors

Board of Directors

Financial Statements

Financial Statements
Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance
Sustainability Review

Sustainability Review
Strategic Review

Strategic Review
Overview

Overview



Annual Integrated Report 2024 118

Corporate Structure Chart as of 31 December 2024 National Central Cooling Company 
tW{/ όάTabreedέύ

UAE District Cooling

Summit District Cooling Company LLC

National Central Cooling Company Ras
AlKhaimahLLC

Industrial City Cooling Company LLC
Abu Dhabi Investment Company (52.5%)

WahaCapital PJSC (27.5%)

Sahara Cooling Limited (JAFZA)
Summit Global Management Co. VI B.V (30%) Electric 

& Power Development Corp. Ltd (30%)

Sahara Cooling & Air Conditioning LLC

District Utilities Energy Investment LLC

S&T Cool District Cooling Company-
Sole Proprietorship LLC

Tabreed Al Maryah District Cooling
Investment LLC (TAMDCI)

Al Wajeez Development LLC

Saadiyat District Cooling LLC

SaadiyatCooling LLC

Tabreed Sustainable City Limited

Downtown DCP LLC
Emaar District Cooling LLC (EDC) (20%)

TabreedParks Investment LLC
DHI DCP (50%)

Prime District Cooling LLC
International Capital Trading LLC (25%)

Value Chain Business ˮVCB˯

Gulf Energy System Company LLC (GES)
Khaled Abdulla Al Qubaisi (0.01%)

Cooltech Energy Water Treatment LLC

Cooltech Water Treatment LLC

Cooltech Water Services LLC

TabreedOperation & Maintenance
Zones Cooling Stations Co. LLC (TOMCO)

TabreedUtilities & Metering Energy
Investment Co. LLC

Central Utilities & Metering Energy
Investment Co. LLC (CUMEI)

TasleemMetering & Payment
Collection ˩ Sole Proprietorship LLC

Tabreed Energy Services LLC

TabreedEnergy Investments Sole
Proprietorship LLC

Emirates PreinsulatedPipes Industries LLC
Al Namlah(20.5%)-

Al Bitar (10.9%)-
Jailem(3.4%)

Regional District Cooling 

TabroodHolding WLL 

Bahrain District Cooling Company
WLL (TabreedBahrain)

Abdulla Ahmed Isa Almannaei(0.17%)

TabreedOman SAOC
Ministry of Defense Pension Fund (10.090%)
Diwan of Royal Court Pension Fund (5.045%)

ISS Pension Fund (7.063%)
PMA International Ltd. (9.186%)

Pvt Projects Dvlpt Co. LLC (8.072%)

TabreedAl Mouj SPC

Cooltech Water Treatment LLC
(Cooltech Oman)

Saudi District Cooling Company
also known as ˮSaudi Tabreed˯  (KSA)

Vision Invest (31.09%)
Mena Utilities (17.15%)

The Public Investment Fund (30%)

International District Cooling 

TabreedAsia central Cooling Company PTE limited
International Finance Corporation(25%)

TabreedInfopark Cooling Private limited

TabreedIndia Private Limited 

TabreedAmaravati District Cooling Private Limited 

TabreedCompany for Infrastructure and Central 
Cooling Services LLC 

TabreedCapital Med for Infrastructure and 
Central CoollingServices LLD 

KattameyaDS Infrastructure and Central 
Cooling Services LLD 

GasCool(40%) 

Consolidated in ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎAccounts

Not Consolidated in ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎAccounts

75%

100%

99.9%
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99%
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1%

1%

1%
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1%
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1%
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99.99%
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20%

40%

51%

99%
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Financial Statements

Financial Statements
.ƻŀǊŘ ƻŦ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎΩ wŜǇƻǊǘ

.ƻŀǊŘ ƻŦ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎΩ wŜǇƻǊǘ

In 2024, Tabreed has once again 
showed resilience of its business 
model. Highlights include:

ÅGroup revenue increased AED 
2.434 billion (2023: AED 2.415 
billion).

ÅEBITDA1 increased by 5% to 
AED 1.252 billion (2023: AED 
1.198 billion), with improved 
margin of 51%.

ÅNet profit attributable to the 
parent increased by 32% to 
AED 570 million (2023: AED 
431 million)

During2024, Tabreed added 
23,756 Refrigeration Tons (RT) of 
new connections:

ÅTotal connected capacity 
increasedto 1,325,000
Refrigeration Tons (RT)

Å2 new greenfield plants 
commissioned to meet new 
demand.

ÅFurther expanded international 
footprint

ÅConsumption volumes 
increased by 5% year-on-year

Å2.64 billion kilowatt hours 
saved across the GCC ςenough 
to power approximately 
150,000homes every year

ÅPrevented the release of 1.58 
million metric tons of CO2 into 
the atmosphere, equivalent to 
the removal of approximately 
343,000vehicles from the 
roads annually

Å!ŎƘƛŜǾŜŘ Ψ±ŜǊƛŦƛŜŘ /ŀǊōƻƴ 
{ǘŀƴŘŀǊŘΩ ŀǘ ƻƴŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǇƭŀƴǘǎΣ 
further reinforcing the role of 
district cooling in reaching net 
zero goals

Financial Highlights Operational Highlights
Environmental Impact 
Highlights

ÅWith every passing year, Tabreed 
goes from strength-to-strength, 
providing safe, reliable and efficient 
cooling to its customers and steady 
returns for investors and 
stakeholders alike.

Å¢ƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ Ǉƻǎƛǘƛƻƴ 
has significantly improved over the 
past few years, laying strong 
foundations for the future 
expansion in both UAE and 
international markets

Å Demand for cooling is rapidly 
ƎǊƻǿƛƴƎ ŀƴŘ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ ǳƴǊƛǾŀƭƭŜŘ 
expertise means it is well placed to 
meet market requirements with 
speed, agility and sustainability, 
ǇŜǊŦŜŎǘƭȅ ŀƭƛƎƴŜŘ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ ¦!9Ωǎ 
ΨbŜǘ ½ŜǊƻ ōȅ нлрлΩ ƛƴƛǘƛŀǘƛǾŜ

LƴŘŜǇŜƴŘŜƴǘ !ǳŘƛǘƻǊǎΩ wŜǇƻǊǘ

LƴŘŜǇŜƴŘŜƴǘ !ǳŘƛǘƻǊǎΩ 
Report
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1) EBITDA definition on Page 10
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Tabreed announced financial results for the first 
quarter of 2024, recording consumption volume 
increase of 9% year-over-year, driven by new 
connections attributed to organic growth. The 
company reported a net profit before tax of AED 
122 million, representing an increase of 4% 
reported during the same period last year 
(adjusted for one-off gains and losses).

MAY

During AGA, shareholders approved a record high 
dividend payment of 15.5 fils per share for 2023, 
to be paid fully in cash. This represents an 
increase of 15% over the previous year and 
ǊŜŎƻƎƴƛȊŜǎ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ ǎǘǊƻƴƎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ 
performance.

MARCH

Full Year Results for 2023 show Tabreed to be in 
Excellent Position as it Targets Regional and 
International Expansion. The Company reported 
revenue of AED 2.4 billion ςa 9% increase over 
2022 ςand a net profit attributable to parent, 
ōŜŦƻǊŜ ŘŜŦŜǊǊŜŘ ǘŀȄΣ ƻŦ !95 трм ƳƛƭƭƛƻƴΦ aƻƻŘȅΩǎ 
ŀƴŘ CƛǘŎƘ ǊŜŀŦŦƛǊƳ ¢ŀōǊŜŜŘΩǎ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ ƎǊŀŘŜ 
credit ratings.

FEB

CƻƭƭƻǿƛƴƎ ŀ ǎǳŎŎŜǎǎŦǳƭ ŎƻƭƭŀōƻǊŀǘƛƻƴ ŘǳǊƛƴƎ нлноΩǎ 
COP28 in Dubai, Tabreed once again supported the 
United Nations Environment Programme(UNEP)-
led Cool Coalition as a Silver Sponsor of the 
Buildings and Cooling Pavilion in the heart of the 
Blue Zone during COP29 in Baku, Azerbaijan.

NOV

Tabreed was honouredat the prestigious 2024 
Asian Power Awards, held in Singapore, as judges 
awarded the company with two significant 
ŀǿŀǊŘǎΥ ΨDŜƻǘƘŜǊƳŀƭ tƻǿŜǊ tǊƻƧŜŎǘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ¸ŜŀǊ ς
DƻƭŘΩ ŀƴŘ Ψ5ƛǎǘǊƛŎǘ /ƻƻƭƛƴƎ LƴƛǘƛŀǘƛǾŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ¸ŜŀǊ ς
UAE. These awards recognised Tabreed as a long-
established champion of sustainable cooling.

OCT

Tabreed made a major advancement in its efforts 
to decarbonisethe cooling sector, achieving the 
Ψ±ŜǊƛŦƛŜŘ /ŀǊōƻƴ {ǘŀƴŘŀǊŘΩ ŀǘ ƻƴŜ ƻŦ ƛǘǎ !ōǳ 5Ƙŀōƛ 
plants, certifying carbon credits to offset 
emissions. Tabreed becomes eligible to trade 
carbon credits (in the voluntary market) as an 
emissions preventer.

AUG
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To the shareholders of National Central Cooling Company PJSC
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of 
bŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ /ŜƴǘǊŀƭ /ƻƻƭƛƴƎ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅ tW{/ όǘƘŜ ά/ƻƳǇŀƴȅέύ 
ŀƴŘ ƛǘǎ ǎǳōǎƛŘƛŀǊƛŜǎ όǘƘŜ άDǊƻǳǇέύ ǿƘƛŎƘ ŎƻƳǇǊƛǎŜ ǘƘŜ 
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 
December 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit 
or loss, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, 
consolidated statement of changes in equity and 
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, 
including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 
December 2024 and its consolidated financial performance 
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

Opinion Basis for opinion Key audit matters

We conducted our audit in accordance with International 
{ǘŀƴŘŀǊŘǎ ƻƴ !ǳŘƛǘƛƴƎ όάL{!ǎέύΦ hǳǊ ǊŜǎǇƻƴǎƛōƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ ǳƴŘŜǊ 
ǘƘƻǎŜ ǎǘŀƴŘŀǊŘǎ ŀǊŜ ŦǳǊǘƘŜǊ ŘŜǎŎǊƛōŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ !ǳŘƛǘƻǊΩǎ 
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial 
statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the Group in accordance with the International Ethics 
{ǘŀƴŘŀǊŘǎ .ƻŀǊŘ ŦƻǊ !ŎŎƻǳƴǘŀƴǘǎΩ LƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ /ƻŘŜ ƻŦ 
Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International 
Independence Standards) (IESBA) together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements in the United Arab 
Emirates, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our 
professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the 
current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
For each matter below, our description of how our audit 
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the 
!ǳŘƛǘƻǊΩǎ ǊŜǎǇƻƴǎƛōƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ŀǳŘƛǘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƴǎƻƭƛŘŀǘŜŘ 
financial statements section of our report, including in 
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included 
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit 
procedures, including the procedures performed to address 
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion 
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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To the shareholders of National Central Cooling Company PJSC
wŜǇƻǊǘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ !ǳŘƛǘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ /ƻƴǎƻƭƛŘŀǘŜŘ CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ {ǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ  όŎƻƴǘΩŘύ
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The Group generates revenue from its contracts with customers for the supply of chilled water and associated value chain in the 
¦!9Σ .ŀƘǊŀƛƴΣ ŀƴŘ hƳŀƴ ǘƘǊƻǳƎƘ ƛǘǎ ŎƻƴǘǊƻƭƭŜŘ ǎǳōǎƛŘƛŀǊƛŜǎΦ ! ǎƛƎƴƛŦƛŎŀƴǘ ǇǊƻǇƻǊǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ǊŜǾŜƴǳŜǎ ŀƴŘ ǇǊƻŦƛǘǎ ƛǎ 
derived from long term contracts including lease arrangements.

Revenue from the supply of chilled water is recognized over time. The Group has applied judgement in classification of certain 
long-term customer contracts as operating or finance leases depending on the terms and conditions of the contracts.

Revenue from the value chain business is recognized over time for supervision and design of district cooling networks and at 
point in time for the sale of related equipment.

¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ǊŜǾŜƴǳŜ ǊŜŎƻƎƴƛǘƛƻƴ ŀŎŎƻǳƴǘƛƴƎ ǇƻƭƛŎȅ ƛǎ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜŘ ƛƴ ƴƻǘŜ нΦоΦн ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƴǎƻƭƛŘŀǘŜŘ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎΦ

The Group recognisedrevenue of AED 2,434 million for the year ended 31 December 2024. Revenue recognition is considered a 
ƪŜȅ ŀǳŘƛǘ ƳŀǘǘŜǊ ƎƛǾŜƴ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ǾŀǊƛŜŘ ƴŀǘǳǊŜ ƻŦ ǊŜǾŜƴǳŜ ŀǊǊŀƴƎŜƳŜƴǘǎ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ ƳŀƎƴƛǘǳŘŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŀƳƻǳƴǘǎ ƛƴǾƻƭǾŜŘΦ

The audit procedures performed over this key audit matter include the following:

Å We obtained an understanding of the business process flow and performed walkthroughs to understand the key processes 
and identify key controls;

Å We assessed the relevant controls over revenue to determine if they had been designed and implemented appropriately and 
tested these controls to determine if they were operating effectively;

Å We performed procedures to assess whether the revenue recognition criteria adopted by Group is appropriate and in 
ŀŎŎƻǊŘŀƴŎŜ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŀŎŎƻǳƴǘƛƴƎ ǇƻƭƛŎȅ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜƳŜƴǘǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ LCw{ !ŎŎƻǳƴǘƛƴƎ {ǘŀƴŘŀǊŘǎΤ

Å We performed analytical procedures including data analytics on major revenue streams to test transaction initiation to 
recording process and compared the major revenue streams to prior year results;

Å We obtained the key items and representative sample of revenue transactions and tested their occurrence, accuracy and 
recognition, by tracing them back to supporting documents;

Å We recalculated the finance lease income, on a sample basis, with reference to the respective lease models; and

Å We assessed the disclosure in the consolidated financial statements relating to revenue recognition for compliance with the 
requirements of the IFRS Accounting Standards.

Revenue recognition

The Group has recorded goodwill amounting to AED 319 million arising from 
the acquisition of two of its subsidiaries. 

Management carries out impairment assessments of goodwill annually. 
Goodwill impairment testing is considered a key audit area given the significant 
estimates and assumptions involved in determining the value in use of the 
respective cash generating units. These estimates and assumptions relate to 
future cash flows, consumer price index and discount rates. 

The audit procedures performed over this key audit matter include the 
following:

Å ²Ŝ ǘŜǎǘŜŘΣ ǘƻƎŜǘƘŜǊ ǿƛǘƘ ƻǳǊ Ǿŀƭǳŀǘƛƻƴ ǎǇŜŎƛŀƭƛǎǘǎΣ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ƛƳǇŀƛǊƳŜƴǘ 
testing methodology and inputs used in the models as well as the 
assumptions relating to consumer price index and discount rates;

Å We tested the mechanical accuracy of the cash flow models;

Å We assessed the sensitivity of available headroom in the respective CGUs to 
changes in key assumptions;

Å We compared actual performance of cash generating units to the 
assumptions applied in discounted cash flow models to assess the historical 
accuracy of management's estimates;

Å We performed earnings multiples cross checks in comparison with other 
comparable businesses to assess the impairment testing model outcomes; 
and

Å We assessed the adequacy of the disclosure in the consolidated financial 
statements in compliance with the requirements of the IFRS Accounting 
Standards. 

Impairment assessment of goodwill
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hǘƘŜǊ ƛƴŦƻǊƳŀǘƛƻƴ Ŏƻƴǎƛǎǘǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ƛƴŦƻǊƳŀǘƛƻƴ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ !ƴƴǳŀƭ wŜǇƻǊǘ ƻǘƘŜǊ ǘƘŀƴ ǘƘŜ 
ŎƻƴǎƻƭƛŘŀǘŜŘ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ ŀƴŘ ƻǳǊ ŀǳŘƛǘƻǊΩǎ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ ǘƘŜǊŜƻƴΦ aŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ƛǎ ǊŜǎǇƻƴǎƛōƭŜ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ 
ƻǘƘŜǊ ƛƴŦƻǊƳŀǘƛƻƴΦ ¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ !ƴƴǳŀƭ wŜǇƻǊǘ ƛǎ ŜȄǇŜŎǘŜŘ ǘƻ ōŜ ƳŀŘŜ ŀǾŀƛƭŀōƭŜ ǘƻ ǳǎ ŀŦǘŜǊ ǘƘŜ ŘŀǘŜ ƻŦ 
ǘƘƛǎ ŀǳŘƛǘƻǊΩǎ ǊŜǇƻǊǘΦ

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the 
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

²ƘŜƴ ǿŜ ǊŜŀŘ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ !ƴƴǳŀƭ wŜǇƻǊǘΣ ƛŦ ǿŜ ŎƻƴŎƭǳŘŜ ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜǊŜ ƛǎ ŀ ƳŀǘŜǊƛŀƭ ƳƛǎǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘ ǘƘŜǊŜƛƴΣ 
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of management and the Board of Directors for the consolidated financial statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards and in compliance with the applicable 
provisions of the Memorandum of Association of the Company and the UAE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021, 
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Lƴ ǇǊŜǇŀǊƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƴǎƻƭƛŘŀǘŜŘ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎΣ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ƛǎ ǊŜǎǇƻƴǎƛōƭŜ ŦƻǊ ŀǎǎŜǎǎƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

¢ƘŜ .ƻŀǊŘ ƻŦ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎ ŀǊŜ ǊŜǎǇƻƴǎƛōƭŜ ŦƻǊ ƻǾŜǊǎŜŜƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǊŜǇƻǊǘƛƴƎ ǇǊƻŎŜǎǎΦ

!ǳŘƛǘƻǊΩǎ ǊŜǎǇƻƴǎƛōƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ŀǳŘƛǘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƴǎƻƭƛŘŀǘŜŘ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 
ŀǎ ŀ ǿƘƻƭŜ ŀǊŜ ŦǊŜŜ ŦǊƻƳ ƳŀǘŜǊƛŀƭ ƳƛǎǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘΣ ǿƘŜǘƘŜǊ ŘǳŜ ǘƻ ŦǊŀǳŘ ƻǊ ŜǊǊƻǊΣ ŀƴŘ ǘƻ ƛǎǎǳŜ ŀƴ ŀǳŘƛǘƻǊΩǎ 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Å Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.

Å Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
ŜŦŦŜŎǘƛǾŜƴŜǎǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ƛƴǘŜǊƴŀƭ ŎƻƴǘǊƻƭΦ

Å Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Å/ƻƴŎƭǳŘŜ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ŀǇǇǊƻǇǊƛŀǘŜƴŜǎǎ ƻŦ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘΩǎ ǳǎŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ƎƻƛƴƎ ŎƻƴŎŜǊƴ ōŀǎƛǎ ƻŦ ŀŎŎƻǳƴǘƛƴƎ ŀƴŘΣ ōŀǎŜŘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ŀǳŘƛǘ ŜǾƛŘŜƴŎŜobtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
ŜǾŜƴǘǎ ƻǊ ŎƻƴŘƛǘƛƻƴǎ ǘƘŀǘ Ƴŀȅ Ŏŀǎǘ ǎƛƎƴƛŦƛŎŀƴǘ Řƻǳōǘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŀōƛƭƛǘȅ ǘƻ ŎƻƴǘƛƴǳŜ ŀǎ ŀ ƎƻƛƴƎ ŎƻƴŎŜǊƴΦ LŦ ǿŜ ŎƻƴŎƭǳŘŜ ǘƘat a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention 
ƛƴ ƻǳǊ ŀǳŘƛǘƻǊΩǎ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ǊŜƭŀǘŜŘ ŘƛǎŎƭƻǎǳǊŜǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƴǎƻƭƛŘŀǘŜŘ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ ƻǊΣ ƛŦ ǎǳŎƘ ŘƛǎŎƭƻǎǳǊŜǎ ŀǊŜ ƛƴŀŘŜquate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
ŜǾƛŘŜƴŎŜ ƻōǘŀƛƴŜŘ ǳǇ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ŘŀǘŜ ƻŦ ƻǳǊ ŀǳŘƛǘƻǊΩǎ ǊŜǇƻǊǘΦ IƻǿŜǾŜǊΣ ŦǳǘǳǊŜ ŜǾŜƴǘǎ ƻǊ ŎƻƴŘƛǘƛƻƴǎ Ƴŀȅ ŎŀǳǎŜ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇ ǘƻ ŎŜŀǎŜ ǘo continue as a going concern

Å Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Å Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business units within the group as a basis for forming an 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed for the purposes of the group audit. We remain 
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, action taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current 
ǇŜǊƛƻŘ ŀƴŘ ŀǊŜ ǘƘŜǊŜŦƻǊŜ ǘƘŜ ƪŜȅ ŀǳŘƛǘ ƳŀǘǘŜǊǎΦ ²Ŝ ŘŜǎŎǊƛōŜ ǘƘŜǎŜ ƳŀǘǘŜǊǎ ƛƴ ƻǳǊ ŀǳŘƛǘƻǊΩǎ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ ǳƴƭŜǎǎ ƭŀǿ ƻǊ ǊŜƎǳƭŀǘƛƻƴ ǇǊecludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication
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To the shareholders of National Central Cooling Company PJSC
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

126

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021, we report that for the year ended 31 December 2024:

i. the Group has maintained proper books of account;

ii. we have obtained all the information and explanations we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit;

iii. the consolidated financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material respects, with the applicable provisionsof the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, and the Memorandum 
of Association of the Company;

iv. investments in shares are included in note 9, 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements and include the purchases and investments made by the Group during the year ended 31 
December 2024;

v. note 30 reflects material related party transactions and the terms under which they were conducted;

vi. based on the information that has been made available to us, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Company has contravened during the year ended 31 
December 2024 any of the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021 or of its Memorandum of Association which would materially affect its activities or its consolidated 
financial position as at 31 December 2024; and

vii.note 1 reflects the social contributions made during the year.

Further, as required by the Resolution of the Chairman of the Abu Dhabi Accountability Authority No. (88) of 2021 regarding financial statements Audit Standards for the Subject Entities, we 
report that, in connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the 
Group has not complied, in all material respects, with any of the provisions of the following laws, regulations and circularsasapplicable, which would materially affect its activities or the 
consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2024:

i. Its Memorandum of Association or Law of Establishment which would materially affect its activities or its consolidated financial position as at 31 December 2024; and

ii. Relevant provisions of the applicable laws, resolutions and circulars organisingǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎΦ
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS, FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 
2024
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Notes

for the year ended 31 December

2024
!95 Ψллл

2023
!95 Ψллл

Revenues 3 2,433,769 2,415,475

Direct costs 6.1 (1,352,734) (1,333,390) 

Gross profit 1,081,035 1,082,085

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables 20 (906) (3,895)

Administrative and other expenses 6.2 (287,047) (272,446)

Operating profit 793,082 805,744

Finance costs 5 (215,263) (264,623)

Finance income 40,893 60,540

Other gains and losses, net 6.4 5,965 148,770

Share of results of associates and joint ventures, net 12, 13 37,598 34,923

Profit before tax 662,275 785,354

Income tax 14 (59,523) (358,795)

Profit for the year 602,752 426,559
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Notes

for the year ended 31 December

2024
!95 Ψллл

2023
!95 Ψллл

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent 570,219 431,141

Non-controlling interests 32,533 (4,582)

602,752 426,559

Total basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to 
ordinary equity holders of the parent (AED)

7 0.20 0.15

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS, FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 
2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 
DECEMBER 2024
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Notes

for the year ended 31 December
2024
!95 Ψллл

2023
!95 Ψллл

Profit for the year 602,752 426,559

Other comprehensive income 

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Net movement in fair value of derivatives in cash flow hedges 
ǊŜƭŀǘŜŘ ǘƻ LƴǘŜǊŜǎǘ wŀǘŜ {ǿŀǇǎ όάLw{έύ

20 (113,022) (99,952)

Share of changes in fair value of derivatives of associates and 
joint venturein cash flow hedges related to IRS 12 12,146

(4,833)

Exchange differences arising on translation of overseas 
operations

(2,297) 781

Net other comprehensive(loss) income that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

(103,173) (104,004)

Reclassification of fair value of derivatives in cash flow hedges 
to profit or loss statement upon termination (note 24)

- (100,604)

Net other comprehensive loss reclassified to profit or loss - (100,604)

Total comprehensive income for the year 499,579 221,951

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent 467,046 226,533

Non-controlling interests 32,533 (4,582)

499,579 221,951
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024
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Assets
Notes

As at 31 December

2024
!95 Ψллл

2023
!95 Ψллл

Non-current assets

Capital work in progress 10 306,576 258,276

Property, plant and equipment 11 4,449,578 4,471,687

Right-of-use assets 17 252,936 271,017

Intangible assets 15 3,981,139 4,049,445

Investments in associates and joint ventures 12,13 622,420 622,390

Finance lease receivables 16 2,444,732 2,522,872

Long term deposits 18 9,538 14,309

12,066,919 12,209,996

Current assets

Inventories 74,195 69,693

Trade and other receivables 20 615,207 717,473

Finance lease receivables 16 338,440 333,157

Cash and bank balances 21 1,022,776 1,509,804

2,050,618 2,630,127

Total assets 14,117,537 14,840,123

Equity and Liabilities

Equity 

Issued capital 22 2,845,271 2,845,261

Treasury shares (3,314) (3,296)

Statutory reserve 23 625,728 565,453

Retained earnings 2,831,012 2,762,076

Foreign currency translation reserve (365) 1,932

Cumulative changes in fair value of derivatives in cash flow hedges 45,225 146,101

Equity attributable to the equity holders of the parent 6,343,557 6,317,527

Non-controlling interests 618,313 625,715

Total equity 6,961,870 6,943,242
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT31 DECEMBER 2024 
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2024 2023

Notes !95 Ψллл!95 Ψллл

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables 28 331,580 268,666

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 24 133,380 1,976,915

Islamic financing arrangement 25 - 638,135

Non-convertible Bonds and Sukuk 26 1,824,082 3,532,495

Lease liabilities 19 139,944 176,999

Deferred tax liabilities 14 360,941 358,795

9ƳǇƭƻȅŜŜǎΩ ŜƴŘ ƻŦ ǎŜǊǾƛŎŜ ōŜƴŜŦƛǘǎ27 50,179 45,258

2,840,106 6,997,263

2024 2023

Notes !95 Ψллл!95 Ψллл

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 28 765,285 785,531

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 24 1,911,230 61,037

Islamic financing arrangement 25 640,666 -

Non-convertible Bonds and Sukuk 26 946,466 -

Lease liabilities 19 51,914 53,050

4,315,561 899,618

Total liabilities 7,155,667 7,896,881

Total equity and liabilities 14,117,537 14,840,123

Dr. BakheetAl Katheeri KhalidAbdullaAl Marzooqi Adel Al Wahedi

Chairman Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Issued 
capital
!95Ψллл

Treasury 
shares
!95Ψллл

Statutory
reserve
!95Ψллл

Retained
earnings
!95Ψллл

Foreign currency
translation reserve 

!95Ψллл

Cumulative changes in fair 
value of derivatives in 

cash flow Hedges 
!95Ψллл

Total
!95Ψллл

Non- controlling 
interests 
!95Ψллл

Total 
equity
!95Ψллл

Balance at 1 January 2023 2,845,261 (3,296) 522,947 2,757,257 1,151 351,490 6,474,810 679,265 7,154,075

Profit for the year - - - 431,141 - - 431,141 (4,582) 426,559

Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - 781 (205,389) (204,608) (204,608)

Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 431,141 781 (205,389) 226,533 (4,582) 221,951

Transfer to statutory reserve - - 42,656 (42,656) - - - - -

Dividends paid to shareholders (Note 8) - - - (383,666) - - (383,666) - (383,666)

Dividend paid to non-controlling interests - - - - - - - (48,966) (48,966)

Others - - (150) - - - (150) (2) (152)

Balance at 31 December 2023 2,845,261 (3,296) 565,453 2,762,076 1,932 146,101 6,317,527 625,715 6,943,242

Balance at 1 January 2024 2,845,261 (3,296) 565,453 2,762,076 1,932 146,101 6,317,527 625,715 6,943,242

Profit for the year - - - 570,219 - - 570,219 32,533 602,752

Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - - (2,297) (100,876) (103,173) - (103,173)

Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 570,219 (2,297) (100,876) 467,046 32,533 499,579

Transfer to statutory reserve - - 60,275 (60,275) - - - - -

Dividends paid to shareholders (Note 8) - - - (441,016) - - (441,016) - (441,016)

Dividend paid to non-controlling interests - - - - - - - (27,832) (27,832)

Increase in share capital in a subsidiary - - - - - - - 7,897 7,897

Repayment of shareholder contribution to 

non-controlling interest
- - - - - - - (20,000) (20,000)

Other Movements 10 (18) - 8 - - - - -

Balance at 31 December 2024 2,845,271 (3,314) 625,728 2,831,012 (365) 45,225 6,343,557 618,313 6,961,870

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31 DECEMBER 2024

Notes

Year ended 31 December

2024
!95 Ψллл

2023
!95 Ψллл

Operating activities

Profit before tax 662,275 785,354

Non-cash adjustments:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 11 202,665 209,270

Depreciation of right-of-use assets 17 31,077 29,677

Amortisation of intangible assets 15 112,181 102,645

Finance lease income 3 (238,803) (295,590)

Share of results of associates and joint ventures 12,13 (37,598) (34,923)

Provision for employees' end of service benefits 27 8,572 8,062

Other gains and losses, net (5,965) (148,770)

Provision for impairment of  trade receivables 20 906 3,895

Finance income (40,893) (60,540)

Finance costs 5 215,263 264,623

Net operating cash flows before changes in working capital 909,680 863,703
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31 DECEMBER 2024 (CONTINUED)
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Notes

Year ended 31 December

2024
!95 Ψллл

2023
!95 Ψллл

Working capital changes:

Inventories (4,502) (9,664)

Trade and other receivables 2,619 6,179

Trade and other payables (66,858) 84,247

Cash generated from operations 840,939 944,465

Lease rentals received 16 351,676 346,143

9ƳǇƭƻȅŜŜǎΩ ŜƴŘ ƻŦ ǎŜǊǾƛŎŜ ōŜƴŜŦƛǘǎ ǇŀƛŘ 27 (3,651) (5,510)

Net cash flows generated from operating activities 1,188,964 1,285,098

Financial Statements

Financial Statements
.ƻŀǊŘ ƻŦ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎΩ wŜǇƻǊǘ

.ƻŀǊŘ ƻŦ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎΩ wŜǇƻǊǘ

LƴŘŜǇŜƴŘŜƴǘ !ǳŘƛǘƻǊǎΩ wŜǇƻǊǘ

LƴŘŜǇŜƴŘŜƴǘ !ǳŘƛǘƻǊǎΩ 
Report

Financial Statements

Financial Statements
Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance
Sustainability Review

Sustainability Review
Strategic Review

Strategic Review
Overview

Overview



Annual Integrated Report 2024

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31 DECEMBER 2024 (CONTINUED)
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Notes

Year ended 31 December

2024
!95 Ψллл

2023
!95 Ψллл

Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 11 (20,263) (59,772)

Payments for capital work in progress (196,413) (120,602)

Additions to Intangibles (40,058) -

Proceeds from disposal of interest in joint ventures 13 17,468 -

Proceeds from disposal of interest in subsidiary 29.1 - 68,067

Dividend received from a joint venture 13 11,000 -

Dividends received from associates 12 10,288 11,565

Disposal of property, plant and equipment - 1,458

Proceeds from (Investment in) long term deposits 4,771 (14,309)

Finance income received 36,102 59,610

Net cash flows used in investing activities (177,105) (53,983)
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